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CORPORATE INFORMATION
ARAR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. ZOU Gebing (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. ZENG Jin

Mr. SHEN Zhidong

Mr. WU Yueming

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LIU Haifeng

Mr. QIAN Jun (appointed on 31 July 2020)

Mr. CHU Guodi

Mr. PANG Wing Hong (resigned on 31 July 2020)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. QIAN Jun
(Chairman of committee, appointed on 31 July 2020)
Mr. LIU Haifeng
Mr. CHU Guodi
Mr. PANG Wing Hong (resigned on 31 July 2020)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. CHU Guodi (Chairman of committee)

Mr. LIU Haifeng

Mr. QIAN Jun (appointed on 31 July 2020)

Mr. PANG Wing Hong (resigned on 31 July 2020)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
RNEEH (FE)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. LIU Haifeng (Chairman of committee)

Mr. QIAN Jun (appointed on 31 July 2020)

Mr. CHU Guodi

Mr. PANG Wing Hong (resigned on 31 July 2020)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LAM Hoi Lun

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. WU Yueming
Mr. LAM Hoi Lun

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND

TRANSFER OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P. O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
RNEEH (FE)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS IN THE PRC

No. 500 Youquan Road
Haining Economic Development Zone
Zhejiang Province, PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 2001, 20/F, Citicorp Centre,
18 Whitfield Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Citibank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Bank of Jiaxing

Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Taishin International Bank

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.

STOCK CODE

1575

WEBSITE

www.morrisholdings.com.hk

4 MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

AR EE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O.Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

A

FEDITE
BEZERER

250058

ERETELFRBE

BB
SfF) 928 2 B SE S B 1 855
EFEBPLO2082001F

FEERRIT

PERT(BE)BERAA
TEMEIRTT

PETERIT (M ERAF
FERTT
HERERITRMNERAT
BIBERERIRT
BERITRNDBR AR

R 1K 5%
1575
NGIEED'S

www.morrisholdings.com.hk



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MHRRE

Revenue decreased by approximately 38.1% to approximately
RMB606.4 million in 2020 (2019: approximately RMB980.3

million)

Gross profit decreased by approximately 43.0% to
approximately RMB58.8 million in 2020 (2019: approximately
RMB103.1 million)

Loss for the year was approximately RMB90.7 million in 2020 as
compared with loss for the year of approximately RMB140.7
million in 2019

Basic loss per share was approximately RMB9.56 cents in 2020 as
compared with basic loss per share of approximately RMB14.07
centsin 2019

The Board did not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).
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CHAIRMAN STATEMENT
ETRE®mE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Morris Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020 (“2020" or the
“Reporting Period”) to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”).

2020 was a very challenging year for the Group as we experienced
the global pandemic of the COVID19 crisis, which hit the global
economies badly and caused many problems to our manufacturing,
shipping and retailing operations. In the meantime, we were still
faced with the trade-war between China and the US. To mitigate the
US market risks, with hard efforts and strong execution of the
management, our Group has successfully developed other markets.
The Group will put more efforts in developing other matured and
stable furniture markets so that our business will be better positioned
avoiding concentrated country risks and benefit from the long-term

global consumption growth.

Since our Group’s listing on the Main Board of The Hong Kong Stock
Exchange Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in 2017, we accelerated
the pace of development of our retail business and establishment of
our own brand. The determination to create a valuable and strong
retail furniture brand is the long-term aim of the Group, and we will
cautiously deploy resources during the uncertain times to develop our

presence and enhance our brand image.

Product is the key to the long-term success of our business, and
“Exquisite” product is the main theme for years to come. We have
devoted more time and effort to improve our product quality and
style, to enhance the product value for our consumers. With our
continuous focus on the R&D, we have received high technology
enterprise recognition, and our research house has been awarded as
the provincial level research center. We hope to acquire more
achievements, with the view to bringing better products to

customers.
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CHAIRMAN STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
TEHE (F)

OUTLOOK

The Group expect to be faced with more challenges and
opportunities in 2021. As a result, the board will keep a close watch
on the development of the situation, continue to refine our
management and make timely adjustments to our operation and
sales strategies.

Looking forward to 2021, the board will continue to lead all staff of
the Group to step onto the international stage and develop our self-
owned brands, aiming at becoming a well-known furniture brand

enterprise in the world.

Zou Gebing
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENGREEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zou Gebing, aged 44, is the chairman and CEO of the Group
and was appointed as an executive Director on 18 March 2016. He is
responsible for overseeing and mapping the Group’s growth strategy

and overall management.

Prior to joining the Group, he was the marketing and development
manager in Zhejiang Kasen Industrial Group Co., Ltd., and was
deputy general manager in Hongyang Group Co., Ltd., from July
1997 to March 2000 and from May 2000 to March 2002,
respectively, and had been mainly responsible for exploration and
development of overseas markets of sofas and other furniture. He
joined Morris Group Co., Ltd. (“Morris PRC") as part of its
management team in May 2002, served as its vice chairman and
general manager since February 2005, and became the chairman of
Morris PRC in January 2012.

Mr. Zou obtained a bachelor’s degree in English from Shanghai
International Studies University in the PRC in July 1997 and a master’s
degree in business administration for senior management from
Zhejiang University in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") in
March 2007. He had also served as a corporate tutor for MBA
postgraduates in the Management School of Zhejiang University from
April 2007 to March 2012. Mr. Zou was accredited as a senior
economist by the Senior Economist Qualification Committee of

Zhejiang Province in December 2007.
With over 19 years of industry experience as mentioned above, Mr.
Zou is an experienced entrepreneur in furniture manufacturing

related businesses.

Mr. Zou's spouse, Ms. Wu Xiangfei (one of the controlling

shareholders of the Company), is a cousin of Mr. Shen’s spouse.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEkeREEERE (&)

Mr. Zeng Jin, aged 47, is the senior vice president and head of
production and quality management of the Group and was
appointed as an executive Director on 18 March 2016. He is
responsible for overseeing production planning and manufacturing
and quality management the Group. He has extensive experience in

production and quality management.

Prior to joining the Group, he had worked as a technician in Shanghai
Hongdun Anti-Counterfeit Material Co., Ltd. from August 1997 to
May 1998. He had then worked at Uniplas (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. from
May 1998 to September 2000. He then subsequently worked as a
quality engineer at Krone Communications (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. from
September 2000 to November 2001. He had then been employed as
a plant manager assistant and manager in the engineering
department of Shanghai Trayton Furniture Co., Ltd. from November
2001 to January 2005. He then joined Morris PRC and was appointed
as a general manager assistant in January 2005 and then as a deputy
general manager in November 2011. He was then employed by the
Group as a senior vice president and the head of production and
quality management immediately after completion of the business

transfer in December 2015.

Mr. Zeng obtained his double bachelor’'s degrees in polymer science
and computer software from the East China University of Science and
Technology in Shanghai, PRC in July 1997 and a master of Business
Administration degree from Donghua University in Shanghai, PRC in
June 2008.

Mr. Shen Zhidong, aged 46, is a senior vice president of the Group
and was appointed as an executive Director on 6 July 2017. He is also
a director of Masia Industries Limited, a subsidiary of the Company in
Cambodia. Mr. Shen is the head of administrative operations and

human resources matters of the Group.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EERSNEEERE (&)

Mr. Shen had served in the government sectors in Haining for over
ten years. From February 1999 to June 2010, Mr. Shen had served in
the Organization Department of Haining Municipal Committee of the
Communist Party of China in many positions including, among
others, as a section member, a deputy section leader, a section
leader, a committee member and a deputy bureau level coordinator.
From June 2010 to January 2014, Mr. Shen served as the deputy
director of the General Office of the People’s Government of Haining.
In January 2014, Mr. Shen was employed by Morris PRC as its vice
president. He was employed by the Group as the senior vice president
immediately after completion of the transfer of the furniture division
of Morris PRC to the Group in December 2015.

Mr. Shen graduated from the Party School Open College of the
Central Committee of the Communist Party of China in the study of

economic management in December 2002.

Mr. Shen’s spouse is a cousin of Ms. Wu Xiangfei, one of the

controlling shareholders of the Company and the spouse of Mr. Zou.

Mr. Wu Yueming, aged 37, is the general manager of the
administrative department of the Company and was appointed as an
executive Director on 6 June 2018. He is mainly responsible for
coordinating and managing back office support works and public
relations of the Company. He is also a director of Zhejiang Apollo
Leather Products Co., Ltd. and Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Co.,
Ltd., each a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Wu joined Morris PRC in
2005 where he worked as a technician of semi-finished sofa
production. He was subsequently promoted to manager of the
logistics department in September 2010, deputy office director in
April 2012 and standing deputy office director in August 2014 at
Morris PRC. He was then employed as the general manager of the
administrative department of the Company in January 2017. He
obtained the qualification of assistant economist issued by the
Haining City Human Resources and Social Security Bureau in
November 2014. He also obtained the graduation certificate from the
Normal College of the Dongbei University of Finance and Economics
in administration management through distance learning in July
2016.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEkeREEERE (&)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Haifeng, aged 46, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 6 July 2017 and is mainly responsible for
supervising and providing independent judgement to the Board. He is
also the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of
each of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Liu has been a tutor to master students in public administration
of faculties of humanities of Donghua University since 2011 and a
deputy manager of Donghua University Master of Public

Administration Center since September 2014.

Mr. Liu obtained his master degree in education from Shanghai
Normal University in June 2004. Mr. Liu later obtained his doctoral
degree in management science and engineering from Donghua
University School of Business and Management in June 2009. He
then later completed his postdoctoral study in applied economics at
Fudan University and obtained his certificate of postdoctoral in May
2014.

Mr. Chu Guodi, aged 42, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 28 May 2019 and is mainly responsible for
supervising and providing independent judgement to the Board. He is
also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of
each of the Nomination Committee and Audit Committee. He has
over 17 years of experience as a practicing lawyer in China. He is
currently a partner of #L/GEMMEFT (Zhejiang Haixiang Law
Firm*). Mr. Chu has been an independent director of /T ZE &=
L2 RN AR A T (Zhejiang Huatie Construction Safety Science
And Technology Co., Ltd.*), a company listed on Shanghai Stock
Exchange with a stock code of 603300, since June 2014 and an
independent director of SLEEEHEI D BPRAF] (Brother Enterprises
Holding Co., Ltd.*), a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange
with a stock code of 002562, since April 2017.

Mr. Chu is a member of FEFEL2FZEZRMHE (All-China Lawyers’
Association*). He graduated from Zhejiang University with a bachelor

degree of law.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EERSNEEERE (&)

Mr. Qian Jun, aged 36, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 31 July 2020 and is mainly
responsible for supervising and providing independent judgement to
the Board. He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of each of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination

Committee.

Mr. Qian is a practicing member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since 2012 with 8 years extensive practising
experience in accounting field. He obtained Bachelor of Economics
degree from Fudan University, Shanghai, China in 2007. He is
currently the department manager of Zhejiang Zhengjian Certified
Public Accountants Co., Limited in China.

Mr. Pang Wing Hong, aged 50, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 12 April 2019 and resigned on 31 July
2020. Prior to his retirement, Mr. Pang was mainly responsible for
supervising and providing independent judgement to the Board. He
was also the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of
each of the Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee.
He has over 20 years of experience in financial management,
accounting, auditing and corporate finance. He obtained a Bachelor
of Business Administration degree, majoring in professional
accountancy, from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1994 and
a Master of Business Administration degree from the University of
Adelaide, Australia in 2008. He has been an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since 1998 and
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants since 2002. Mr. Pang has been the chief financial officer
of Miko International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1247), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange since October 2015. From April 2015 to
October 2015, Mr. Pang was the chief financial officer of China
Green (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 904), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEkeREEERE (&)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Chen Meijuan, aged 42, has over 18 years of experience in
accounting and financial management. Ms. Chen joined the Group
in June 2002 and served as Deputy General Manager of Finance
Department of the Group before her appointment as the CFO. Ms.
Chen was accredited as a senior accountant by the Assessment
Committee of Senior Accountant Qualification of Zhejiang Province
in December 2019.

Ms. Shen Jiangping, aged 47, was appointed as the general
manager of Administrative Department of the Group in 2019. Ms.
Shen is mainly responsible for coordinating and managing back office
support works and public relations of the Group. Ms. Shen joined
Morris PRC in October 2001 and worked at the human resources
department of Morris PRC. Ms. Shen was then promoted to deputy
manager and manager in the human resources department of Morris
PRC in April 2002 and December 2011, respectively. Ms. Shen was
subsequently appointed as manager in the finance department of
Morris PRC in June 2014. Immediately after completion of the
business transfer, on 31 December 2015, Ms. Shen was appointed as
the director of human resources of the Group. Ms. Shen completed a
three year program in accounting at the School of Distance Learning
of Zhejiang University in the PRC in June 2007. Ms. Shen was
accredited as a first level corporate human resources professional by
the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security of the PRC in
December 2010.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE DA

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year of 2020, the Group continued to develop new
markets and invest in product design and research and development,
and establishment and expansion of sales channels.

Due to the decrease in sales volume of sofa, sofa covers and other
furniture products as a result of the supply-chain disruption caused
by the outbreak of COVID-19 epidemic, the Group’s revenue
decreased from approximately RMB980.3 million in 2019 to
approximately RMB606.4 million in 2020, representing a decrease of
approximately 38.1%. Loss for the year was decreased from
approximately RMB140.7 million in 2019 to approximately RMB90.7
million in 2020, principally due to the gain on modification of
convertible loan, gain on disposal of subsidiaries, compensation on
factory relocation and the decrease in selling and distribution
expenses as a result of the disposal of Jennifer Convertibles Inc.

Business development in North America

As our revenue was mainly derived from the U.S., the Sino-US
tension and the COVID-19 epidemic had material impacts on the
Group, leading to a significant decrease in our results in North
America as compared to the same period of last year. Due to the
partial sharing of tariffs with our US customers, the profit margin of
our exported products was also affected. Amidst the difficult business
environment caused by the Sino-US tension, the management of the
Group sought to tackle these challenges by strengthening
relationship with selected quality customers.

Retail business development in China and Hong
Kong

As of December 2020, the Group had a total of 1 flagship
showroom, 2 self-operated retail stores, 10 franchise stores and 3
online stores across different provinces in Mainland China.

In Hong Kong, the Group had a total of 5 self-operated retail stores
in Wan Chai, Sha Tin, Tsuen Wan, Causeway Bay and Tai Kok Tsui,
respectively and 5 points of consignment sales in Kowloon Bay, Yuen
Long, Wan Chai, Tsuen Wan and Lai Chi Kok. The Group also
introduced auxiliary decoration services to establish one-stop services
including decoration and furniture setting, instilling its stylish home
design concept into Hong Kong market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENWE DN (&)

Other overseas markets

Thanks to the successful launch of the warehouse program in the
U.K., U.K. has become the fastest growing market for the Group in
FY2020. We have established and strengthened the relationship with
a large U.K. furniture retail chain customer and will continue to
leverage on our resources in growing the business with U.K.
customers.

As of December 2020, the Group established a showroom in Tokyo,
Japan, as the first step to develop the Japanese market, and we
successfully received orders from Japanese customers.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year of 2020, the principal business activities of Group
comprise the manufacturing and sales of sofas, sofa covers and other
furniture products.

During the year, the revenue of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB606.4 million (2019: approximately RMB980.3
million), representing a decrease of approximately 38.1% as
compared with last year, which was mainly due to the impact of
COVID-19 epidemic globally. Affected by the temporary closing of
our factory and retail shops, slower logistics and distribution
arrangement and the public awareness of social distancing, we
experienced reduced sales volume of products and decreased
revenue from sales of sofa, sofa covers and other furniture products.

The net loss of the Group amounted to approximately RMB90.7
million during the year, as compared with the net loss of RMB140.7
million in last year. The decrease in net loss were mainly attributable
to (i) the decrease in selling and distribution expenses after the
disposal of Jennifer Convertibles Inc. (“Jennifer Convertibles”) and
(i) increases in other income and gains from gain on modification of
convertible loan, gain in disposal of subsidiaries and compensation
on factory relocation.

The Company'’s basic loss per ordinary share was RMB9.56 cents for
the year of 2020 (2019: RMB14.07 cents) based on the loss for the
year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company of
approximately RMB91.2 million (2019: RMB140.4 million), and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 953,526,940 for the
year of 2020 (2019: 998,379,710).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENWE DN (&)

Cost of sales

The cost of sales of the Group decreased by approximately 37.6%
from approximately RMB877.2 million in 2019 to approximately
RMB547.6 million in 2020, which was primarily due to the decrease
in sales volume.

Gross profit

The Group’s gross profit for the year was approximately RMB58.8
million (2019: approximately RMB103.1 million), representing a
decrease of approximately 43.0% as compared with last year. The
gross profit margin decreased from 10.5% in 2019 t0 9.7% in 2020
primarily due to the additional tariff levied on the Group’s export
products and the decreased utilisation of manufacturing capacity due
to the decrease in sales.

Other income and gains

The other income and gains of the Group increased from
approximately RMB85.5 million in 2019 to approximately RMB120.5
million in 2020. Such increase was primarily due to the increase in
gain on modification of convertible loan, gain on disposal of
subsidiaries and compensation on factory relocation, but partially
offset by the decreases in exchange gains, government subsidies and
repair service income.

Selling and distribution expenses

The selling and distribution expenses of the Group decreased by
approximately 49.3% from approximately RMB191.9 million in 2019
to approximately RMB97.2 million in 2020. Such decrease was
primarily due to the decrease in marketing cost.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group decreased by
approximately 14.8% from approximately RMB117.1 million in 2019
to approximately RMB99.8 million in 2020, which was primarily due
to decrease in employee benefit expenses after disposal of Jennifer
Convertibles and the implementation of cost-control measures.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENWE DN (&)

Finance costs

The finance costs of the Group decreased by approximately 39.9%
from approximately RMB29.3 million in 2019 to approximately
RMB17.6 million in 2020, which was primarily due to the decrease in
interest on lease liabilities of approximately RMB7.1 million resulted
from the disposal of Jennifer Convertibles and decrease in interest on
convertible loan resulted from the extension of repayment schedule,
but partially offset by the increases in interest on bank loans.

Income tax (expense)/credit

The income tax expense of the Group was approximately RMB2.9
million in 2020, as compared to income tax credit of approximately
RMB38.3 million in 2019. The reversal of income tax credit in 2019
to income tax expense in 2020 was mainly attributable to the profit-
making situation this year in Hong Kong, under-provision in prior
year and deferred tax expenses.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Borrowing and pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's interest-bearing bank
borrowings amounted to approximately RMB94.7 million, all of
which were repayable within twelve months from 31 December
2020. The bank loans’ interest rates ranged between 3.4% to 6.5%
per annum.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio of the Group, which is total debts (comprised of
amount due to a shareholder, amounts due to related companies,
lease liabilities, convertible loan and interest-bearing bank
borrowings) divided by equity attributable to owners of the Company
as at the end of the year and multiplied by 100%, increased from
approximately 326.5% as at 31 December 2019 to approximately
345.5% as at 31 December 2020, which was primarily due to
significant decrease of equity attributable to owners of the Company,
partially offset by the significant decrease in lease liabilities during
2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENWE DN (&)

Capital commitments

The Group did not have any capital commitment as at 31 December
2020 and 2019.

Contingent liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2020.

Trade receivables

The trade receivables of the Group decreased to approximately
RMB140.4 million (2019: approximately RMB217.0 million) as at 31
December 2020, primarily due to the significant decrease in sales to
the Group’s customers in the fourth quarter in 2020 as compared to
the corresponding period in 2019.

Trade and bills payables

The trade and bills payables of the Group decreased to approximately
RMB265.2 million (2019: approximately RMB389.3 million) as at 31
December 2020, primarily due to the decrease in purchases from the
Group's suppliers in the fourth quarter in 2020 as compared to the
corresponding period in 2019.

Foreign exchange exposure

Revenue from major customers is mainly from the U.S. while the
production facilities of the Group are mainly located in the PRC.
Accordingly, most of the sales are denominated in U.S. dollar while
the costs arising from the Group'’s operations are generally settled in
RMB. As a result, fluctuations in the value of U.S. dollar against RMB
could adversely affect the financial results of the Group. During
2020, the Group did not experience any material difficulties or
impacts on its operations or liquidity as a result of currency exchange
fluctuation. The Group used forward exchange contract for hedging
purposes during 2020 and there was hedging instruments
outstanding as at 31 December 2020 in the amount of approximately
RMB313,000 (2019: Nil). The Group will continue to monitor closely
the exchange rate risk arising from its existing operations and new
investments in the future. The Group will further implement the
necessary hedging arrangement to mitigate any significant foreign
exchange risk if and when appropriate.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENWE DN (&)

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Pursuant to the disclosable and connected transaction announcement
of the Company dated 31 March 2020, the Company has exercised
the put option to require the seller to repurchase all the issued
common stock of Jennifer Convertibles at the exit price of US$35
million. The disposals of Jennifer Convertibles and the related
receivables were completed on 14 August 2020.

HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT

The management of the Group believes that talent is the basis for
long-term development of enterprises. The Group targets to enhance
its corporate image through building up and solidifying the
Company'’s brand name. With the ‘Five Hearts of Morris': ambition,
confidence, determination, perseverance and loyalty, as core values,
the Group targets to establish a distinctive corporate culture. Through
regular trainings and promotion of its corporate culture, the Group
provides its staff with opportunities for personal growth and
enhances the employees’ sense of belonging to the Group. In
addition, the Group provides its employees with competitive
remuneration packages and various benefits in line with industry
practice. At the same time, the Group strives to create a good
working environment, and cultivates teamwork spirit among
employees. The Group carries out performance evaluation quarterly,
and conducts “Morris Artisans” evaluations, aiming at elevating the
morale of the Group’s technicians. The Group regularly reviews
human resources policies to ensure that the policies align with
market practice and comply with regulatory requirements. As of 31
December 2020, the Group employed 1,494 employees (31
December 2019: 2,065 employees). The total annual salary and
related costs (excluding directors’ remuneration) for 2020 were
approximately RMB60.6 million (2019: RMB181.1 million).

The Company operates a share option scheme which allows the
Company to grant options to eligible persons as rewards for their
contributions to the Group. The share option scheme has been
adopted by the Company on 10 December 2016. No share options
were granted, exercised or cancelled by the Company under the
share option scheme during the period from 12 January 2017, the
date on which the Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Date”), up to 31 December 2020 and there were no
outstanding share options under the share option scheme as at 31
December 2020 and the date of this report.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
FTERRRAEERE

The followings are part of the key risks and uncertainties identified
by the Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition
to those shown below which are not known to the Group or which
may not be material now but could turn out to be material in the
future.

FINANCIAL AND ECONOMIC RISK
Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements so
as to ensure sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions (when applicable) to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long term. The
Group’s cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2020
maintained at a satisfactory level. As at 31 December 2020, the

Group had no significant capital commitment.

Foreign currency risk

Revenue from major customers is mainly from the U.S. while the
production facilities of the Group are mainly operates in the PRC.
Accordingly, most of the sales are denominated in U.S. dollar while
the costs arising from its operations are generally settled in RMB. As
a result, fluctuations in the value of U.S. dollars against RMB could
adversely affect the financial results of the Group. During 2020, the
Group did not experience any material difficulties or impacts on its

operations or liquidity as a result of currency exchange fluctuation.

The Group used foreign exchange contract for hedging purposes
during 2020 and there was hedging instruments outstanding as at
31 December 2020 in the amount of approximately RMB313,000
(2019: Nil). The Group will continue to monitor closely the exchange
rate risk arising from its existing operations and new investments in
the future. The Group will further implement the necessary hedging
arrangement to mitigate any significant foreign exchange risk when
and if appropriate.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (CONTINUED)
TEARERAEERE (F)

Credit risk

The Group'’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables.
Credit evaluations are performed on all credit customers taking into
account the customer’s payment history and current ability to pay,
any information specific to the customer and the economic
environment in which the customer operates. The credit period is
generally one to two months, extending up to three to four months
for major customers. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
and overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
Impairment losses are recorded for those overdue balances where
there is objective evidence of impairment.

The Group has concentration risk in respect of trade receivables due
from the Group’s five largest customers who accounted for
approximately 76.5% and 75.8% of the Group’s total trade
receivables as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 respectively. The credit
risk exposure to trade receivables balance has been and will continue
to be monitored by the Group on an ongoing basis.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of rate
changes on interest-bearing bank borrowings. The Group monitors
the interest rate exposure on a continuous basis and adjusts the
portfolio of bank deposits and borrowings where necessary.

Economy of U.S. market

As the majority of the Group’s revenue is derived from the U.S., its
results of operations and financial condition therefore depend on the
U.S. economy. The Group's profitability and business growth are
affected by the uncertainty of macroeconomic conditions and
uncertain economic outlook and political conditions in U.S..

The U.S. economy faces challenges such as budget deficits, public
debt, lack of labor market dynamism and change in political
instability. Moreover, the change of trade policies of the United
States with China in recent years have brought adverse impact to the
business of the Group. It remains uncertain how Sino-US trade
policies will develop since the inauguration of the new US
administration in January 2021.

The Group has evaluated the business risk from the change in trade
policies of U.S. with China, and would explore different means to
mitigate such risks stemming therefrom.

FERR

FEENEERBREIZHFARE HEUK
Iéi AEEBHEFAEEERPNEEM
:ﬁ;ﬁ?&%ﬁmﬁmriﬂ%m
R,Aﬁujj BB I H A4S T AT A8 B IR
EENAMEN - EEH KA :n:ﬁi_ﬂl
A FERFPHEEHERERZ=EMN
BAR BUEPRXEZ=EERE A%

BN B IE G R EE RN - A
EHBEENEEETHR - WHERE
MEEEE  AURZSERERTEER
BEE -

AEEHEBRKEAATLNE S ERZE

MEFRE 2585 EKEIER2020

FER2019F 12831 BN RIAEREEE

S W R IE B EER4)76.5% N 75.8% ° &N

EIE%“]Ifiﬁ—ir@%%‘—?Eﬁﬁ“%ﬁ%%ﬁ%?ﬁg
EHNEER

FEER

AEBEEGN XSS HTERITEREE
?VE.E’WJTJ—L o REBFEERNER
- A 6 R B SR B AR TTIF B AR SR AV A

/Elxo

EEIT S HEE

HRAEENKRILOWARBER - HH
REZE RN BURNZBIEH - K
SENBNENEREBERI BBEEN
A THEEEARZBETRANEERE
MBORIRREE -

FEKEERGHEERT A& 48 Hm
BN TERBRBETBESH S - 1
Hh I FEEBHEZESRENECHASE
BEBERIFEE - B2021F1HERH
F—EBRERENR  PEZEFRRERE
HRBAEA »

AEEEFGEXBEHEEIRREFTES
MEBER  UHRRSETRIEAE
fRA S A ZFRRE

BRERER AT 2020 F3R 21



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TRERRK

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintain high standards of corporate
governance to protect the interests of its Shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability. The Board has reviewed
the Company’s corporate governance practices and is satisfied that
save as disclosed below, the Company has complied with all code
provisions (“Code Provisions”) and, where applicable, the
recommended best practices of the Corporate Governance Code (the
"Corporate Governance Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) during the year and up to the date of this report.

According to Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. The Company has appointed Mr. Zou Gebing as
both the chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company.
The Board believes that vesting the roles of the chairman and chief
executive officer in the same individual would enable the Company
to achieve higher responsiveness, efficiency and effectiveness when
formulating business strategies and executing business plans. The
Board believes that the balance of power and authority is sufficiently
maintained by the operation of the senior management and the
Board, which comprises experienced and high-calibre individuals. The
Board currently comprises four executive Directors (including Mr. Zou
Gebing) and three independent non-executive Directors and
therefore has a fairly strong independence element in its
composition. The Board will nevertheless review the structure and
composition of the Board from time to time in light of prevailing
circumstances, in order to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices of the Company.

Code provision C.1.2 of the Corporate Governance Code provides
that management should provide members of the board with
monthly updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment
of the issuer’s performance, position and prospects in sufficient
details to enable the board as a whole and each director to discharge
their duties under Rule 3.08 and Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules.
Although the management of the Company did not provide a regular
monthly update to the members of the Board, the management
keeps providing information and updates to the members of the
Board as and when appropriate.
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The Company will continue to review its corporate governance
practices in order to enhance its corporate governance standard,
comply with regulatory requirements and meet the growing

expectations of shareholders and investors of the Company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as a code of conduct of the
Company for Directors’ securities transactions. The Company has
made specific enquiry with its incumbent Directors regarding
compliance with the Model Code during the Reporting Period, and
they all confirmed that they had fully complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code regarding directors’ securities
transactions throughout the Reporting Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for overseeing the management, businesses,
strategic directions and financial performance of the Group. The
Board holds regular meetings to discuss the Group’s businesses and
operations. All important issues are discussed in a timely manner. The
Board delegates to the management the daily operations of the
Group under the directions set out by the management and the
Board. The Board has established various committees and has
delegated to the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
and the Nomination Committee of the Board (collectively, the “Board
Committees”) various duties. All the Board Committees perform
their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of

reference.

Pursuant to the internal guidelines of the Group, the Board shall
meet at least four times a year. Additional board meetings will be
held when warranted. The Directors at all times have full and timely
access to information of the Group. There is a procedure for Directors
to seek independent professional advice whenever deemed necessary

by them at the expense of the Company, as appropriate.
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Directors receive at least 14 days prior written notice of a regular
meeting and may propose matters for discussion to be included in
the agenda. The minutes of Board meetings are prepared by the
company secretary with details of the decisions reached, any
concerns raised and dissenting views expressed. Copies of the final
versions of Board minutes are sent to the Directors for their
information and records. The draft minutes are sent to all Directors
within a reasonable time after each meeting for their comments
before being formally signed. The signed minutes are kept in safe
custody by the company secretary and are available for inspection by
the Directors.

Insurance coverage in respect of Directors’ and officers’ liability has
been arranged by the Company.

As of the date of this report, the composition of the Board is as

follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. ZOU Gebing (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. ZENG lJin

Mr. SHEN Zhidong

Mr. WU Yueming

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. LIU Haifeng

Mr. CHU Guodi

Mr. QIAN Jun (appointed on 31 July 2020)

Mr. PANG Wing Hong (resigned on 31 July 2020)

The biographies of the Directors are set out in “Profile of Directors

and Senior Management” on page 8 to page 13 of this annual
report.
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During the Reporting Period, the attendance of the individual

Directors at the meetings is set out below:

RSN AEFREERERNT

Number of meetings attended/eligible to attend during the Reporting Period
REEHHLRE/BEREENERNY

Remuneration Nomination Audit General
Committee Committee Committee Board Meeting
Name of Director BEspg FMZzRE REZRE ENZERE Ezg RRAE
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Zou Gebing PEEEE NATEE N/A T R NA TR 1111 33
Mr. Zeng Jin BeEk N/A T N/A T i F N/A T2 A 111 33
Mr. Wu Yueming RABEE NA TR N/A T A N/A T E A 111 33
Mr. Shen Zhidong REREE NA TR N/A T A N/A T2 A 1m 33
Independent non-executive BIFHTES
Directors

Mr. Liu Haifeng ek n 33 33 11 33
Mr. Chu Guodi HESEE 212 33 33 1M 33
Mr. Qian Jun (Note 1) Bk (HEE) 000 n n 4/4 1l
Mr. Pang Wing Hong (Note 2) &k Bt £ (Fif352) 22 22 2 Vi M
Notes: B3 -

(1) Mr. Qian Jun was appointed on 31 July 2020.

(2) Mr. Pang Wing Hong resigned on 31 July 2020.

BBEEN202067A31HESRT -
EKFERENN2020F7 A31B BT -
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is to provide
independent and objective opinions to the Board, giving adequate
control and balances for the Company to protect the overall interests
of the Shareholders and the Company.

They serve actively on the Board and Board Committees to provide
their independent and objective views. In compliance with Rules
3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the Company has appointed
three independent non-executive Directors, representing more than
one-third of the Board. One of the independent non-executive
Directors has the appropriate professional qualifications in accounting
or related financial management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules.

The Board must satisfy itself that an independent non-executive
Director does not have any material relationship with the Group. The
Board is guided by the criteria of independence as set out in the
Listing Rules in determining the independence of Directors.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other, save as disclosed
under the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report. The Company has received
annual confirmation of independence from all the independent non-
executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board is of the view that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Mr. Qian Jun was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 31 July 2020, replacing Mr. Pang Wing Hong's
directorship in the Company. Mr. Qian retired and was re-elected as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 23
September 2020. Please refer to “Corporate Governance Practices”
on page 22 of this report for further details.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

All Directors are provided with timely updates on the Company’s
performance, financial position and prospects to enable the Board as
a whole and each Director to discharge their duties. In addition, the
Company arranges for and provides continuous professional
development training and relevant materials to the Directors to help
ensure they are apprised of the latest changes in the commercial,
legal and regulatory environment in which the Group conducts its
business and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the roles,
functions and duties of a listed company director. The Directors have
provided to the Company their record of continuous professional
development training, and they have participated in training activities

in the following manner:

1. Reading materials on Directors’ duties, compliance issues for

listed companies and/or legal and regulatory requirements;

2. Reading materials on corporate governance and financial

reporting; and
3. Reading materials on risk management and internal control.

Dividend policy

On 10 December 2018, the Company adopted a new dividend policy
that may declare and distribute dividends to the shareholders of the
Company, provided that the Group records a profit after tax and that
the declaration and distribution of dividends does not affect the
normal operations of the Group. The Company intends to pay out an
annual dividend payment at a payout ratio of not less than 30% of
the Group's consolidated net profit after tax for the then financial
year after taking into consideration of certain factors stated in the

Company’s announcement dated 10 December 2018.
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Board Diversity Policy (“Diversity Policy”)

The Company adopted a policy of having a diversity in the
composition of Board members so as to enhance the quality of its
performance. In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity
has been considered from a number of aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against selection criteria, having regard

for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
Diversity Policy and, from time to time, review the Diversity Policy to
ensure its effectiveness.

Nomination Policy

The Board is responsible for selection and appointment of Directors.
The Nomination Policy of the Board (the “Nomination Policy”) sets
out the criteria, process and procedures for the Nomination
Committee to recommend suitable candidates for directorship with a
view to ensuring that the Board has a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the

Company'’s business.

The Nomination Committee shall consider a number of factors in
making nominations, including but not limited to the skills and
experience of the candidate, the commitment that the candidate is
expected to devote to the Board and the competence of the
candidate in satisfying relevant legal and regulatory requirements.
The Company adopted the Diversity Policy as stated in the previous
section for achieving diversity on the Board with reference to the
Company’s business model and specific needs. The candidate to be
nominated as an INED must satisfy the independence criteria set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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If the Nomination Committee determines that an additional or
replacement director is required, the Committee may take such
measures that it considers appropriate in connection with its
identification and evaluation of a candidate. The Nomination
Committee may propose to the Board a candidate recommended or
offered for nomination by a shareholder of the Company as a
nominee for election to the Board. On making recommendation, the
Nomination Committee may submit the candidate’s personal profile
to the Board for consideration. The Board may appoint the
candidate(s) as director(s) to fill a casual vacancy(ies) or as an addition
to the Board or recommend such candidate to shareholders for

election or re-election (where appropriate) at the general meeting.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board Committees are established with defined written
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board Committees
are posted on the Company’s website and the website of the Stock
Exchange and are available to the Shareholders upon request.

All members of each Board Committee are independent non-

executive Directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of reference
in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate
Governance Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to
review and supervise the financial reporting process, internal control
system and risk management system of the Group, to oversee the
audit process and to perform other duties and responsibilities as

assigned by the Board.
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Members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Liu Haifeng, Mr. Chu
Guodi and Mr. Qian Jun. They are all independent non-executive
Directors. Mr. Qian Jun currently serves as the chairman of the Audit
Committee, replacing Mr. Pang Wing Hong, who resigned on 31 July
2020.

Pursuant to the meeting of the Audit Committee on 30 March 2021,
the Audit Committee reviewed, among other things, the audited
financial statements for 2020 with recommendations to the Board
for approval and discussed with the management and the external
auditors the accounting policies and practices which may affect the
Group, the report prepared by the external auditors covering major
findings in the course of the audit and the accounting and financial

reporting matters.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the
Corporate Governance Code. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee are to establish and review the policy and
structure of the remuneration for the Directors and senior
management and make recommendations on the remuneration
packages of individual Directors and senior management and on

other employee benefit arrangements.

The Remuneration Committee consists of all the independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chu Guodi, Mr. Liu Haifeng and Mr.
Qian Jun (appointed on 31 July 2020). Mr. Chu Guodi currently
serves as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee has assessed the performance of the
Directors and senior management of the Company, and reviewed
and recommended to the Board the remuneration policy and
structure relating to the Directors and senior management of the
Company.
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The remuneration for the Directors and senior management
comprises basic salary, retirement benefits and discretionary bonus.
Details of the amount of emoluments of Directors paid for 2020 are

set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code. The
primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on appointments of the Directors, to
assess the independence of the independent non-executive Directors,

to take up references and to consider related matters.

The Nomination Committee consists of all the independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chu Guodi, Mr. Liu Haifeng and Mr.
Qian Jun (appointed on 31 July 2020). Mr. Liu Haifeng currently
serves as the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships by making reference to
the balance of expertise, skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of such individuals, the
requirements of the business of the Group and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations. An external recruitment
agency may be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection

process when necessary.
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Further, pursuant to the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee, the Nomination Committee, when reviewing the
composition of the Board, will have regard to the diversity of the
Board, which includes gender, age, cultural and educational
background, length of service, skills, knowledge and professional
experience of the Board. The Company recognises and embraces the

benefits of diversity of Board members.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the policy for the
nomination of Directors, the structure, size and composition of the
Board and assessed independence of the independent non-executive

Directors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out in code provision D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code, namely:

(i)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on

corporate governance;

(i)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (including in relation to securities trading)

applicable to employees and Directors; and

(v)  to review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the corporate governance

report in the Company’s annual report.

The Board will continue to review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and legal and regulatory
compliance, training and continuous professional development
participations of the Directors, as well as the Company’'s compliance

with the Corporate Governance Code.
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AUDITORS" REMUNERATION

During 2020, the total fees paid/payable in respect of services
provided by the Group’s external auditors are set out below:

REET =

20204 - AN 5 [ 51 HE A BLAD 3h H AT IR
HRBE RN, FEE N 828 A

—

2020
20204
RMB’000
ARBFIT

Audit and audit related services Ert LEFTRERSE
Non-audit services: Taxation and other

professional services

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible for handling company
secretarial matters including compliance with the companies
ordinance. The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Lam Hoi
Lun. Mr. Lam has received no less than 15 hours of professional
training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board, supported by the finance and accounting department, is
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements of the
Group that give a true and fair view. In preparing the financial
statements, the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants have been
adopted. Appropriate accounting policies have also been used and
applied consistently. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast
significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going

concern.
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The statement by the auditors of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is
included in the Report of the Independent Auditors on pages 71 to
74 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The management has the responsibility to maintain appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems, and the
Board has the responsibility to review and monitor the effectiveness
of the Group's risk management and internal control systems at least
annually covering material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls, to ensure that the systems in place are
adequate and effective. The Group adopts a risk management system
which manages the risk associated with its business and operations.
The system comprises the following phases:

Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business objectives
and risks that could affect the achievement of
objectives.

Evaluation: Analyse the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective

communication to the Board and on-going
monitor the residual risks.
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The Company has in place an internal control system which is

compatible with The Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (“COSO") 2013 framework. The COSO
framework enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding

effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial

reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The

five key components of the COSO framework are shown as follows:

Control

Environment:

Risk Assessment:

Control Activities:

Information and

Communication:

Monitoring:

A set of standards, processes and structures
that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group.

A dynamic and iterative process for identifying
and analysing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining

how risks should be managed.

Action established by policies and procedures
to help ensure that management directives to
mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives
are carried out.

Internal and external communication to provide
the Group with the information needed to
carry out day-to-day controls.

Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each component of internal control is
present and functioning.
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The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are,
however, designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and

not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group has conducted an annual review on whether there is a
need for an internal audit department. Given the Group's relatively
simple corporate and operation structure, as opposed to diverting
resources to establish a separate internal audit department, the
Board, supported by the Audit Committee, is directly responsible for
risk management and internal control systems of the Group and for

reviewing its effectiveness.

During the Reporting Period, the Company engaged an external
independent adviser with professional staff in possession of relevant
expertise to conduct an independent review of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group in order to maintain high
standards of corporate governance. The review plan has been
approved by the Board and the Audit Committee. The Board and the
Audit Committee had also reviewed the resources, staff qualifications
and experience and training programs of the external independent

adviser and considered they are adequate and sufficient.

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of the
relevant obligations under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap.
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO") and the Listing Rules.
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In order to enhance the Group's system of handling inside
information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness
and timeliness of its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and
implements an inside information policy and procedures. Certain
reasonable measures have been taken from time to time to ensure
that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure

requirement in relation to the Group, which include:

1. The access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are in
possession of inside information are fully conversant with their

obligations to preserve confidentiality.

2. Confidentiality covenants will be in place when the Group
enters into significant negotiations.

In addition, all employees are required to strictly adhere to the rules
and regulations regarding the management of inside information,
including that all employees who, because of his/her office or
employment, is likely to be in possession of inside information in
relation to the Company, are required to comply with the securities
transaction rules adopted by the Company which are on terms no
less exacting than those required under the Listing Rules.

The Board and the Audit Committee had reviewed the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report

and believes that the existing systems are adequate and effective.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for the
Shareholders to exchange views directly with the Board. Subject to
provisions of the applicable laws in the Cayman Islands and the
Listing Rules, the Articles require that an annual general meeting
("AGM") of the Company to be held each year and at the venue as
determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than an AGM,
is called an extraordinary meeting.

According to the Articles, any one or more members holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the

transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be

reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS BY SHAREHOLDERS AT GENERAL
MEETING

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company, a
Shareholder should lodge a written notice of his/her/its proposal (the
“Proposal”) with his/her/its detailed contact information to the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong. The
identity of the Shareholder and his/her/its request will be verified with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong and upon
confirmation by the Company’s branch share registrar that the
request is proper and in order and made by a Shareholder, the Board
will determine in its sole discretion whether the Proposal may be

included in the agenda for the general meeting.
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PUTTING ENQUIRIES BY SHAREHOLDERS TO THE
BOARD

Shareholders may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent such information is publicly available and
the Company has an investor relationship personnel to attend to
enquiries from the Shareholders. Details of the contact person are set

out below:

Name: Mr. Xu Jing

Telephone:  (852) 2106 3218

Email: benson.xu@morrisholdings.com.hk

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company and/or by sending them to the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at the following
correspondence address and addressing to the Board:

Address: Unit 2001, 20/F, Citicorp Centre, 18 Whitfield Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings,
share transfer, share registration and payment of dividend to Tricor
Investor Services Limited (the Company’s branch share registrar in

Hong Kong). Contact details of Tricor Investor Services Limited are set

out below:

Address: Level 54, Hopewell Centre 183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

Telephone:  (852) 2980 1333

Fax: (852) 2810 8185

Email: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board and senior management maintain a continuing dialogue
with the Shareholders and investors through various channels
including the Company’s AGM to answer Shareholders’ questions.
The chairman and other members of the Board are present at the
AGM. The annual report and AGM circular is distributed to all the
Shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the AGM.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company establishes different communication channels with
investors to update them with the latest business development and
financial performance including the AGM, the publication of annual
reports, announcements and circulars on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company in order to maintain a high level of

transparency.

MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATION

The Company adopted an amended and restated memorandum of
association on 10 December 2016 and amended and restated articles

of association on the Listing Date.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEERE

The Directors present this annual report and the audited consolidated

financial statements of the Company for 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The review of business performance of the Group, the Group’s
business prospect and the financial key performance indicators
during 2020 are set out in the sections headed “Financial Highlights”,
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on page 5, pages 6 to 7 and pages 14 to 19 respectively of

this annual report. The content is part of this directors’ report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACING
THE COMPANY

The principal risks and uncertainties of the Group during the
Reporting Period is set out in the sections headed “Principal Risks and
Uncertainties” on pages 20 to 21 respectively of this annual report.

The content is part of this directors’ report.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND
COMPLIANCE WITH LAW AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to supporting the environmental
sustainability. Being manufacturing and trading companies in the
PRC, the Group is subject to various environmental laws and
regulations set by the PRC national, provincial and municipal
governments. Compliance procedures are in place to ensure
adherence to applicable laws, rules and regulations. During 2020, the
Group has complied with relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact on the operations of the Group. Further, any
changes in applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the
attention of relevant employees and relevant operation units from

time to time.

A report on the environmental, social and governance aspects is
prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules will be
published on the Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s websites as
close as possible to, and in any event no later than three months

after, the publication of the Company’s annual report.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as the holding company of the Group and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of

sofas, sofa covers and other furniture products.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for 2020 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page

75 of this annual report.

The Board did not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the shares of the
Company.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during 2020 in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 13 to the consolidated

financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company are set out in note 28 to the

Company'’s financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Restricted Share Award
Scheme” below, the Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase,
sell or redeem any of the listed securities of the Company during
2020.

42 MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

ETEXK
ARFTARREBOEBRAF - MM EAR
AEBEBREERBEDE PRER
H R BEM -

RER DK

REER2020F M EEHN AR FRETS
MG AEELEMEERER -

EECTEZNE 20206128318 1k
FEIRMNEMRE -

BIRR R

ARBAETAEBAEMRREFEARE
i mMEARERR

M - BB KRR

AEBEYME  BERRER2020F 0 &
PHBHENGETBRRMT13 -

ST

AR B AFFB RN AN R B/ 758K M R
28 °

BE HEIEEIALFTNLT
i 25

B T X RSB 2R &) | — &P iR
EFHN 0 R2020%F - ARFHEKE R A
BEBE HEXBEREFAARFN LT

ErETaN

RS



DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEEHmE (&)

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to approximately RMB97.8 million (31 December 2019:
RMB105.5 million).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Five year financial summary are set in the sections headed “Five Year

Financial Summary” on page 212 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during 2020 and up to the date of this annual report

were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. ZOU Gebing (Chairman and CEQ)
Mr. ZENG Jin

Mr. SHEN Zhidong

Mr. WU Yueming

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. LIU Haifeng

Mr. CHU Guodi

Mr. QIAN Jun

Mr. PANG Wing Hong

(appointed on 31 July 2020)
(resigned on 31 July 2020)

In accordance with paragraph 83(3) of the Articles, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until
the first general meeting of shareholders after his appointment and
be subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed
by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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Further, pursuant to paragraph 84(1) of the Articles, one-third of the
Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an AGM
at least once every three years and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election for the forthcoming year. According to paragraph
84(2) of the Articles, any Director appointed by the Board pursuant
to Article 83(3) shall not be taken into account in determining which
particular Directors or the number of Directors who are to retire by
rotation. Details of the re-electing directors at the forthcoming AGM
will be set out in the Company’s circular to be dispatched to the
Shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a fixed term of three years commencing from
the Listing Date or the date of appointment, unless terminated by
not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either party

on the other expiring at the end of the initial term.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company. There is no specific term or
proposed length of service for the independent non-executive
Directors under the letters of appointment. They are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at AGM of the Company at
least once every three years and until terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either the Company or the
respective independent non-executive Director.

No Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has a service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS” INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as those disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions” and the
related party transactions as disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance in relation to the Company’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director or a connected entity of a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at 31 December 2020 or
at any time during 2020.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provision of the SFO),
or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code, are set out below:
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(i) The Company (i) Z&AF
Number of Approximate
Name of Director/ securities  percentage of
chief executive Nature of Interest (Note 1) shareholding
BEx TETBABHSA EEME #HHE E R4
(PFFEET) BatE
Mr. Zou Gebing (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 750,000,000 Shares (L) 75%

s k4 (HEE2) REEE R

Note 1: The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such Shares.

Note 2: Morris Capital Limited (“Morris Capital”) is owned as to 85% by Mr.
Zou Gebing. Under the SFO, Mr. Zou Gebing will therefore be deemed,
or taken to be, interested in the same number of Shares in which Morris

Capital is interested.

750,000,000/% (L)

B FRILURRZRATREERGH
A -

2 REEABRAFN(REEE]) M
1o 5 o A BEAB5%  IRIEH % R
B B S AR R B R
CEI S 2F ETOCES Lk
A -

KAERAR AT 2020 F3R] 45



DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEEWmE (&)

(ii) Morris Capital (Note 1)

Name of Director/
chief executive Nature of Interest

EE TETHAEBHS EastE

(i) BREARMEE)

Number of Approximate
securities  percentage of
(Note 2) shareholding
EZHE 1 RERR

(PFFEE2) BatE
Mr. Zou Gebing Beneficial owner 85 Shares of 85%
MIEELE BEREAA US$1 each (L)

Note 1:  Morris Capital holds more than 50% of the Shares. Therefore, Morris
Capital is the holding company and an associated corporation of the
Company.

Note 2: The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such Shares.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief executives of
the Company had any other personal, family, corporate and other
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code as at 31 December 2020.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2020, the following persons (other than the

Directors or the chief executive of the Company) have interests or

short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the

register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of

FERRWER

A2020F 128318 M FAL(ESHA
NAEIEBITHABBRIN) PR 17 8 48 B8 B
DHRBEEANAKRQRIREZE A RHEE
ME336EFEMNESLMAERIAE -

the SFO:
Number of  Percentage of
Shares/underlying Shares of
Shares held  the Company
(Note 1) inissue
FER®E LR NN
Shareholders Nature of interest HERGEE 2RITRSG
%R EaHE Ci=ap Bk
Morris Capital (Note 2) Beneficial owner 750,000,000 Shares (L) 75% (L)
REER(ME2) EmERA 750,000,000/%(L)
Wu Xiangfei (Note 3) Interest of spouse 750,000,000 Shares (L) 75% (L)
SBr A (M 5E3) B m 750,000,000f%(L)
Morris ESOP (Note 4) Trustee 70,010,000 Shares (L) 7% (L)
Morris ESOP ({54 ) EFEA 70,010,0000%(L)
Haining NTDC (Note 5) Security interest 750,000,000 Shares (L) 75% (L)
BEMAHEMBERR(MES) REER 750,000,000/%(L)
Note 1: The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such Shares. M1 - FRILIRKRZBATRZERMDELTE -
Note 2:  Morris Capital is owned as to 85% by Mr. Zou Gebing and 15% by Ms. Wu Mizk2 : HABABITRELEEHEBES % KA ESAR
Xiangfei. ZHHEH15% °
Note 3: Ms. Wu Xiangfei is the spouse of Mr. Zou Gebing. Under the SFO, Ms. Wu MizE3: BMARLT2FRELLENER - RIBEES
Xiangfei will therefore be deemed, or taken to be, interested in the same REE G - BEm TR £ 115 A it 1 4R A 3 1%
number of Shares in which Mr. Zou Gebing is interested. BERBEREAEREEENRSEHE RN
PGS o
Note 4: These shares are held by Morris ESOP Development Limited (“Morris ESOP"), f5E4 : 2R EThe Core Trust Company Limited

Note 5:

which is wholly owned by The Core Trust Company Limited (as trustee of the
Award Scheme), for the benefit of certain participants eligible under and
pursuant to the term of the restricted share award scheme of the Company (the
“Award Scheme") as adopted by the Board on 29 August 2019. For further
details, please refer to the announcement made by Company on 29 August
2019 and the paragraph headed “Restricted Share Award Scheme” above in
this report.

According to the disclosure of interest filing made by the relevant person, /&2
M AMEEZ AR AR (Haining New Town Development and
Construction Co., Ltd.) (“Haining NTDC") had a security interest in the
750,000,000 Shares held by Morris Capital.

B 5E5 -

(BB TEIMZTA) 2B A M Morris
ESOP Development Limited ([ Morris ESOP])
e XaARRBEZEN2019F8H29
HER A H) A 2 B R IR (0 52 @)=+ &1 ([ 52 B
SEDNGETIMHERERNE TLESE - &
BHELHARRN2019F8A29BMAE &
ARIRE X Z R IR RE T8 ] — & -

BEABATRINEZHEES  BED
HMERAEERARAR ([FENHHEE
BERIRNERTERRFE 750,000,000k
RDFPHEBRE =
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Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any
other person (other than the Directors and chief executives of the
Company) who had an interest or short position in the Shares and/or
underlying Shares of the Company which fell to be disclosed to the
Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as at 31
December 2020.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the Company’s business were
entered into or existed during 2020.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group is well aware of the importance of incentivising and
retaining its employees. The Group offers competitive remuneration
packages to its employees and makes contributions to social security
insurance funds (including pension plans, medical insurance, work-
related injury insurance, unemployment insurance and maternity
insurance) and housing fund for its employees. The Remuneration
Committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s emolument policy and
remuneration package of the Directors and chief executive of the
Group, having regard to the Group’s overall operating results,

individual performance and comparable market practices.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Restricted Share Award Scheme (the “Award Scheme”) was
adopted by the Board on 29 August 2019 (the “Adoption Date”) as
an incentive to retain and encourage employees for the continual
operation and development of the Group. During the year under
review, the trustee of the Award Scheme, pursuant to the terms of
the rules and trust deed of the Award Scheme, acquired 75,812,000
shares of the Company by way of acquisition at an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$10,679,284 (including transaction
costs) representing approximately 7.58% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the Adoption Date.
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Details of the remuneration of the Directors for 2020 are set out in

note 8 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company,
or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
(including their spouse and children under 18 years of age) to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of,

the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

There were no competing business of which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at 31 December
2020 or at any time during 2020.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of Morris Capital, Mr. Zou Gebing and Ms. Wu Xiangfei (each a
“Non-Compete Covenantor”) has entered into a deed of non-
competition (“Deed of Non-competition”) dated 10 December
2016 with the Company, to the effect that each of them will not
directly or indirectly participate in, or hold any right or interest, or
otherwise be involved in any business which may be in competition
with the business of the Group from time to time.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of the Non-
Compete Covenantors in respect of their compliance with the non-
competition undertakings under the Deed of Non-competition during
2020.

The independent non-executive Directors also reviewed the Non-
Compete Covenantors’ compliance with the non-competition
undertakings. The independent non-executive Directors confirmed
that the Non-Compete Covenantors were not in breach of the non-

competition undertakings during 2020.

2008 MEEHFHFRENAFRES
PATSERAR I FES ©

BEROIEEENZH

REREFREH - XRF] - HERQFHK
HB AR BME L EM L FEF
(BIEERMBRI8EHNA T F)A#EE
AR B AT fA] B A B 9 B A Sk (B HE RE
s -

EERBEFXEBES

R 2020F 12 A31 B 8 72020 4 (L {a] iF
M BEEENABRFELTEEXBEE
B EARER -

THFRE

RBAER  PHRELAERSBARLZ T (&
BITBRBENFHEHEARAEZA
HIA2016F 12 A10B M TR ERE (TR
BMERE])  RAEASTEEEIHES
HA g EAEE TR EENERRFMNE
BT EABRENS R T AENU
Hp F TR AR B TR E & 3
BHFHEMER -

R2020%F @ ARR BRI TBmFRZOT
PR FRBE B FRE BT I B F AT
HHNFEER -

BUFEHTEENEEN TR RO
FRBFREOER - BUFNTEER
R FHFROHR2020% 1 ®ERT
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Non-Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

During 2020, the Group had the following non-exempt continuing
connected transactions, details of which are set out below:

The Lease Agreements with Morris PRC

Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Co., Ltd (formerly known as “Haining
Gelin Furniture Co., Ltd.”), (“Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home"),
Zhejiang Apollo Leather Products Co., Ltd. (“Zhejiang Apollo
Leather Products”), Haining Morris Home Gallery Co., Ltd.
("Haining Morris Home Gallery”), and Haining Morris International
Home Furnishings Co., Ltd. (“Haining Morris International”), each
as tenant entered into the lease agreements with Morris PRC as
landlord on 1 January 2016 for the lease of various premises located
in Haining, Zhejiang Province, PRC for factory, direct sale store and
office use. However, as the area of leased properties was insufficient
to meet the production requirements of the Group, Zhejiang Morris
Fashion Home, Haining Morris Home Gallery and Haining Morris
International (each as tenant) entered into lease agreements with
Morris PRC (as landlord) on 17 March 2017 for the lease of leased
properties located in Haining, Zhejiang Province, PRC for factory,
exhibition hall, dormitory, canteens, office and research and
development center use for a term of three years commencing from
17 March 2017 and expiring on 16 March 2020. The major terms of

the lease agreements are as follows:

FREBFEBRERS

20204 - AR IFH % 35 EREIE R
HEEMT :

HEATENHEERHZ

MIRARHMRKEAERAR (AIHENEE
BMRXEERAA]  [WIEERKER
Bl -WIMEERERSBRAFTN
IMEERERS])  SERFERRE
ERAGB([BERFURRE]) MEER
REBREERAG([BERRER])
(FEEAER)ERAFRE(EAEZIRN
201641 A1 H 5 BBt & G2 5, BT
EHEMNZEERE  BEEERRAE
Rt mETIRERZ - A - BRHA
EVERBEIREAEENEET K -

MIREBRRRE  BERBFERIE R
BERTER(ZEFEAER)EREF

(EBEX)M2017F3A178 9 R HE
NRPRENIESEMERE - EE - &
2. BY¥ PAERWERDLBAERNEE
WEFTLHE RS - HAB2017F3 417
H#EZ2020F3 168 1L A =F - HE
WEAEZBRAT

Rent per

Leased area annum

(sq. m.) (RMB)

Lease agreements Term Tenant Landlord HERR £

HEHE HR BE ¥ (E5K) (AR¥T)

Property A 1 January 2016 to 1 January 2026 Zhejiang Apollo Leather Products Morris PRC 40,226.08  2,896,277.76

Lease Agreement (both days inclusive)

NEAAETE 2016F1R1HZ2026% 1716 MIMREN 28 m RADE

(BfEEEMA)
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Rent per
Leased area annum
(sq. m.) (RMB)
Lease agreements Term Tenant Landlord HERE £8
BElhE HR BE E£3 (FAK) (AE#7)
Property B 1 January 2016 to 1 January 2026 Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Morris PRC 19,990.35  1,439,305.20
Lease Agreement (both days inclusive) (formerly known as “Haining
Morris Home Gelin Furniture”)
EBEEHE 201651 8152202651418 MIRARRRE RETH
(REERMA) (FIRIEEBHEA])
Property C 1 January 2016 to 1 January 2026 Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Morris PRC 3931200 2,830,464.00
Lease Agreement (both days inclusive) (formerly known as “Haining
Morris Home Gallery Furniture”)
NECEERE 201651 A18Z202651A18  MIBEKHFE RETH
(REEEMA) (FIBIEERBERZRE])
Property D 1 January 2016 to 1 January 2026 Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Morris PRC 1,000.00 72,000.00
Lease Agreement (both days inclusive) (formerly known as “Haining
Morris International”)
WEDEEE 201651 A18Z220651A18 MIBBKHEE RETH
(REERMA) (AR BERAER])
Property E 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020 Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Morris PRC 4,608.00 331,776.00
Lease Agreement (both days inclusive) (formerly known as “Haining
Morris International )
NxERERE 017538170 £202063A168  MIRARHEE RATE
(BEERMA) (AR BERRER])
Property F 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020 Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Morris PRC 9,300.00 669,600.00
Lease Agreement (both days inclusive) (formerly known as “Haining
Morris Home Gelin Furniture”)
ESTAE 017538170 2202063 168 MIRBRHEE RATE
(BEERMA) (FIRIEERHKA])
Property G 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020 Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Morris PRC 40,474.00  2,914,128.00
Lease Agreement (both days inclusive) (formerly known as “Haining
Morris Home Gallery Furniture”)
NECGHEERS 017538170 2202083A168  MIRARHEE RETE
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Rent per
Leased area annum
(sq. m.) (RMB)
Lease agreements Term Tenant Landlord HERE £8
BElhE HR BE E£3 (FAK) (AE#7)
Property H 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020 Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Morris PRC 2053200  1,478,304.00
Lease Agreement (both days inclusive) (formerly known as “Haining
Morris Home Gallery Furniture”)
WENHE RS 2017F3/1785202063A168  MIRARRZAE RETH
(REEEMA) (FIBIEERRERZRE])
Property | 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020 Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Morris PRC 19,723.00  1,420,056.00
Lease Agreement (both days inclusive) (formerly known as “Haining
Morris Home Gelin Furniture”)
EYE 20173178 5202093A168  MIRABRERE RETH
(REEEMA) (FIBIEERHEA])
Property J 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020 Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Morris PRC 6,400.00 460,800.00
Lease Agreement (both days inclusive) (formerly known as “Haining
Morris International”)
hEIEERE 017538170 £202063 168 MIRARHEE RETH

The aggregated annual caps of the lease agreements for the
years ended 31 December 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020 were
originally fixed at RMB15 million, RMB15 million, RMB15
million and RMB15 million, respectively. For further details of

the lease agreement, please refer to the announcement of the

(BfEERMA)

Company dated 17 March 2017.

(FRIEEREER))

HEWMZREZ20174F - 20184 ~ 2019
FR2020F12A31A L FERANFE
IRBERASREAARKISEET
ARBISEERL ARBISBEETRA
R¥15s88T - AEHEEHZNE—DPF

15 B2EAARIBEA2017F3/817H

MRS o
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On 8July 2020, Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home entered into the
2020 Lease Renewal Agreement with Morris PRC (as modified
by the supplemental agreement dated 21 August 2020) to
renew the leases of the 2020 Leased Properties for three
years from 17 March 2020 to 16 March 2023, to set out the
increased annual rents from the date of signing of the 2020
Lease Agreements (subject to the obtaining of approval from
the Independent Shareholders) and to revise the annual caps
of the lease agreements for the years ending 31 December
2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023 to become RMB16,020,000,
RMB21,622,000, RMB21,622,000 and RMB10,194,000 (on the
basis that the 2020 Lease Agreements shall end on 16 March
2023).

Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home is a company established in the
PRC with limited liability, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company and the surviving entity of the merger with
Haining Morris Home Gallery and Haining Morris International.
As a result of the merger which took place on 22 October 2018,
Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home has become the tenant of all the
2017 Leased Properties in succession of Haining Morris Home
Gallery and Haining Morris International. Zhejiang Morris
Fashion Home was formerly known as “Haining Gelin Furniture
Co., Ltd.” and was renamed to its current name on 5 September
2017.

The leases of the 2020 Leased Properties renewed under the
2020 Lease Agreements were Properties E, F, G and H, with
their annual rents increases summarized as below:

M2020F7A8H  HIIRARHREH
RAFPRFT2020FHEEEH= (K H
B3 A2020F 8 A21HM @RS R) -
NEZ2020F HEMENEE=-F (8
202043 A17H#E2023F3716R8) -
#HINBE2020F HEHEFFT 2 ARG M
MER(BESIRGBY RSN E) - I
FHEWMSHREZ=2020F » 20214 ~ 2022
FN2023F12A3MBEFENFE L
RIEET A AR 16,020,000 * AR
21,622,0007C + AR#21,622,0007T &
AR#10,194,00070 (LA2020F A E i
R2023F3A16HERABEAE) -

MIRBHRRERNFEXINERA
A RARRNHEEE2ENBLAR RS
ERFUERRELSERTEREHNT

BEONIREARERKECEREEEERT
HRRELEBERTERKRME2017
FHEMENEE - TR HFKE Al
BOEEBRMARABRAA ] XMN2017
FOASHEE REBEMBM -

2020 F HEWMZEE2020FHEWERN
HEAEWEE - F GRH - FHEEE
s

New annual rents
under 2020 Lease

Old annual rents
under 2017 Lease

Agreements Agreements

BIE20175F RE20205F

Lease area HEBEN HEWBRN

Premises LIES HEER EfH FEME
(sg.m.) (RMB) (RMB)

(FFFHXK) (ARM ) (ARMET)

Property E Y EE 4,608.00 331,776 884,736
Property F L 9,300.00 669,600 1,785,600
Property G YI%G 40,474.00 2,914,128 7,771,008
Property H S ES 20,532.00 1,478,304 3,942,144
Total: st 5,393,808 14,383,488
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For the avoidance of doubt, the 2016 Lease Agreements (i.e.
Properties A to D) are continuing until 1 January 2026 with the
annual rents for the 2016 Leased Properties being unchanged
at RMB7,238,046.96, while the leases of Properties | and J
were allowed to lapse by mutual agreement at the end of the
three-year period of the 2017 Lease Agreements on 16 March
2020. For further details of the renewal of the lease agreements, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 8 July 2020 and 21
August 2020.

As the entire issued share capital of Morris PRC is owned by Mr. Zou
Gebing and Ms. Wu Xiangfei, Morris PRC is, accordingly, an associate
of Mr. Zou Gebing and is therefore a connected person of the
Company pursuant to Rule 14A.07 of the Listing Rules.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios with respect to
the Revised Annual Caps is more than 5%, the 2020 Lease Renewal
Agreement and the Revised Annual Caps are subject to the annual
review, annual reporting, announcement, circular (including
independent financial advice) and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The 2020 Lease Renewal Agreement and the Revised Annual Caps
are approved by the Independent Shareholders at the EGM on 23
September 2020. Upon the obtaining of Independent Shareholders
approval, the 2020 Lease Agreements were entered into on 23
September 2020 with the rental increases for Properties E, F, G and
H taking effect on 23 September 2020.
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The continuing connected transactions mentioned above have been
reviewed by the independent non-executive Directors who have
confirmed that the transactions have been entered into: (a) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Company; (b) on normal
commercial terms; and (c) in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing such transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing
their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Company in this annual report in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock

Exchange.
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Connected Transactions

According to the terms of the sale and purchase agreement dated 4
July 2018 entered into amongst the Company, Morris PRC and Mr.
Zou Gebing regarding the acquisition (the “Acquisition”) of all the
issued and outstanding common stock (the “Target Shares”) of
Jennifer Convertibles Inc. by the Company, if Jennifer Convertibles
Inc. and its subsidiaries (the “Target Group”) records an audited net
loss after tax (excluding profits and losses not arising from the
ordinary and usual course of business) for any of the two years
ending 31 December 2019 or 2020, the Company may serve an
option notice to exercise the put option and to require Morris PRC to
repurchase the Target Shares at the exit price equivalent to the
consideration for the Acquisition of US$35 million (HK$273 million)
(the “Exit Price”). On 31 March 2020, the Company served the
option notice on Morris PRC and Mr. Zou Gebing stating its decision
to exercise the put option to require Morris PRC to repurchase the
Target Shares at the Exit Price. The option notice was accepted by
Morris PRC and Mr. Zou Gebing on the same date and the

transaction was completed on 14 August 2020.

As Morris PRC and Mr. Zou Gebing are connected persons of the
Company, the exercise of the put option (together with the
Receivables Disposal) constitute connected transactions for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The exercise of the
put option and the Receivables Disposal are therefore subject to the
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules. The disposal of Jennifer
Convertibles Inc. and the Receivables Disposal were approved by
Independent Shareholders at the EGM on 21 July 2020, and were
completed on 14 August 2020. Details of the connected transactions

were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 31 March 2020.

A summary of the significant related party transactions of the
Company during 2020 (not constituting connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions) is disclosed in note 34 to the
financial statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The corporation governance report of the Group during the
Reporting Period is set out in the sections headed “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 22 to 40 of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During 2020, sales to the Group’s five largest customers and
purchases from the five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
62.4% and 78.2% of the total revenue and purchases for the year,
respectively. The Group’s largest customer accounted for around
14.8% of the total revenue for the year. The Group's largest supplier

accounted for around 26.4% of the total purchase for the year.

At no time during 2020 did a Director, a close associate of a Director
or a Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) have an

interest in any of the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution
of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto. The
Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against the Directors
and officers arising out of corporate activities. The level of the

coverage is reviewed annually.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed in this annual report relating to share option
scheme, no equity-linked agreements were entered into during
2020 or subsisted as at 31 December 2020.
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

The share options scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company on 10 December 2016. The Share Option
Scheme allows the Company to grant options to the following
eligible person(s) (the “Eligible person(s)”), namely, any full-time or
part-time employee of the Company or any member of the Group,
including any executive Director, non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Director, adviser and consultant of the
Group. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to the Eligible Persons as incentives or

rewards for their contribution to the Group.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised as

follows:

1. The limit on the total number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes which may be adopted by
the Group from time to time pursuant to which options to
subscribe for Shares may be granted (the “Other Schemes”)
must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as
at the Listing Date (which shall be 100,000,000 Shares) unless
Shareholders” approval has been obtained, and which must not

exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time.

As at 31 December 2020 and the date of this report, the total
number of Shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme is 100,000,000 Shares, which represents 10% of the
issued Shares as at 31 December 2020 or the date of this

report.
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The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to an Eligible Person under the
Share Option Scheme and Other Schemes in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue from time to
time, and provided that if approved by Shareholders in general
meeting with such Eligible Persons abstained from voting, the
Company may make further grant of options to such Eligible
Person notwithstanding that the further grant would result in
the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and Other Scheme in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of the further grant representing in aggregate over 1%
of the Shares in issue from time to time.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Board to each Eligible Person
provided that the period within which the option must be
exercised shall not be more than 10 years from the date of the
grant of option.

HK$1.00 shall be paid by the grantee to the Company by way
of consideration for the grant.

The subscription price for the Shares subject to options will be
a price determined by our Board and notified to each
participant and shall be the highest of (i) the closing price of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the date of grant of the options, which must be a
trading day; (i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant of the

options; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years commencing on the Listing Date.
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Other details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the
Prospectus. No share options were granted, exercised or cancelled by
the Company under the share option scheme during the period from
the listing date to 31 December 2020 and there were no outstanding
share options under the share option scheme as at 31 December
2020 and the date of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
although there is no restriction against such rights under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirm that
the Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required

under the Listing Rules since the Listing Date.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The previous auditor of the Group, EY was re-appointed as auditor of
the Group at the last AGM of the Company held on 17 May 2018 to
hold office until the conclusion of the following AGM of the
Company. However, as the Company and EY had been unable to
reach an agreement on the estimated additional fees as detailed in
the Company’s announcement dated 2 May 2019, HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB") was appointed as the new auditor of
the Group with effect from 21 May 2019 upon the removal of EY,
until the conclusion of the following AGM of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other changes in the auditors
of the Company during the past three years.

The consolidated financials statements of the Company for the years
ended 31 December 2018 onwards were audited by HLB, who will
retire at the AGM and a resolution for the re-appointment as the
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.
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CONVERTIBLE LOAN

On 5 January 2018, the Company entered into a convertible loan
agreement (“Convertible Loan Agreement”) with International
Finance Corporation (“IFC”), pursuant to which IFC agreed to lend,
and the Company agreed to borrow, a convertible loan
(“Convertible Loan") in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$200,000,000. Please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 5 January 2018 and 24 January 2018 for further
details. Pursuant to the Convertible Loan Agreement and as one of
the conditions of disbursement, each of Mr. Zou, Ms. Wu Xiangfei,
Mr. Zou's spouse and one of the controlling shareholders of the
Company, Morris PRC, a company owned as to 85% by Mr. Zou and
as to 15% by Ms. Wu, and IFC entered into a share retention and
undertaking agreement pursuant to which, among others, Mr. Zou
has undertaken to at all times maintain his controlling stake (being
not less than 51% interests) in the Company and Morris PRC and not
to transfer his shares in Morris Capital, one of the controlling
shareholders of the Company and owned as to 85% by Mr. Zou and
15% by Ms. Wu, or Morris PRC if, giving effect to such transfer, Mr.
Zou will not be able to maintain his controlling stake in the Company
or Morris PRC mentioned above for so long as any part of the
Convertible Loan is outstanding or any amount is available for
disbursement under the Convertible Loan Agreement and for so long

as IFC holds any equity securities of the Company.

As a result of the suspension in trading in the shares of the Company
from 28 March 2019, the carrying amount of liability of the
convertible loan to the principal amount was adjusted and the same
was reallocated from non-current liabilities to current liabilities in
order to reflect such continuance. On 20 April 2019, 23 May 2019,
12 June 2019 and 30 September 2019, the Company entered into
four amendment agreements respectively with the lender of the
convertible loan for the agreed schedule of certain permitted
prepayments of the convertible loan. As at 31 December 2019, the
outstanding principal of the convertible loan was HK$110,967,128.
Under the agreed schedule as provided in the abovementioned
amendment agreements, the Company agreed to repay by 11
installments between 15 June 2019 and 28 December 2019.
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In December 2019, the Company’s subsidiary has pledged our

Cambodia lease rights and respective tenant lease rights to IFC. In

February 2020, the Company has received the waiver letter from IFC,

allowing the Company to not make any payments to IFC from

January to April 2020. On 29 May 2020, the Company was granted

a temporary waiver by IFC to postpone the installments from 28

January 2020 to 28 April 2020. At the same time, the repayment

schedule was renewed with an extended payment period.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a) Major and connected transaction in relation to

62

the disposal of the entire share capital of a
subsidiary

On 8 January 2021, Morris International Group Limited (the
“Vendor”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and Morris Capital Limited (the “Purchaser”), a connected
person of the Company, entered into the share purchase
agreement, pursuant to which the Vendor agreed to sell, and
the Purchaser agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital
of of Masia Investment Limited (the “Disposal Company”),
for the aggregate consideration of US$5.513 million
(approximately RMB36 million). Further, it is agreed between
the Vendor and the Purchaser that the Purchaser shall take the
Disposal Company with the current liabilities of the Disposal
Group. The transaction was completed on 9 March 2021.
Further details of the disposal of the Disposal Company were
set out in the announcements of the Company dated 8 January
2021 and 9 March 2021 and the circular of the Company
dated 18 February 2021.
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(b) Proposed change of company name

The Company proposes to change the English name of the
Company from “Morris Holdings Limited” to “Morris Home
Holdings Limited” and to adopt the Chinese name "RAXK/&E
R BPR AT as the dual foreign name of the Company to
replace the existing Chinese name "HZAEIAR QA" (the
“Change of Company Name"”), subject to the obtaining of
shareholders’ approval at an extraordinary meeting of the
Company (the “"EGM"). Further details of Change of Company
Name were set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 24 February 2021 and the circular of the Company dated
10 March 2021.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to thank my fellow Directors, as
well as the management and all employees for the contribution they
have made towards the Group’s continued progress, and to thank all
the Shareholders, customers and business partners for their support.

On Behalf of the Board

ZOU Gebing
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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M &3t F A R E
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Morris
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 75 to 211, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including

a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters

BRENEE

BASRERTE R

BREFEETRERMNVEERHE - R
RYEAMEEVBBRRNETR/ESR
MEIR ELEEIEEGAVBHRRE
BETEMLTAERNER TETRE
B R THEEFERIEHERENER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ATMARERRESNEE

Provision against obsolete and slow-moving inventories

RERBEGFERE

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and accounting policies on note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements

BRASAMBREME 16 MG MBRRM T2 A G IR

As at 31 December 2020, the Group recorded inventories of approximately
RMB171,229,000 after provision against obsolete and slow-moving inventories
of RMB39,848,000, which accounted for 25.3% of the Group's total assets.
M2020612A310 ° ESERRELEEFEREAR39,848,000
TRBEEEHARE171,229,000T - h EXEEELEM253% °

Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment of provision against obsolete
and slow moving inventories included:
BMRERENRE R ERE S BBAET LT
THRFELHE

. Evaluating the estimates made by
management and used to determine the
provision obsolete and slow-moving
inventories during the year and compare to
the provisions made in prior year;

o HREEBEMELARBTFARERE
BEERENME  TERATFEELD
BBETHEE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueD)

Key audit matters

HRESTER

B E

SFEE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ATNEERRENER

Provision against obsolete and slow-moving inventories (Continued)

RERBEGFERE(E)

The provision against obsolete and slow-moving inventories is estimated based
on the net realisable value of the inventories with reference to the latest invoice
prices and current market conditions. The Group manufactures sofas, sofa
covers and other furniture products which are subject to changing consumer
demands and fashion trends of the sofa industry, and this increases the level of
judgement involved in estimating inventory provision. We focused on this area
because significant judgement is required to assess the provision for items
which may be ultimately obsolete or sold below cost as a result of a reduction
in consumer demand. Such judgements include management’s expectations for
future sales of goods and product durability and market value of materials used
in the production.

RELERFERE 2R EZBRRENMARETEERFE
st EEEANSE VBENE#MRAEER ié%‘@ﬂﬁ%ﬁ%%

HECHHEBEEFRREHBY  REFERESROHBKTERE
B o RMBREZAE - AR FEEERER RO MARKBHX
MERKABRHENRERERRELEAHE - LSHEBREEE
HRAERHENNERERMAEAREEMAMHNTIEER -

We focused on this area due to the size of the balances and the judgement
exercised by management in determining the obsolete and slow-moving
inventories.

BMBIZEE AN ERREARERRNETRERERFERITRE
HOH B o
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Based

Performing a recalculation, on a sample basis,
of the inventories provision made on
individual inventory;

HWEEHMAERERNFEELNFERE

Sample checking on the subsequent selling
price of finished goods; and

HERERRREREE X

Checking the aging profile of inventories, the
historical sales and usage records of the
inventories.

REFENRRER BEHEREAL

on the procedures performed, we consider

management'’s judgement and estimates in the

assessment provision against obsolete and slow-

moving inventories, to be supported by the available

evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueD)

Key audit matters

HREIER

FARESTSEIE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ATMARERRENER

Expected credit loss (“ECL") assessment of trade receivables

ESRNYREHEEER([BHEEBR]) T

Refer to notes 17 and 38 to the consolidated financial statements and accounting policies on note 2.4 to the consolidated financial

statements

BRASAMBRERME 1T RIS RGP BRRM T2 AN SR

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had trade receivables of gross carrying
amount of approximately RMB147,401,000 and allowance for ECL of
approximately RMB7,021,000, the net carrying amount of trade receivables
account for 20.7% of the Group's total assets.

M2020512A31R EXEENESRRFERALENRARY
147,401,000 R EHEEFEREENBARK7,021,0007 - EHEHK
FEMEEFEL EXEEELEMN20.7% °

In general, the trade receivables credit terms granted by the Group to the
customers ranged between one to four months. Management performed
periodic assessment on the recoverability of the trade receivables and the
sufficiency of provision for impairment based on information including credit
profile of different customers, ageing of the trade receivables, historical
settlement records, subsequent settlement status, expected timing and amount
of realisation of outstanding balances, and on-going trading relationships with
the relevant customers. Management also considered forward-looking
information that may impact the customers’ ability to repay the outstanding
balances in order to estimate the expected credit losses for the impairment
assessment.

—RME EXEEREFRENEIRUFECERNT —ENEA - &
BERBETRATFEENN BEHRRTIERR  BELAFELHE  RES
ER  EHRELAEREARERCRSEN  URERBEFORKE
BHBE THAREFREFENATKROMAERBERERR - BE
ENMDZRUETERPEERBELMENNAELEN  UEFRE
AR TEBHEEER -

Our procedures in relation to management'’s
impairment assessment included:

AR ERRREFGETNRFEE -

o Understanding and evaluating the key
controls of the Group has implemented to
manage and monitor its credit risk;

o THREKMAESEEEREZEEFERR
FrE R ST

o Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing
profile of the trade receivables as at 31
December 2020 to the underlying financial
records and post year-end settlements to
bank receipts;

o HEREN2020612A31BME FENR
HERRBABM BT URFRER
TR EEMR
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueD)

Key audit matters

HREIER

BAREST B H (4)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ATMARERRENSER

Expected credit loss (“ECL") assessment of trade receivables (Continued)

ESRNYREHEEER([BHEEBR)F (&)

Refer to notes 17 and 38 to the consolidated financial statements and accounting policies on note 2.4 to the consolidated financial

statements

BRASAMBRERME 1T RIS G BRRM T2 AN SR

We focused on this area due to the impairment assessment of trade receivables
under the expected credit losses model involved the use of significant
management judgements and estimates.

BZMBIZEE AR RERBEEFREETE HRNFIEREN G
BRERBREREHE R -
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Inquiring of management for the status of
each of the material trade receivables past
due as at year end and corroborating
explanations from management with
supporting evidence, such as performing
public search of credit profile of selected
customers, understanding on-going business
relationship with the customers based on
trade records, check historical and subsequent
settlement records of and other
correspondence with the customers; and
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueD)

Key audit matters

HREIER

BASEE T B IE (47)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ATMARERRENSER

Expected credit loss (“ECL") assessment of trade receivables (Continued)

ESRNYREHEEER([BHEEBR)F (&)

Refer to notes 17 and 38 to the consolidated financial statements and accounting policies on note 2.4 to the consolidated financial

statements

BRASAMBRERME 1T RIS G BRRM T2 AN SR

. Assessing the appropriateness of the expected
credit loss provisioning methodology,
examining the key data inputs on a sample
basis to assess their accuracy and
completeness, and challenging the
assumptions, including both historical and
forward-looking information, used to
determine the expected credit losses and
using valuation experts engaged by us.

o HIEEHEEBERENEELEE W
BREXTZHAGBEUTHEERERT
Bt YERARETABEEEFRRE
REMEZBREEERNRR(BERERA
BIEEHR) -

Based on the procedures performed, we consider
management’s judgement and estimates in the ECL
assessment of trade receivables, to be supported by
the available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our

auditors’ report thereon (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYZBE®RE ()

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTinueD)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's

financial reporting process.

AUDITORS" RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors’ report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these consolidated financial statements.

EENRERZEENGREUBR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYRBEE RS (F)

AUDITORS" RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

72

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and

the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYZBE®RE ()

AUDITORS" RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely

responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

BB RN B B R AR S I IS R AR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYRBEE RS (F)

AUDITORS" RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent

auditors’ report is Hon Koon Fai, Alex.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hon Koon Fai, Alex
Practising Certificate Number: P05029

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROHT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEmaRHME2ENER

Year ended 31 December 2020

B E20209F12A31HILFE
2020 2019
20204 2019%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
s ARE Tt N R
Revenue WA 5 606,363 980,298
Cost of sales SHEK A (547,597) (877,211)
Gross profit ES 58,766 103,087
Other income and gains H AU A R Wz 5 120,508 85,549
Reversal of/(allowance for) expected RHEKATDENESREE
credit losses in respect of financial MIEHEEREERE
assets carried at amortised cost, net (Btl) - F8 10,231 (15,579)
Impairment loss on property, plantand  #1% - W= & X &R EEE
equipment (12,954) (2,346)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets {3 FR # & 2 A (A &5 18 (18,084) (6,773)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX (97,235) (191,938)
Administrative expenses THRAX (CEWEL)) (117,073)
Other expenses and losses HEMHAEZ RERE (31,723) (4,539)
Finance costs & B AR 6 (17,590) (29,331)
Loss before tax BRBATES IR 7 (87,840) (178,943)
Income tax (expenses)/credit Frisfi (Hx), % 10 (2,890) 38,253
Loss for the year FEREIE (90,730) (140,690)
Other comprehensive loss: Hih 2 HEEE !
Items that may be reclassified HEAEEFN D E B
subsequently to profit or loss: BIEE -
Exchange differences on translation of & B 1§ % 19
financial statements b H Z5E (10,886) (5,969)
Items that were reclassified to BEEFHEZE
profit or loss: BYIEE

Reclassification of cumulative exchange & K{ /& A &k & 57
fluctuation reserve upon disposal of DEERETIE KRB

subsidiaries 1 (11,885) -
Other comprehensive loss for FNEMEEEE - Nk
the year, net of income tax T8 % (22,771) (5,969)
Total comprehensive loss for FREEBIEAE
the year (113,501) (146,659)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)

FeEaREMEERER (K)

Year ended 31 December 2020
B E20209F12A31HILFE

2020
20204

Notes RMB’000
B 5 AR® T

(91,192)
462

(CIVE{)]

(GREREL)]
438

(113,501)

12 (9.56)

(Loss)/profit attributable to: FEAE (E51R),a A
Owners of the Company RAREEB A
Non-controlling interests FEPERR IR R

Total comprehensive (loss)/profit G2 (E18), V& T
attributable to: #aEE -

Owners of the Company KAREA A
Non-controlling interests FEVERR IR R

Loss per share attributable to AR EBEERFTA
ordinary equity holders of EhEREE
the Company

Basic (RMB cents) AER(ARES)

Diluted (RMB cents) HE(ARES)

12 (10.01)
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2019
20194
RMB’000

ARBTT

(140,436)
(254)

(140,690)

(146,397)
(262)

(146,659)

(14.07)

(14.07)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

wRa BRI &

As at 31 December 2020
202012 H31H

2020 2019
20205 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
Mo e AR¥T AREEFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ¥ - HE MK 13 32,316 71,480
Right-of-use assets FREEE 14 23,449 227,972
Contingent consideration receivables & sk A (B 15 - 234,425
Deferred tax assets FEEFIAE E 25 4,142 9,020
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 59,907 542,897
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 16 171,229 169,509
Trade receivables 2 5 EIE 17 140,380 217,018
Prepayments, deposits and JBREZIE - RER
other receivables H {th fE U 538 18 106,284 212,217
Amount due from a shareholder JEW— & AR B 34(b) 324 -
Amounts due from related companies [ I 78 3& A 7] 218 34(c) 92,521 -
Pledged deposits e EEE 19 70,238 132,277
Cash and cash equivalents BENELEEY 19 35,969 71,046
Total current assets MEBEERE 616,945 802,067
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade and bills payables B S REMNFIERENRE 20 265,237 389,334
Contract liabilities AEHaE 21 13,239 24,844
Other payables and accruals H b e IR R ERTE A 21 49,766 63,240
Amount due to a shareholder BN —Z IR E N IA 23 = 10,107
Amounts due to related companies FETREE N RINIE 23 46,575 80,310
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STEIRITER 24 94,734 220,815
Warranty provision RIS B 25 3,124 4,689
Lease liabilities HE&E 22 17,259 46,504
Derivative financial instruments PTESBIA 27(b) 313 -
Convertible loan AR E S 27(a) 84,356 99,986
Income tax payables FE TS HL 3,749 18,969
Total current liabilities mEAERE 578,352 958,798
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) REIEE, (&) EE 38,593 (156,731)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHAERABAR
LIABILITIES 386,166
RAERARAR 2020 £k 77




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
REPBRR R (&)

As at 31 December 2020

H2020F12A31H
2020 2019
20205 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
M RE AR¥T AREET T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FEFRIEEE 26 123 2,888
Convertible loan AT E 27 = 9,602
Lease liabilities HEARE 22 21,634 176,709
Total non-current liabilities e aEaE PAWLY 189,199
Net assets BEFHE 76,743 196,967
EQUITY fEm
Share capital A& AR 28 6,914 6,914
Reserves B 30 69,653 190,315
Equity attributable to AAEEEAEBGER
owners of the Company 76,567 197,229
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR IR R R 25 176 (262)
Total equity fEEE 76,743 196,967

Approved by and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30  &XEE 2202143 30 B % E I &F 0 %

March 2021 and signed on its behalf by: i e
Zou Gebing Wu Yueming
5 Y 3= R AH
Director Director
BF EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated ~ BEMI i sEEAX L T A MR KO — 6
financial statements. b

o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GABEBBE

Year ended 31 December 2020

B E20209F12A31HILFE
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
LG 2PN T 3
Exchange Non-
Share Share Other Treasury fluctuation  Reserve Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium  reserve  shares  reserve funds  losses Total interest  equity
EXRE
kx  RGEE HbRE EFRH fE REEE EHFR & FBRER BREE
RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000 RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETL ARETL ARETL ARETT ARETT ARETL ARETL AREFR ARETI ARETR
(note 30) (note 30() (note 30(v)) (note 30(i) (note 30(il) (note 30(iv))
(Mtzk30)  (Wsek3o@) (Rvskow)) (AEaE30G) (REE30fi)) (HtE300)
Asat 1 January 2019 #201981818 6914 164413 17138 - 175M 49290 (52276) 357237 - 357,237
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - (140436)  (140,436) (254)  (140,690)
Other comprehensive loss for the year: ERENZEER:
Exchange differences on translation of B EEIFHRA)
financial statements EXER - - - - (5,961) - - (5,961) 8 (599
Total comprehensive loss for the year ENREEREE - - - - (5,961) - (140,436)  (146,397) (262)  (146,659)
Purchase of treasury shares BEEERD - - - (2,209 - - - (2,269) - 2269
Dividend paid BIRARE - (134 - - - - - (134 - (1134
As at 31 December 2019 and H20195128318 %

1 January 2020 202051818 6,914 153071 171385¢ (2269 11550 49.290% (192,712 197,229 (262) 196,967
(Loss)/profitfor the year R (EE)/aF - - - - - - 9119 @119 4% (90730)
Other comprehensive loss for theyear:  EREMZEFE :

Exchange differences on translation of ~ BEEIFEHRA)

financialstatements EXZE - - - - (10862) - - (10862 (24)  (10,886)
Redlasification of cumulative HENBAAR
exchange fluctuation reserve upon ENHRZHER
disposal of subsidiaries RBEE - - - - (11,889) - - (11,889) - (11,889
Total comprehensive {loss)/income EREE (BR)/hEEE

for the year - - - - (22,747) - (91192) (113,939 438 (113,501)
Purchase of treasury shares BEBERD - - - (673 - - - (6,723) - 613
Transfer to reserve funds ERZRAES - - - - - N38 (11,239) - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries HENEAT - - (1n6) - - - 116 - - -
As at 31 December 2020 20205128318 6914  153,071* (131 (8992)* (11,197)*  60,528* (123,026)* 76,567 17 76743
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of approximately ZERBERBEGAMBR AR ANRE B

RMB69,653,000 (2019: approximately RMB190,315,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

#) AR ¥69,653,0007L (20195 : HARK

190,315,0007T) °

KAERAR AT 2020 F3R]
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GEREMEBR

Year ended 31 December 2020
B E20209F 12A31HIFF/Z

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment, net
Loss on disposal of right-of-use assets
Gain on remeasurement of leases
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Loss on written off items of
property, plant and equipment
Fair value change on contingent
consideration receivables
Net loss on derivative financial instruments
Covid-19 related rent concessions
Fair value change on derivative
component of convertible loan
(Reversal ofyallowance for expected
credit losses in respect of trade
receivables, net
Allowance for expected credit losses in
respect of prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, net
Allowance for expected credit losses in
respect of amounts due from related
parties, net
(G?in)/loss on modification of convertible
oan
Provision against obsolete and
slow-moving inventories
Product warranty additional provision
Finance costs

Note
PR
RETBAERSRE
FrTiRIEE
FEIER -
FBUA 5
Y - BEMEEITE ,
FRESERE 7
M - R RRERE
E518 7
FREEERERE 7
HEWE - HE&EE
EEMER, (W) F%E 5,7
HEFREEERIE 7
SFERENWE 5
HEHRBA TR 5
W - BEREE
18 B /g 7
ERSAN B DAE :
T SR T BRI 27(b)
COVID-19t8E £ 188 5
AR EFOTER DY
RN EEE) 5
B o RIGIATAIEEEE
(BEED), Bt - 588 ,
FARFE « e Bt EUGRIA
TEERE BRSBTS - 38
7
FEURRER 5 soaTE R E B g R
B - FER
7
(BT AR B (k) EiE
7
e MBS G ,
FEEMmIRIE TR ME 7
BE A 6

Operating cash flow before
movements in working capital
(Increase)/decrease in inventories

HEASEPTERS
= -
FEGEM), H

Decrease in trade receivables B ZIEBGIRER
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits  FE{<T 508 - g & Efib FEUGRIR
and other receivables B, ()
Decrease in trade payables B SRR
Decrease in other payables and accruals E b e FUB K E A
D
Increase in contract liabilities GHIEEIEM
Utilisation of warranty provision EARIEHEE
Cash (used in)/generated from operations ~ 4X% (FT) /FriSH&
Income tax paid EASATISHL

Net cash flows (used in)/ generated from
operating activities

REEB(FIM),/FSRESRE
R
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2020
20204
RMB’000

AR®TR

(87,840)
(1,107)

8,220
31,662

12,954
18,084

15,677
5,086

(4,832)
(57,761)

(9.411)
31
(501)

(10,808)

103

474
(11,503)
39,848

3,268
17,590

(30,486)
(43,233)
79,981

92,038
(103,869)

(21,376)

(30,759)
(15,737)

(46,496)

2019
20194
RMB'000

ARBFT
(178,943)
(1,357)

9,586
50,219

2,346
6,773

(15)

(48,931)
36,437
404,992

(149,550)
(27,758)

(66,731)

6,602
(4,962)

150,099
(17,177)

132,922



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

meEReRER (H)
Year ended 31 December 2020
B E20209F 12A31HILF/Z

2020 2019
20204 20194F
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 5 INGEEST AR T T
Cash flows from investing activities RETEMEEERE
Payment for purchases of items of property, BB - FENR
plant and equipment I8 B #R (68,041) (28,154)
Payment for purchase of leasehold land BEEHE AR - (27,360)

Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEWEE - MRE MR EHEE
plant and equipment B PTSFRIE 72,177 27
Proceeds from disposal of items of right-of- & FAEEE P15 IE

use assets, net of transaction costs HIFRZZ ZEA 23,682 -
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries I &HBARIEFERERA 102,826 -

Payment for repurchase of shares BOIRR B R (6,723) (2,269)
Interest received SR 1,107 1,357
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits BEIFsR L, (380) 60,957 (38,288)
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing & &SEENFT1S,(FTF)IRE

activities JERE 185,985 (94,687)
Cash flows from financing activities RMETHMERENRE
New bank borrowings HTERITIETR 335,212 437,608
Repayment of bank borrowings BEIRITER (459,433) (359,778)
Advance from a shareholder RE—BIE AR = 4
Advance from related companies REFEE R RIEK 366,370 46,243
Repayment to a shareholder m—ERFER (2) -
Repayment to related companies MEFE R RIEK (359,595) (49,509)
Repayment of convertible loan BB AR ER (8,310) (81,037)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEAE (38,613) (57,864)
Dividends paid BIRMILE - (11,342)
Interest paid ERFLE (8,909) (7,873)
Net cash flows used in financing activities B REFTARESRE ¥ (173,280) (83,548)
Net decrease in cash and cash RERBAELEEY

equivalents A HEE (CENLD)) (45,313)
Cash and cash equivalents at FYRe FREEEY

beginning of year 71,046 123,928
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net  JNESTE R EFHR)SIL -

HER (1,286) (7,569)

Cash and cash equivalents at FRESRESZEY

end of year 35,969 71,046
Analysis of balances of cashand cash ~ BE&RBEESEEWEEDIT

equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents R4 KIS ZEY) 19 35,969 71,046

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated [ Fff Fff 55 48 Ak tt %5 47 & BF 75 3R % & — &P
financial statements. e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

82

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Morris Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries as the “Group”) is an exempted company with
limited liability incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The
registered office address of the Company is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of the
Company is located at Unit 2001, 20/F, Citicrop Centre, 18
Whitfield Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 12 January
2017.

The Company is an investment holding company. During the
year, the principal activities of the Group are the manufacture

and sale of sofas, sofa covers and other furniture products.

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Morris Capital
Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
IIBVIII).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020

#FE20209F 1231 HILFE
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RAREEER#)
(CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries Bt/ A Bl E R
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as AABEEWNBARFIBOT -
follows:
Percentage of
equity attributable

Place of Issued to the Company

incorporation/ ordinary share FRARLREEDY

registration and capital/paid up 2020 2019

business registered capital 20205 20195
Company name RLEAYE Legal entity BRALERE/ [ et [00EE  Diect  Indrect  Principal activities
DaEH BEREEHE EAER HREMARE 3 HE % IEEE
Mistar International Trading Hong Kong/ Limited liability HK$100 - 100% - 100%  Trading of sofas, sofa covers

(HK) Limited?* United States company and other fumiture
products
Z2EREA(ARARAY  ER/%E BRAT 1007 - 100%  BEDE - DEER
L7 AER

Zhejiang Apollo Leather The Peaple’s Republic  Sino-foreign equity US$615,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of sofa

Products Co,, Ltd.* (note (a)) of China ("PRC") jointventure Covers

MIMRERERRARLT  PEARRNE  #HARAELZ 615,000%70 - 100%  AEREENEE

(K (a) ([+a))
Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home The PRC Wholly foreign US$41,710,000 - 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd. * (note (b)) owned upholstered sofas
enterprise
IR ARRFERRAD hE NEEELR 41,470,000%TC - 100%  EEREEFENE
(Kt (b))
Masia Industries Co,, Ltd. The Kingdom of Limited liability 585,000,000 - 100%  Notyet commenced
Cambodia company operation
("Cambodia")
Masia Industries Co,, Ltd. RERIE BRAT 5,000,007 - 10%  EREREE
([75%))
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BmRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020

#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AAREEER®)
(CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MEARER(E)
Percentage of
equity attributable
Place of Issued to the Company
incorporation/ ordinary share FARLRRAA Y
registration and capital/paid up 2020 2019
business registered capital 20208 20198
Company name AL/ Legal entity BRTEERA/ PG LGS Diect  Indrect  Principal actvities
DR BRREXNE EARR fRimkas BLENN S EE BE IEER
Jennifer Convertibles, Inc. The United States Limited liability US$9,010 - ~100% - Sales of sofas, of America
(note) company covers and other
furniture products
Jennifer Convertibles, Inc. %7 BRAT 90105 100% - BEDE DEERAM
(H3t) FAER
MorriSofa Europe Limited The United Kingdom ~ Limited liability (8P1,000 0% - Wholesale of
("UK") company furniture products
MorriSofa Europe Limited HE(%E)) BRAT 1,00058 70% - WEFEER
Note: Jennifer Convertibles, Inc. was disposed on 14 August 2020. M5t : Jennifer Convertibles, Inc. /A 2020 4 8
R14BHE -
* The English names of these entities represent management's best effort
at translating their Chinese names as these entities did not register any
official English names.
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in FRINNEERETEZELSE
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for FRNEENEBRFEECLERLS
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the WARNFIMBRG - EEZRR 17
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the HEMHBAAFEZERERB
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length. RITEK °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

EE2020F12A31HILFZ
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 2.1 fRELEE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“"HKICPA"). For the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably expected
to influence decisions made by primary users. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements included applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

(“Listing rule”) and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB")
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (RMB’000)

except when otherwise indicated.

REMBRRDREFTEGAMA
([ EREBMMAE ) BRANE
BMBREEAN((EBMBHREE
A DwE - mBESESPHHRERM
EoOMAHANGEESERET
EEREELORE - MBABEHR
WEREKX - I A B ®REK
BREEBBARXIAERRARES
FAARA(TERRA ) REERQA
ROIRERERBE

RE M MR TIIRE £ KA EER
B HEREREMREAAETE
METERTARIN  FBEREGRT
BUR Bt -

B R —RRIBRIEE fm MR A
NHRENAAENE -

ZEMBHRRUAARB([ARE])
25 BRRBERIN - AERES
MEZEEONTUHRARET

JT) e
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

2.2

86

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards
and the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for
the annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKFRS 7

Early adoption of amendments to HKFRSs

The following amendments to HKFRSs, which is applicable to
the Group but are not yet effective for the current year, have
been early adopted in current year:
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent

Concessions

Except as described below, the application of the Amendments
to References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS
Standards and the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
had no material impact on the Group's financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 2.2 B BERBEEZEZE (2

DISCLOSURES (conTinuED)

Impacts on application of Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material

The Group has applied the Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS
8 for the first time in the current year. The amendments
provide a new definition of material that states “information is
material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably
be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements, which provide financial information
about a specific reporting entity.” The amendments also clarify
that materiality depends on the nature or magnitude of
information, either individually or in combination with other
information, in the context of the financial statements taken as

a whole.

The application of the amendments in the current year had no

impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

88

DISCLOSURES (conTinuED)

Impacts on early application of Amendment to
HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

The Group has applied the amendment for the first time in the
current year. The amendment introduces a new practical
expedient for lessees to elect not to assess whether a Covid-19-
Related Rent Concession is a lease modification. The practical
expedient only applies to rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 that meets all of the following
conditions:

o the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same
as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

o any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

o there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes
in lease payments resulting from rent concessions the same
way it would account for the changes applying HKFRS 16
Leases if the changes were not a lease modification.
Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are accounted for as
variable lease payments. The related lease liabilities are adjusted
to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a corresponding
adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in the period in
which the event occurs.

The application of the amendment had no impact to the
opening accumulated losses at 1 January 2020. The Group has
benefited from waiver of lease payments on several leases. The
Group has derecognised the part of lease liability that has been
extinguished by the forgiveness of lease payments using the
discount rates originally applied to these leases respectively,
resulting in a decrease in the lease liabilities of approximately
RMB501,000, which has been recognised as variable lease
payments in profit or loss for the current year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ReMBRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
all new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the

foreseeable future.

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments'
Reference to the Conceptual Framework’

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2*

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture?

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)'

Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds
before Intended Use’

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract’
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

90

POLICIES
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing

whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

(d) any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions

need to be made, including voting patterns at previous

patterns at previous shareholders meeting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the
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year ended 31 December 2020

EE2020F12A31HILFZ

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTivueD)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control

ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between

members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss

of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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2.4

92

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTivueD)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuED)
Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following

criteria is met:

o the customers simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

J the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

. the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has no
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

24 TEESTHEBE (&)

PN

BEFEH KA

REBMN KRBT ERIK
A BRBEREBNEEREBNE
mk R ZFIE BB TEPER -

BHOELE -—RARNE MRS
(R—HEMARBE) H— R A
HHF AR S mek RS o

ZHIEERRES  METEEP
—IHNLTRE - A T2 R T K
HEENE EHEEIRESREER

s EFRAKBRENKRENEG
I[ﬂE 7S S2 18 R #) P 4R AH 9 )

E\

s AKEMENRIREIIERETR
RASERBORZHNEE
%

s AHKEHMENALREEHAE
EEERAENEE  BAXE
BARHATEANEEZSE
JEXIBD D B FRIA ©

BH - WAREFEFSHENE @
ok AR 745 #0122 ) 4 B B AR

BREEEAKSERATFERA
SECHEENREm KRG WEAK(E
EVREA (i R R AR ) - ARIE
BEMBHRELERF K FERE
AR - ERRIRE A S BB (E
MEGIERN - DRFBFERBE
REMAREAS -

BRERER AT 2020 F3R 93



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Re R BERRWME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

94

POLICIES (conTinueD)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer. A contract asset and a contract liability
relating to a contract are accounted for an presented on a net

basis.

A contract asset and a contract liability related to the same

contract are accounted for and presented a net basis.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations (including
allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price

basis except for the allocation discounts.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FESTHEME (2)
POLICIES (continuED)
Revenue recognition (Continued) WATER (&)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) EFEHRA (&)
Contracts with multiple performance obligations (including ABZHEENEETHNEX(ERESE
allocation of transaction price) (Continued) R5 8 )(E)

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at
contract inception. It represents the price at which the Group
would sell a promised good or service separately to a customer.
If a stand-alone selling price is not directly observable, the
Group estimates it using appropriate techniques such that the
transaction price ultimately allocated to any performance
obligation reflects the amount of consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the
promised goods or services to the customer.

Refund liabilities

The Group recognises a refund liability if the Group expects to
refund some or all of the consideration received from
customers.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services
to a customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its
promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified
goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to
arrange for those goods or services to be provided by the other
party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or
service before that good or service is transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service by
another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before that
good or service is transferred to the customer. When the Group
acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of any
fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled in
exchange for arranging for the specified goods or services to
be provided by the other party.
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2.4

96

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTivueD)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Sale of goods

Revenue from sales of sofa, sofa covers and other furniture
products are recognised at a point in time when control of the
goods has transferred, which generally coincides with the time
when the products are delivered to customers and title is

passed.

Commission income

Commission income from sales of sofa, sofa cover and other
furniture products is recognised at a point in time when the
Group acts as an agent. The commission income expects to be
entitled in exchange for arranging for the sales when the
control of goods have been passed to customers, which is
primarily upon the goods are delivered to and have been

accepted by customers.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories

or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTivueD)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset

in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the

end of each reporting period.
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2.4

98

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTivueD)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTivueD)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s

family and that person

(i)

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group; or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEESTHEBE (&)
POLICIES (conTivueD)

Related parties (Continued) BREL (&)

A party is considered to be related to the Group if: (Continued) RTHERT MTALTHEHRRAE
HAEEEFHEE (&)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following (b) BATAFE TIEMEHD
conditions applies: (Continued) B (&)

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence (vii) B (a)(i) AT A L ¥ Z
over the entity or is a member of the key BRABEATENAR
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent ZEB(XZEEHNER
of the entity); and BMETEEEAS K

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is (viii) ZERSIEMBEENT
a part, provides key management personnel A B AR RAEE SR
services to the Group or to the parent of the SEMSRRREREIES
Group. BABRE -

Close members of the family of a person are those family —EBEATHIHKEREZERR

members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced SHERAZEZZATHIZZA

by, that person in their dealings with the entity, and include: THENREKE - B :

(@) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner; (@) ZBATIHMTFREEBXFERE
H1E

(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and (b) ZBATHEBHEEHEL
Fri Rk

() dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or () ZBEATHZEBATHEMBE

domestic partner. AEHEIZEA -

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction EAEEEBEF CHAFEERK

when there is a transfer of resources, or obligations between BETEER(THREGKNER) -

the Group and a related party, regardless of whether a price is AR ZWRABEI RS o

charged.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTivueD)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment that are tangible assets that are
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition

and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual

rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 5%

Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 33.3%

10% to 20%

20% t0 33.3%

Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment

Motor vehicles 20% t0 33.3%
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2.4

102

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTivueD)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at

each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds

and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building, plant and
machinery and other items of property, plant and equipment
under construction, which are stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and are not depreciated. Cost comprises the
direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed

and ready for use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTivueD)

Leases

Definition of a lease
Lease is a contract contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of

time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application or
arising from business combinations, the Group assesses
whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the
definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed. As a practical expedient, leases with
similar characteristics are accounted on portfolio basis when
the Group reasonably expects that the effects on the
consolidated financial statements would not differ materially

from individual leases within the portfolio.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the

non-lease components.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate non-
lease components from lease component, and instead account
for the lease component and any associated non-lease

components as a single lease component.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESFTBERBE®)

POLICIES (conmivueD)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of buildings that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition exemption for
lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight — line basis or another systematic basis over the lease
term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities other than adjustments to
lease liabilities resulting from Covid-19-related rent concessions
in which the Group applied the practical expedient.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of
the lease term are depreciated from commencement date to
the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESFTBERBE®)

POLICIES (conTivueD)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if

the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise:

o fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed

payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate,
initially measured using the index or rate at the
commencement date;

o the amount expected to be payable by the Group under

residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of purchase options, if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Re R BERRWME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTivueD)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)
After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by

interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)

whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which
case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review or expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the

consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTivueD)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which the
Group applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts for

a lease modification as a separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that
standalone price to reflect the circumstances of the

particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability less any lease
incentives receivables, based on the lease term of the modified
lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-
use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of the
relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the

aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Re R BERRWME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTivueD)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Covid-19-related rent concessions
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In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has elected
to apply the practical expedient not to assess whether the

change is a lease modification if all of the following conditions

are met:

e the change in lease payments results in revised e MHMENFNEDHERHEERESR
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same Frigoh - M RERE
as, or less than, the consideration for the lease EEHHHEEREXRBUER -
immediately preceding the change; FLOREEZHIHHEER

B :
e any reduction in lease payments affects only payments o MENFKWNEMRIEZER

FHAR A2021F6 A30H 2
ATV R &

originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

e there is no substantive change to other terms and o MHEMNEMERREKEHTEE

#=4

conditions of the lease. L) o
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A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes
in lease payments resulting from rent concessions the same
way it would account for the changes applying HKFRS 16 if the
changes are not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of
lease payments are accounted for as variable lease payments.
The related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts
forgiven or waived with a corresponding adjustment recognised
in the profit or loss in the period in which the event occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuED)
Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.
Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources
to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed

when incurred.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market

place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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2.4

110

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTivueD)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Interest and dividend income which are derived from the
financial assets and shareholders’ rights are presented as other

revenue and other income.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:
. the financial asset is held within a business model whose

objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest

on the principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TEEFHEHEK

b /s )
= (#2)/

POLICIES (conmivueD)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payment of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if
that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group managers together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or
FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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2.4
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTivueD)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit

impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI
are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other revenue and other
income” line item.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTivueD)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit loss
("ECL") on financial assets which are subject to impairment
under HKFRS 9 (including trade and bills receivables, deposits
and other receivables, amount due from a shareholder,
amounts due from related parties, pledged deposits and cash
and cash equivalents). The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting period to reflect changes in credit risk since initial

recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting period. Assessment are
done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting period as well as the forecast of
future conditions.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since

initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESFTBERBE®)

POLICIES (conTivueD)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
period with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account

when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

J significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,

the credit default swap prices for the debtors;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt

obligations;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4
POLICIES (conTivueD)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and

supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit

risk before the amount becomes past due.

FESTHTHREREME &)

SRIAE)

EHEEE)

EHEERE(E)

N NG D)

s EBAREXEMNERKEH
EREL

e BEBAEE  KBEIRMERER

%‘I‘%&i‘ﬁ%ﬂ’]iﬁTﬂ b4
BYREBABTHEKE
ERIRE I RIB TR ©

T LT HER - WELNTRE
%hh%5*$%lﬁ ﬁ%ﬂﬂ
BEXERARDKIEEN - R
SEAERBUYEBEZENBERE
AR o

BEMEZEARBREER

,,,,, BERNNEERS ﬁx&&m
HERE - UHERARIRE
TH 18 B B R S B R B e R

U% %FFFF

=
¥

o T I OAD B
W
ok

s
Jufe:
=
p=
o

SRERAER AT 2020 £ 115



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=)
me

BRI T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

2.4
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTivueD)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is

unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more

appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of
default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data

about the following events:

(@ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESTBRBE®)

POLICIES (conTivueD)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

() the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the

lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of
trade receivables, when the amounts are over 1 year past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent

recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTivueD)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based on
historical data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the respective risks
of default occurring as the weights. The Group uses a practical
expedient in estimating ECL on trade receivables using a
provision matrix taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward looking information that is

available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial

recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade and bills receivables and other
receivables are considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant credit
information such as forward looking macroeconomic
information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTivueD)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For collective assessment, the Group takes into consideration

the following characteristics when formulating the grouping:

. Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit

risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated based on

amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss

allowance account.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTivueD)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial

liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are

recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Perpetual instruments, which include no contractual obligation
for the Group to deliver cash or other financial assets or the
Group has the sole discretion to defer payment of distribution
and redemption of principal amount indefinitely are classified as

equity instruments.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or

cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTivueD)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as trade
and bills payables, other payables, amounts due to related
parties, amount due to a shareholder, lease liabilities, loans and
borrowings and are recognised initially at fair value and net of

directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills payables,
other payables, amounts due to related parties, amount due to
a shareholder, lease liabilities, loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on

their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, trade and bills payables, other
payables, amounts due to related parties, amount due to a
shareholder, lease liabilities, loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate

amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in profit
or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

122

POLICIES (conTivueD)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Convertible loan

A conversion option that will be settled other than by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Group’s own equity instruments is a

conversion option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the debt component and derivative
components are recognised at fair value. In subsequent periods,
the debt component of the convertible loan notes is carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
derivative component is measured at fair value with changes in

fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible loan
notes are allocated to the debt and derivative components in
proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction costs relating
to the derivative component are charged to profit or loss
immediately. Transaction costs relating to the debt component
are included in the carrying amount of the debt portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible loan notes using
the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting

period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTivueD)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a

collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is

recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in the profit or loss.

A modification of a financial asset occurs if the contractual cash

flows are renegotiated or otherwise modified.
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2.4

124

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTivueD)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

When the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified,
the Group assesses whether the revised terms result in a
substantial modification from original terms taking into account
all relevant facts and circumstances including qualitative
factors. If qualitative assessment is not conclusive, the Group
considers the terms are substantially different if the discounted
present value of the cash flows under the new terms, including
any fees paid net of any fees received, and discounted using
the original effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent
different from the discounted present value of the remaining
cash flows of the original financial asset

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that do
not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the relevant
financial liabilities will be calculated at the present value of the
modified contractual cash flows discounted at the financial
liabilities’ original effective interest rate. Transaction costs or
fees incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount of the
modified financial liabilities and are amortised over the
remaining term. Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the
financial liability is recognised in profit or loss at the date of

modification.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTivueD)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities

simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an

integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature

to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4

126

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTivueD)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be

made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
each reporting period of the future expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Provisions for the expected cost of assurance-type warranty
obligations under the relevant contracts with customers for
sales of sofas, sofa cover and other furniture products are
recognised at the date of sale of the relevant products, at the
directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle

the Group'’s obligation.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

2.4 TEGFTHE

E#)

)

BE

MEBESEHMAEAERKEEECE
FESIETE) MBETTHETAEER
AKERIING - BEZEERS S
RESUR] Sefhat - RUTERR AR -

HMRFEEKN  AERIBEND
BRAHBETEEAFERRAIR
EMERRNEAE - BRREBR
I8 M0 E & BRAT AR P M R E X
I o

REEZFPHREEDE DEER
HttXRAEMUWEBEAL - &
8 B R 8 B (E R0 TR HI A AN BB 4 10 8
EHHERMBPRESTHETAS
B & LR AR EGTER -

Frig#Hi

e ema s MRERE - Wi
REBESERNIABNBEBASHT
ENERER  MAHEMEZERSE
HEENERFER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=
mE

For the

B R M (&)

year ended 31 December 2020

EE2020F12A31HILFZ

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTivueD)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying

amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary

differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting

profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTivueD)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can

be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or

loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reserve in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which

the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be

recovered.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTivueD)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of each reporting period.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the

right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to right-of
use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of the
initial recognition exemption. Temporary differences arising
from subsequent revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of
lease liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject to
initial recognition exemption are recognised on the date of
remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable
entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or

assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTivueD)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions

attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or
otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred
income in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis

over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable. Such grants are
presented under “Government subsidies” under “Other income

and gains”.

Employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) in Hong Kong under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

24 TEESTHEBME (&)

BT 18 BY

£ A RN 5 B 15 8 5T U B
MM SRR E G MK - K
FI BN 7T & T IARER -

I 78 Bh 1 7 S 18] i 57 4l B 46 b (2
MR AN BRI B A R it
REBESER - EEBME - MERAK
SEBE  ZEFAEMTAWE
FRDEESEBIFRMFHBT B
TIRER A MR NRERBIELR
A ERBREENAERFHA
EEmREEMEREER

FREEERXIBIRNEERM
AEBERERE T HER (AL EA R
AR BE AN ) T A] Y B RY U A B B BT
B ThRE AR R WE Y B R
B HER - BREMIINT At
AR Wz T BRI T -

BEREF

RkeEHE

AN 65 8 58 08 ok 1 A B 2 5 R )
RAEBERZ2ERIELTE S E
(TamEt# D WEBEERTAR
M —IEERMFORTE 2 R KAE M E
g HRREEBEAFMNK — 8
DHETE  YRREBEBE SR
AIRERTEXNBEERNE - &
BEFEEERAKREEEDHAMN
BUYEBERESRKA - AKBEZARRE
EEEFHNEIHAZHEBREN
&8 -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

=
mE

For the

B R M (&)

year ended 31 December 2020

EE2020F12A31HILFZ

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTivueD)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Pension schemes (Continued)

The employees of the Group’s operations in Mainland China
are required to participate in central pension schemes operated
by the local municipal governments, the assets of which are
held separately from those of the Group. Contributions are
made by the Group based on a percentage of the participating
employees’ salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension schemes. The Group's employer contributions vest fully
once made.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another
HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the
cost of an asset.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

Dividends

Final dividends and special dividends are recognised as a liability
when they are approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to

the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised

immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

132

POLICIES (conTivueD)

Merger accounting for business combination
involving entities under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements items of the combining businesses in which the
common control combination occurs as if they had been
combined from the date when the combining businesses first

came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining businesses are consolidated
using the existing book values from the controlling party’s
perspective. No amount is recognised in respect of goodwill or
bargain purchase gain at the time of common control
combination.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each of the
combining businesses from the earliest date presented or since
the date when the combining businesses first came under the

common control, where this is a shorter period.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the businesses had been
combined at the end of the previous reporting period or when

they first came under common control, whichever is shorter.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESTBRBE®)

POLICIES (continuED)
Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes
of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of,

the Group's various line of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a

majority of these criteria.

Foreign currencies

The Company'’s functional currency is the United States dollar
("US$"). Because most of the subsidiaries’ functional currencies
are RMB, the consolidated financial statements are presented
in RMB. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the consolidated financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities
in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of each reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary

items are recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEESTHEBME (&)
POLICIES (conTivueD)

Foreign currencies (Continued) INEE (48 )

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical LASNEE IR R S K ARG E R IEE IR
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange B -HAVLXSAHENEX®R
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary B UNER AR BT ENEEYK
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated HE  r RAFEARBEEAMNEX
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was BnE  MERARBENENHEEE
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non- BEEMEEAM Kz EE - IRERE
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the RZIE B 8 A B2 E)H) Y & ok E
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the B—EO A ERE (AR R E Wk
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value BEREMETEAKFZHEZERR
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or BEENBREZRET IR EMEE
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income Wamsk Bz ER) °

or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of the Company and certain KAalRETHEBARNMGEER
subsidiaries are currencies other than RMB. As at the end of RAREAINNEE - REREH
each reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities KR ZEEENEERBEUNE®R
are translated into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the THRNEREXBRE/ARYE
end of each reporting period and their profit or loss are H U %5 3k B 18 LA N i 19 BB
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates EMER/ARE - MEAWNER=E
for the year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised BREMEEWEANER - WRE
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the HESEEARE o HEIINHER
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign B EZEXBAENEMEER
operation, the component of other comprehensive income HEDTRIERER o

relating to that particular operation is not recognised in profit

or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash flows, REFEHRERERME Mg EE
the cash flows of subsidiaries with functional currencies other RAREAINOKE R FINR SR
than RMB are translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling ERFenElNERANERKRE
at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows BARE - ZEWBRARRFARL
of these subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are FEENRENERZFEMNET
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates HEXHE/ARE -

for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial

3.

E RS HE R AEF

MAEASEGEMBHRRFEERE

statements requires management to make judgements, fEH HE - hE RR®Z - Tz
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of ZHE - A RBREZERA

revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

The major judgements, estimates and assumptions that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements and have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are set out below:

Provision against obsolete and slow-moving
inventories

The Group reviews an ageing analysis of its inventories and the

X BERABENEZERSBERAH
BE  URIABEORE - IbF
R\ RGO TABAEZEA 5 BA
REHIZENEESXRENERD
EFHERFE -

HEAMBBRRAERSEEAR
EARERAEEHEERAER
EHER N —EMBRFEHEREERH
BEMEANRREZHE - B5T R
eI T

REREBFERE

AEBREREHNRBEEETFEN

condition of its inventories at the end of each reporting period, RO MEEERRL  THBER
and makes provision against obsolete and slow-moving Tﬁﬂ HENAIEEENRER
inventory items which are identified as no longer suitable for BETEHBEELEE EREX
sale or use in the production. Management estimates the net ERBEEFEEERREN M AWM
realisable value for such inventories based primarily on the SRS ER A B EE -

latest invoice prices and current market conditions.

The provision against obsolete and slow-moving inventories

RENEETFEREGTZRAHE

requires the use of judgements and estimates. Where the KAl 5t o B4 Rk AR k78 B £
actual outcome or expectation in the future is different from REMFTR  ZEEEHFED

the original estimates, such differences will have an impact on
the carrying value of inventories and the write-down of
inventories recognised in the reporting period in which such

estimate is changed.
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136

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (conTinUED)

Allowance for expected credit loss for financial
assets under HKFRS 9

The Group makes loss allowance on receivables including trade
and bills receivables, deposit and other receivables based on
various factors including the aging of the receivables, historical
write-off experience and forward looking information. The
identification of impairment of receivables requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectations are different
from the original estimates, such differences will impact the
carrying amounts of receivables and the allowance for credit
losses on receivables is recognised in the years in which such
estimates have been changed. Due to greater financial
uncertainty triggered by the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group
has increased the expected loss rates in the current year as
there is higher risk that a prolonged pandemic could led to
increased credit default rates. See note 38 for further
discussion.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. Impairment exists when the carrying value of
an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets
or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing
of the asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash flows
from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. Furthermore, the cash flows projections, growth
rate and discount rate are subject to greater uncertainties in
the current year due to uncertainty on how the Covid-19
pandemic may progress and evolve and volatility in financial
markets, including potential disruptions in the Group’s
manufacturing operation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (conTinuED)

Current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. The Group carefully evaluates tax implications
of its transactions in accordance with prevailing tax regulations
and makes tax provision accordingly. However, judgement is
required in determining the Group’s provision for income taxes
as there are many transactions and calculations of which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, the differences will impact on the income tax and
deferred tax provision in the periods in which the determination
is made. The carrying amounts of current tax payables and
deferred tax assets and liabilities are set out in the consolidated
statement of financial position and note 26 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Derecognition of factored trade receivables
and discounted/endorsed bills receivable

The Group has entered into arrangements with its bankers in
respect of the factoring of trade receivables and discounting of
bills receivable, or endorsed certain of its bills receivable
accepted by banks to certain of its suppliers in order to settle
the trade payables due to such suppliers. Based on an
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements
and the credit quality and settlement pattern of the factored
trade receivables and discounted/endorsed bills receivable,
management has to determine whether the Group has retained
substantially the risks and rewards of certain receivables, which
include default risks relating to such receivables. Details of the
transfers of financial assets are included in note 36 to the
financial statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3. ERETTHEI NG E)
AND ESTIMATES (conTinuED)

Warranty provision RIEEH

As further explained in note 25 to the consolidated financial iR & B 75 3R R MY sE 25 F i —
statements, the Group makes provisions for the warranties it M AEEKERAEENE A
gives on the sale of its products taking into account the HEKEARBERERERDIER
Group's current sales levels and past experience of the level of & BEMEEmMITREREERE -
repairs and returns. As the Group is continually upgrading its ZE AN S .T\iﬁﬁﬂ&igﬁf&ﬁ&ﬁ
product designs and launching new models, it is possible that T ASE - BTAE RERERA
the past experience of the level of repairs and returns is not EVIASEEHREBATHENS
indicative of future claims that it will receive in respect of past REENIEE BERREN T
sales. Any increase or decrease in the actual claims would B gTERBRFENER

affect profit or loss in future years.

Principal versus agent consideration ZXAIRBANZE

The Group engages in trading of sofas, sofa cover and other REBREDE  PBERHEMK
furniture products. The Group concluded that the Group acts as EEmES - fx% ERAEEETE
the principal for such transactions as it controls the specified BERTREMHEEEMREERD
good before it is transferred to the customer after taking into 7%%%?‘5 Big AEERR/EKIEE

35*

RERERFNEFEA  RRASER
TEE m L.ﬁe%%}fﬁm HAERSE

consideration indicators such as the Group is primarily

i

responsible for fulfilling the promise to provide the sales of

\

other furniture products. The Group has inventory risk. When meoASEEBRFERR - 2%
the Group satisfies the performance obligation, the Group ERTEHNEMTE - $§%?ﬁié\%"7
recognises trading revenue in the gross amount of Frel AASEEERAEKMINRE
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled as BEEERE H WA

specified in the contracts.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to WMAEEMNBENETALHES—H
arrange for the provision of the sales of other furniture EHAMXAEERNEE @ AIK
products by another party. In this case, the Group does not SEAREBA - ERBEAT - EHB
control the specified good or service provided by another party HXAEMmMEEEETERZ
before that sales of other furniture products is transferred to Al - REETES S —FEENE
the customer. When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises EEmE RS - EXRKEERREA
revenue in the amount of any fee or commission to which it B ERABRNE — A LHHEER
expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the sales of ftb 5 B 2 on 78 23 B #E BUAF ) R e
other furniture products to be provided by the other party. By Mo EmmREA -
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EE2020F12A31HILFZ
4. SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

Principal versus agent consideration (Continued)

Information reported to the Board, being the chief operating
decision maker, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of goods
or services delivered or provided. This is also the basis upon

which the Group is organised and managed.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under HKFRS 8
are as follows:

a.  Retail segment

b.  Manufacturing segment
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conTINUED) 4.
Segment revenues and results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by reportable and operating segments:
Retail segment Manufacturing segment
2578 LEDY

DEER (&)

2020
20205
RMB'000
ARETT

2019
20195
RMB'000
ARETT

2020
20205
RMB'000
ARETT

2019
20195
RMB'000
ARETTL

L N SE
LAT%$$@&—J£ i
DHIRARELE ST
Elimination of
intersegment sales Total
THEEEHH @t
2020 2019 2020 2019
IPIERS  2019F BRRIPIESY  2019%
RMB'000 RYEL oM RIMB000 RMB'000
ARETT ENRES ARETT BNEEw

Segment revenue AHUA
External sales e GELTA 241860 | R 738438 A 980298
Internal sales hEHE 103,046 64803 ) 046) (64, 803) -
183,671 241,860 525,738 803,241 (103,046) (64,803) 606,363 980,298
Segment loss HUER (31,576) (18,823) (il (141,426) (1,078) (154,342 (160,397)
Interest income FERA 1357
Fair value change on derivative AR ER A HS
component convertible loan HALEES 2,530
Fair value change on contingent FEIEL AR BEI 2 4
consideration receivables VL) 5257
Gainfoss) on modificationof  BET AR ET AN
convertible loan #/(E#8) 11,503 (3915)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEMBR AME 57,761 _
Unallocated corporate expenses A AE A FHEX WRAE  (15,771)
Unallocated finance costs KORBERR (2,278) (8,004)
Loss before tax BHRAER - - - s (178943)

Segment loss represents the loss from each segment without
allocation of interests income, fair value change on derivative
component of convertible loan, fair value change on contingent
consideration receivables, gain/(loss) on modification of
convertible loan, gain on disposal of subsidiaries, unallocated
corporate expenses, and unallocated finance costs. This is the
measure reported to the Board for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.
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4.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuep)

Segment assets and liabilities

Retail segment

2E2H

2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT PNRwE AR T

Consolidated assets BAREE

Segment assets DEHEE 114,632 287,448
Unallocated corporate bVl W/NG]
assets BE

Segment liabilities AHEE 54,386 272,523
Unallocated corporate KD B A Al
liabilities B

For the purpose of monitoring segment performances and

Consolidated liabilites &4 & &

allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
unallocated corporate assets (mainly comprising certain
of amounts due from related parties, amount due from a
shareholder, contingent consideration receivables and

other unallocated corporate assets); and

o all liabilities are allocated to operating (mainly comprising
amounts due to related companies, derivative financial
instruments, convertible loan and other unallocated
corporate liabilities).

4. DEER#E)

pan- |

Manufacturing s

LEDH
2020

202045
RMB’000

459,944

SE

- S 1,147,997

EENREE

egment Consolidated
®e
2019 2020 2019

20194 20205 201945
RMB'000 | LA RMB'000

ARETT PDNLEwl AR%TT

554,890 822,127 Cieerrs 1,109,575
7,330 235,389

e 1,344,964

662,022 514,330 934,545

85,779 213,452

BDRERBAERRED BB ZE D

&R :

BARASEAREE(TERR
ETREEET R - Bl —
ABRRRA - BRHARER
HiAREE)N  FAEEE
BHEELEDH &

BARASEARABE(ZTERR
ENBIERRRIEA  TESR
TR mBEEREREMRS
EARBE)II ABEAEN

DRELEDE
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuep)

4. DEER#E)

Other segment information Hitbp #EH
Retail segment Manufacturing segment Unallocated Total
ZEHY £ESY AAR @it
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
2020% 2019% 2020F 2019% 2020F 2019% 20205 2019F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT BNESVl ARETT BRSO ARETT BNESvM ARETT BNEED
Addition of right-of-use assets FEFFREZE 30,596 - 30,596
Addition of property, TENE ER
plant and equipment R 2,539 65,502 68,041
Depreciation of property, 1% - HER
plant and equipment FEnE 3,002 5218 8,220
Depreciation of right-of-use ~ FRHEEENE
assets 26,941 411 31,662
Provision against obsolete and % RS #ES
slow-moving inventories 291 39,557 39,848
Mlowance forf(reversal of ~ Z 5 M FEE
dlowance for)expected ~ EEEERE/
creditlosses inrespect of (B BEE)FE
trade receivables, net (11,031) (10,808)
(Reversal of)fallowance for ~ BEERFZUE -
expected creditlosses i+ 1A R A EEN
respect of on prepayments,  FEHELEE
deposits and other FB(RE)/
receivables, net BETE
Allowance for expected credit [EU % 7 202 4)
losses in respect of amounts ~ EHEEE B
due from related parties, net /&35 474 474
Impairment loss on property, 91 - B kit &
plant and equipment HEEE 11,465 12,954
Impairment loss on FRESERA
right-of-use assets BB 9,134 18,084
Gain on disposal of HEHBARN
subsidiaries ey (57,761) (57,761)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of ~ HENE - BRER
property, plant and RERER/
equipment (fz) 15,677 15,677
Loss on disposal of LEFREEEY
right-of-use assets B 5,086 5,086
Finance costs HERA 9,545 17,590
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuep)

Geographical information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical locations of the Group's revenue from
external customers during the year and the Group’s

non-current assets.

(a) Revenue from external customers

o EVE R ()
IR A

TREINFAXKEEREINBEP
MU as R AN R B 3R R B B B RO b
LB E# -

(a) ZRESMEBEP R

The geographical locations of the customers are EPMMIBUE NIREBEFT
determined based on the locations of customer. EMEE -
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARMBF T
People’s Republic of China REARHR
(including Hong Kong) (BHEED) 16,890 88,802
The United States of America EFEBEREH
("US” or "U.S."”) ([EE)) 466,088 800,462
Europe (Note (a)) BN (M5 (a)) 110,693 43,496
Others Hith 12,692 47,538
606,363 980,298
Note: Mzt -
(a) Europe mainly include France, Norway, Spain, Ireland and United (a) BHNEEREER R "AWTF B
Kingdom. R R ER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e BmRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuED)
Geographical information (Continued)

(b) Non-current assets

4.

DEBER (&)
HEER(E
(b) ShEBEFUA
2020 2019
20205 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000
INL B ARETT

The People’s Republic of China REE AR AR

(including Hong Kong) (BEEE)
Cambodia RIpEE
The U.S. EE
The United Kingdom (“U.K.") HE([%EEA])

17,260 79,444
32,233 36,387
- 183,460
6,272 161
55,765 299,452

The non-current asset information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes deferred tax assets
and contingent consideration receivables.

Information about major customers

Revenue from major customers with did not consist any related
parties of the corresponding year contributing over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group is as follows:

NEFRRBDEEERTIREE
ENMEZY  TEEELEH
HEENMEWRLARE -

EREEEFNEH

REBEEMEARERBLWA10%IA
FHEZEEF(TBETMEER)
WALT -

2020 2019
202045 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ Tt NS

Sl N/AYTSEA
N/A* A3 i * 208,518
ool N/IA*SE
cers s N/A*NE R
70,558 100,847

Customer 1 =P

Customer 2 ®F2

Customer 3 ®F3

Customer 4 254

Customer 5 ®F5

* Revenue from the customer is less than 10% of the total revenue of the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#FE20209F 1231 HILFE

WA~ HAAWAR WS

WAEFHEERMBRES

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.
B 5

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after

allowances for returns, trade discounts and value-added tax.

FIMPIBEREEROBERFE -

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows: WA~ B A R EDITa T -
2020 2019
20204 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt NS
Revenue ['ON
Recognised at a point of time: RE—BF R FER -
Manufacture and sales of sofas, sofa A EMIEENE HBEER
cover and other furniture products HEMREER 605,901 980,298
Commission income HalA 462 -
606,363 980,298
Other income and gains Hih W A R Wz
Interest income B U A 1,357
Exchange gains B 5 U 2 31,004
Government subsidies (Note (a)) AT R Bk (B3 (a)) 27,302
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE  HWERRENKRZE
plant and equipment 15
Gain on modification of CHERE:S =40 &
convertible loan 11,503 -
Gain on remeasurement of leases sHEREN KSR 4,832 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries B A F B U as 57,761 -
Rental income iEEAON 5,549 6,010
Covid-19-related rent concessions COVID-19/8 S ESR 501 -
Fair value change on derivative AR ERITEE D H
component of convertible loan NIRERE) - 2,530
Sales of raw materials $HE R R 407 134
Repair service income IS RBUA 1,759 9,180
Compensation on factory relocation BEREME
(Note (b)) (P 5E(b)) 18,683 -
Fair value change on contingent FEN S A RABR
consideration receivables NI EES 9,411 5,257
Others Hih 131 2,760
120,508 85,549
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
M BHERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.
(CONTINUED)
Notes:
(a) Subsidies have been received from the local governments in Zhejiang

Province in respect of successful listing in Hong Kong and the Group’s
contribution to sofa industry. There were no unfulfilled conditions or
contingencies relating to these subsidies as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recognised
government subsidies of approximately RMB1,401,000 in respect of
Covid-19-related subsidies, of which approximately RMB983,000 related
to Employment Support Scheme and Anti-epidemic Fund Retail Sector
Subsidy provided by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, and approximately RMB418,000 in respect of
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme provided by Her Majesty’s Revenue
and Customs in UK.

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group received
compensation on factory relocation from Morris Group Co., Ltd. (“Morris
PRC") due to consider possible losses about factories relocation in peak
season. Therefore, the Group recognised compensation on factory
relocation of approximately RMB18,683,000.

As at 31 December 2020, the aggregate amount of the
transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligation under the Group's existing manufacture and sales of
sofa, sofa covers and other furniture products is approximately
RMB13,239,000 (2019: approximately RMB24,844,000) and
the Group will recognised this revenue in 2021.

WA~ AR WS #)

(a) WNIBMPIBRARAEEEDHESE
BB L AME) - R2020F12 A31
B #&EE B EHAORERIEER
R EIE(20194F « ) -

HZE2020F12A831BILFE » NEE
%t COVID-19 48 8 4 Bk 7 SR BT 4 B 4Y
AR¥1,401,000T » EFHARE
983,000 7T £ & 74 15 5l 17 B & B 12 4
WRMEFERGENEESTEXER
PERM - RHARKEA418,0007T 8 EEH
ZEMTHESHRBRUENTRES
REEETE A -

(b) EZE2020F12A31HLFE  r RS
EREHEFETIHMRBAATEERL &R
KEREFAEEERAR([FASP
BDOIRREME - At - AEER
R E B E LS AR 18,683,000

JT °

2020128318 » nEREEAEH
REEERBEDIE DEERH
MREERETHTBHETHR
FEBELHAARE13,239,0007T
(20194 :« AR¥24,844,0007T) °
iR £ B 35 R 2021 F HE R 1E I
)\o

6. FINANCE COSTS 6. mERA
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR Tt NG S
Interest on bank loans RITERFE 6,041
Interest on discount trade bills BMIERE SEEFNE 1,832
Interest on convertible loan AT E T B 7,931
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEMNE 13,527
29,331
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020

SRERAER AT 2020 F£3R

B E20209F12A31HIFFE
7. LOSS BEFORE TAX 7. BRBAIEE
The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/ AR BHOBRBLATE IBIVEHIRR (T A)
(crediting): TEIEA
2020 2019
20204 2019%F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’'000
BaE AR¥T AREEFIT
Cost of inventories sold BEFERAR 507,749 864,760
Depreciation of property, M - WER
plant and equipment REITE 13 8,220 9,586
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {FHAEEETE 14 31,662 50,219
Expense relating to short-term lease BRI HIHAEFR S 12,478 18,679
Impairment loss on property, plant — #9% - &= M RERIE
and equipment 518 13 12,954 2,346
Impairment loss on FRAREEREEE
right-of-use assets 14 18,084 6,773
Loss on written off items of property, $EY%E  WE NMREER
plant and equipment BEE 13 4,322
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BERE
plant and equipment o) ! -
Loss on disposal of right-of-use assets H & {# A& E RV E B -
Auditors’ remuneration: ZEE B &
Audit and audit related services Eit M E AR 1,481
Non-audit services IEEETARTS 88
1,569
Employee benefit expenses EERMNAZ (T8
(excluding directors’ and Chief EERFETHAR
executives remuneration (note 8)):  il4& (FffizF8)) :
Salaries, wages and benefits in kind  #& « TE MEWTGE 51,950 171,930
Pension scheme contributions” RONETEIH K 8,626 9,195
60,576 181,125
Provision against obsolete and BREMERTE
slow-moving inventories™ BE, (BB RE) ™ 39,848 12,451
(Reversal of)/allowance for expected ‘& 5 e ZIBTE EIZ B 548
credit losses in respect of trade (B&m) B Esm
receivables, net (10,808) 15,576
Allowance for expected credit losses B FATENTZTE ~ 124 M EAD
in respect of prepayments, deposits  FEILZ A TBHR{E B EsiE
and other receivables, net BT 103 3
Allowance for expected credit losses [ Y B A 7] k18 H) 78 HA
in respect of amounts due from EEEEREFE
related companies, net 474 -
Product warranty additional provision ZE @iIR1EZEINEE 25 3,268 4,649
(Gain)/loss on modification of BT E = (Uezs),/
convertible loan i5gi! (11,503) 3,915
Loss on derivative financial PTHESRTAEE
instruments 311 -
Exchange losses bE H [E518 8,254 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e BmRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

7.

LOSS BEFORE TAX (conTinuED)

* At 31 December 2020, the Group had no forfeited contributions available
to reduce its contributions to pension schemes in future years (2019: Nil).

xx The above items are included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), section
383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of

Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as

7.

BRFSAIE R (2)

* M20204 128318 » "NEBTEE R
UGz 5 AT A HOR L R SR 2 AR ARG B
HR (20194 « ) o

**  DAEPBEBFAGE R REGCEEKSR
REO[HERAIA -

EERFTETHRAEME

REBIMES EmARR( EHR
Bl L) ~ BB ABEAIZE383(1)(a)
() ~ (@ R(f) FAR DR (HBEES
MBEER)RAUNE2H  AFEES
REIZBITHRAEMSWEWT -

follows:
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETIT
Fees ke 1,346 4,138
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind He RN EWFE 2,201 1,662
Discretionary bonuses E)IEIEAL 1,574 1,562
Pension scheme contribution RONGTEIE R 106 199
3,881 3,423
5,227 7,561
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ARE B R AR M (M)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (conTinueD)

(a)

Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
during the year were as follows:

8.

EERFEITHRAEME 47)

(a) BUFBITES

FAXNTHBIFFRATESH
wEEINT

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREFIT
Mr. Huang Wenli (iv) F| B A(v) 64
Mr. Shao Shaomin (jii) AR & S A= (i) 36
Mr. Liu Haifeng eyl 146
Mr. Pang Wing Hong (i) TR ) 115
Mr. Chu Guodi i) 1 B 25 9t A (ii) 93
Mr. Qian Jun (v) B A () -
454

Notes: BIeE -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

Mr. Pang Wing Hong was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the
Company on 12 April 2019 and resigned on 31 July
2020.

Mr. Chu Guodi was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 28 May
2019.

Mr. Shao Shaomin resigned as an independent
non-executive director on 12 April 2019.

Mr. Huang Wenli resigned as an independent non-
executive director on 28 May 2019.

Mr. Qian Jun was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 31 July
2020.

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the
year (2019: Nil).

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

KAERAR AT 2020 F3R]

EIKEAER2019F 4 A
NHEZEABIYLIEHR
1TEE » WH2020%F7 A
31HFME -

BRI AERR20194F5 A
28 HER T BB IEH
TEE -

A DB £ 20194 A
BB EBIIENTE
g o

EFXELER2019F5 A
28H BB IERITE
$ o

BB ER2020F7 A
31HEZITABYIEH
TEE -

B F RN IB L

FRITEFZHH (2019
FE) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A M WA M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

EE2020F12A31HILFZ
8. DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERFENTHAEME &)
REMUNERATION (conTinuED)
(b) The chief executive officer, and executive (b) THEBRITES
directors
The remuneration of each of these executive directors is ZEHTEESANMEET
set out below: mE

Salaries,

allowances, Pension
and benefits Discretionary scheme Total
in kind bonuses contributions remuneration

e 2E BANGE
we RENIE BMETA {3 Wessm
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETR ARMTR AR%Tr ARETR

Year ended 31 December 2020  EZ2020512A318 L EE

Executive Directors: WES:
Mr. Zou BEA
Mr. Zeng Jin Lo%k
Mr. Wu Yurning RABEE
Mr. Shen Zhidong NEREE
* Mr. Zou was agreed to waive his director’s fee for the year ended * WEERBENELHZET20205F
31 December 2020. 12A3MHIEFENESTHES -
Salaries,
allowances, Pension
and benefits ~ Discretionary scheme Total
Fees inkind bonuses  contributions  remuneration
5428 RIREE
e REDIE HiBTea isy Hems

RMB'OO0  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000
ARRTRL  ARBTT ARBTR ARETR ARETR

Year ended 31 December 2019 EZ2019E12A31B1HEE

Executive Directors; HIEE

Mr. Zou P 2,295 1,197 881 56 4,429

Mr. Zeng Jin e 463 155 227 56 901

Mr. Wu Yuming RABEE 463 155 27 31 876

Mr. Shen Zhidong NEREE 463 155 227 56 901
3,684 1,662 1,562 199 7,107
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.

The five highest paid employees during the year included 1
director (2019: 1), details of whose remuneration are set out in
note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the five highest

paid employees are as follows:

TEREHFESR

FRALEEaHREERE —RES
(2019%F : —%&) - AAEMEWF
BEN EXHFE8 - AR&SHESR

MFmMEBLT

Fees we
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EBEREYA
Discretionary bonuses BYIETEAL

Pension Scheme contributions RIRFFEME R

The number of highest paid employees whose remuneration

fell within the following bands is as follows:

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,500,000

1,000,001 L2 1,500,000/ 7T
1,500,001 L 22,000,000 7T
2,000,001# 722,500,000/ 7T
2,500,001 7T 23,000,000 7T
4,000,001 L 25,500,000/ 7T

2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARETIT
= 2,295
5,807 7,795
890 1,007
274 72
6,971 11,169
FHA T T HEN RS FRER
BT :
2019
20194
1
1
1
1
1
5

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to

any of the five highest paid employees as an inducement to

join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of

office (2019: Nil).

RER  AEEREARRTSH
BEXNNME - FRESIEMAR
SERMAREE RS RE KR
BEBL 48 (20194 « /) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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BRI T (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

EE2020F12A31HILFZ
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES/(CREDIT)

152

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"), the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”)
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The
bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazette on
the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group
entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million
will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%).

PRC subsidiaries are subject to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax
at 25% during the year (2019: 25%). Pursuant to the relevant
laws and regulations in the PRC, Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home
Co., Ltd. (“Fashion home”) and Zhejiang Apollo Leather
Products Co., Ltd. (“Apollo”), which qualified as High and
New Technology Enterprises (“HNTE”) in November 2018,
were entitled to a reduced enterprise income tax rate of 15%.
During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, Fashion
Home an Apollo applied the qualification of HNTE and are
entitled to the reduced tax rate of 15% until the year ended 30
November 2021.

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

10. PSR (ER)

REFAEREREBRELES ([#
BELZEBRDOBRAEED A%
BHANHERERABRELHES
BNERREN -

R2018%F3A21H @ BN EEB
BC017F R (1B5]) (B79%) (&
BER)N[ZHEHER])SIAFEHM
Wl o ZIGRHIEZRMN20185F3 A28
AEEELENR  YRZEETRT
B o BBEMABFERESE - &
EIREBEERE2,000,0008 T8 5
FIH5128.25% K) B R B - M B 1B
2,000,000 7T #)m ) Bl 32 16.5 % B
BEBR o RS MRS FERE
FIEERNEBEEN RN KES
1#£16.5%(2019%F : 16.5% )W ET
BEGH -

FAN - AFEWERREKR25%
(20194 : 25% ) Bt = & 49 & B 1
ERE® o BEPBRMBEERERE
B R2018F 11 A A 2l
TrE(ISHFERMEE]) EROMN
AIRAREREAR QG ([EER
BHEFNIMEEEEZRERA
AI(IFRE])  BERZAREEE
FTERM M E15% « H 2 2020F &
2019 12 A31HLIEHE » BEX
ERFEECRFRIRNEESE
B UEBEZARETERIS%  H
EEE2021F 11 A30BIEFE A
Jto



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES/(CREDIT) (conTinUED) 10. FTBHREY (ER)#)

The U.S. corporate tax rate is 21% for the year ended 31
December 2020 in accordance to the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act.
The U.S. income tax includes (a) federal income tax calculated
at a fixed rate of 21% for the year ended 31 December 2020
(2019: a fixed rate of 21%) on the estimated U.S. federal
taxable income and (b) state income to calculated at various
state income tax rates for both periods on the estimated state
taxable income for the respective states. The income subject to
tax in a specific state (i.e. state taxable income) is calculated
based on the federal taxable income with state tax adjustments,
which is then allocated or apportioned to the respective states
(i.e. percentage of taxable income that should be apportioned
or specially allocated to the respective states in which the
Group operates) based on the apportionment factors provided

from the state tax returns in previous year.

A change to the main U.K. corporation tax rate, announced in
the Budget on 11 March 2020, was substantively enacted on
17 March 2020. The rate applicable from 1 April 2020 now
remains at 19%, rather than the previously enacted reduction
to 17%. Deferred taxes are calculated based on the rates
enacted in respect of future periods as at the reporting date.
Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations of U.K., the
subsidiary comprising the Group in U.K. is liable to U.K. at a tax
rate of 19% for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in Cambodia, the
tax of the Cambodia subsidiary is 20% during the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019.

IRIER BT AR - 8lE 20205
12A31BEFEMEBIGEMER
21% - ZBEREE () BHEE
EBIB MG AL Z20205F
12A31THILEFE21%HEEH =X
(2019%F : 21%METH X )FTEH
5t 3 P15 85 K (b) 7 W 1 EA 8 /1 3 5%
M A EF N ER BN - =T RN
FIiEMEAEMMER o e M
19 B9 FEER A U A (BN FERR B U A)
RIESER N HIBRA R (HE DB
LBl R 2= &N ) /Y B 3B E R B AR
A (BRI Bl RS Rl AR E A&
e EREMND R ERBFEKA
Batt) - BB ATFEROMNBRE R
REONSEEZMAESH -

R2020F3 A 11BN EERF A MH
MEBEEZEQNABEREEHE 52020
FIANTHEEER - 8202064 A
THREROMRBEZNI9% @ M
ELEFBEHOTHEIT% o BLEFT
BRIBIERRE B B 5 & R H M
BB EFTE - REBEBMAEH
MAIRER - #Z=2019F12831H
IHFE AEEREBRNKEQF
BIR19% MBI R BN BB ST

RERBRBEBEIEEIR  BE

2020 K 2019%F 12 A31H It F
[E > REEMBEBARNKRE20% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A M WA M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#FE20209F 1231 HILFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES/(CREDIT) (conminuep) 10. PREBEX(E%) (#)

2020 2019
20205 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTR AREFIT
Current — PRC BNHR —
— Charge for the year — FAZW 2,954 -
— Under/(over)-provision in prior year —BEFERETR
(TR ) 155 (530)
Current — Hong Kong BNER — &%
— Charge for the year — FRXH 86 723
— Over-provision in prior year — BRFEEERE (33,410)
Current—U.S. BRER — X
— Charge for the year FAZH 66
Current — Other BUER — HAth
— Charge for the year — FAZH 9
— Under-provision in prior year — BAFERETZ -
Deferred tax (note 26) IRERIIA(MI7E26) (5,111)
Tax expenses/(credit) for the year FARERS (HER) (38,253)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES/(CREDIT) (conminuep) 10. FRAEHiIExX (&) #)
A reconciliation of the tax expenses/(credit) applicable to BARRNRRB M E QT FEMA L
profit/(loss) before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions AEAEENEEMEAENRTA
in which the majority of the Company’s subsidiaries are wm A (BB BAMBIERS (K
domiciled to the tax expense at the Group's effective tax rate is R)EEREEERTERGTENHIE
as follows: FAZHENT :
2020 2019
2020F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREBFIT
Loss before tax BRI RS R (87.840) (179,943)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates REMR AR
applicable to profit in the respective S 7] 38 PR S 3 A
jurisdiction HEREIE (22,038) (41,209)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of AT AR RN ER
previous periods THIER)F B (2,592) (33,940)
Effect of withholding tax on the AREE BB E A A
distributable profits of the Group's A 55 B A0
PRC subsidiaries TEME R 2 2,817 -
Expenses not deductible for tax A 21,958 16,979
Super-deduction of eligible research and BERERT
development expenditure szl (5,877) (9,184)
Tax effect of deductible temporary A HIE B R = 2R A
difference HMIETE 2,111 (2,155)
Income tax on concessionary rate BRI R ERNFAERH (1,827) (1,463)
Income not subject to tax BERBUA (11,685) (2,095)
Tax reduction for the year FABIER R (18) -
Tax losses not recognised RIERTIEEE 20,041 34,814
Tax expenses/(credit) for the year FAFRIBEMY,(EE) 2,890 (38,253)

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 25.1% (2019:
23.1%). The change in the weighted average applicable tax
rate was caused by a change in the profitability of certain
subsidiaries of the Company in the respective jurisdictions.

MEFEHEAHEF/25.1% (2019
F:23.1%) c MEFHBERREE
FIEARAQRE THERRRE
el EREBENRFE N EEEHMR
oo
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#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

11.

12.

156

DIVIDEND

The board of directors did not recommend the payment of
dividend of the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of basic loss per share amount for the year
ended 31 December 2020 was based on the loss for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company of
approximately RMB91,192,000 (2019: approximately
RMB140,436,000), and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 953,526,940 after excluding treasury shares
(2019: 998,379,710) in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share amounts for the year ended 31 December
2020 are calculated by adjusting the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares. The convertible loan is
assumed to have been converted into ordinary shares, and the
loss for the year ended 31 December 2020 is adjusted to
exclude the interest expense on the convertible loan and gain
on modification of convertible loan less tax effect, if any (2019:
No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share
amounts as the Group had anti-dilutive ordinary shares in

issue).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020

#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

12. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. AR EBERSE AREML
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE EREEE)
COMPANY (conTinuED)
The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share is based on BREAREEEETRBIA T SE

the following:

i

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T R ARBTT

Loss for the purpose calculating basic loss

per share (loss for the year attributable
to the owners of the Company)
Interest on the convertible loan
Gain on modification of convertible loan

HEEREXREENES
(RATHB AELRFERERE)
(91,192) (140,436)
AR EFRFE 2,278 -
BT AR B SR U (11,503) -

Loss attributable to the owners of the
Company, used in the diluted loss
per share calculation

ARt EESREEEIED
AABHEE AEIEEER

(100,417) (140,436)

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARBTT

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue, used in the basic
earnings per share calculation

Effect of dilutive — weighted average
number of ordinary shares:
Convertible loan

ARG EBREXEFIR
EEITERBRINETF IR
CELPIAE 998,379,710
BErE —LmiinE
T
AR E TR 49,985,193 -

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of calculating
diluted earnings per share

SRR R
LBB A T

ANV ERYPREEN 998,379,710

BERERERAT 2020 £ 157
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

#FE20209F 1231 HILFE
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y12 - BERRZE
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold  Plant and office Motor Construction
Buildings improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles i progress [E]
HE BER B Fi
By MEEE BE  RBARE RE  EEIR &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR  ARBTR
31 December 2020 20205125318
At 31 December 2019 and 20198123318 %
1 January 2020 200051418
Cost s 33212 21,416 2,197 15,822 3,682 18,076 121,005
Accumulated depreciation and ZHTERGE
impairment (4,969) (18,049) (13,258) (11,444) (1,805) (49,525)
Net carrying amount SHEE 28,243 9,367 9,539 4378 1817 18,076 71,480
At 1 January 2020, net of 0201818
accumulated depreciation and NBZHTER
impairment e 28203 9,367 9,539 18,076 71,480
Additions RE - 1,811 578 408 520 64,724 68,041
Disposaliwritten-off (note (o) HE /(R D) = = (315) = = (81579) (81,894)
Depreciation charge during the year  ERAER L (1,644) (3,578) (1,392) (959) (647) - (8,220)
Impairment loss HEEE - (4,447) (4,250) (1,837) (1,199) (1221)  (12.954)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 29) ~ HEMBAT (fH529) - (1,023) = (1318) o = (23M)
Eichange realignment ERBE (1,691) (211) 8 11 10 - (1,79)

At 31 December 2020, net of R2020812A318 -
accumulated depreciation and TRESER

impaiment WE
At 31 December 2020: 20205128318 :
Cost R 31,119 2,17 20,795 9,640 89,684
Accumulated depreciation and ZHTERAE

impairment (6,211) (20,798) (16,550) (8,957) (57,368)
Net carrying amount FETE 24,908 1,919 4,245 683 32316

T
" N
v B
—

e N

-
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. 1% - BERRZ®E)
(CONTINUED)
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold Plant and office Motor  Construction
Buildings  improvements ~ machinery  equipment vehicles i progress Total
HE FRR  RE Gl
BEl  MERE BE  RBLR B EEIR Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL  AREFT ARETT AREBTR  ARETR AREFR  ARETR
31 December 2019 2019512831R
At 31 December 2018 and 2018812318
1 January 2019 201951 A1R
Cost A 37,481 2,137 21,037 15,585 2,348 - 99,188
Accumulated depreciation Bithhe G647 (2500 (11636 (1,135 (1,154) - (4009)
Net carrying amount FEFE 33834 10217 9,401 4450 1,194 - 59,09
At 1 January 2019, net of 201951718
accumulated depreciation and MEZsE
impairment 33834 10,217 9,401 4450 1,194 - 59,096
Additions AE - 5,783 1,747 1,203 1,345 18,076 28,154
Disposaliwritten-off HE /i (4312) ) - 6) (12) - (4,334)
Depreciation charge during the year  ERHTERS (1.647) (4,691) (1,556) (1,160) (532) - (9,586)
Impairment loss TEEH - (2,037) (57) (133) (119 - (2,346)
Exchange realignment AR 368 9 4 1 1 - 49
At 31 December 2019, net of K2019512A318 -
accumulated depreciation and ThEHERRE
impairment 28243 9,367 9,539 4378 1877 18,076 71,480
At31 December 2019: R20195 128318 :
Cost A 33,212 27416 2,797 15,822 3,682 18,076 121,005
Accumulated depreciationand ~ ZEFERAE
impairment (4,969) (18,049) (13,258) (11,444 (1,805) - (49,525)
Net carrying amount BmFE 28243 9,367 9,539 4378 1877 18,076 71,480
REERAER AT 2020 F3) 159



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Re R BERRWME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use or fair value less cost of
disposal calculation of the above cash-generating units as at 31 December
2020 and 2019. The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment
testing of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets. The
annual growth rates of each CGUs are based on the relevant industry
growth forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate
for the relevant industry. Other key assumptions for the value-in-use
calculations relate to the estimation of cash flows which include budgeted
sales and gross margin, such estimation is based on the unit’s past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development.

The pre-tax discount rate applied for the cash flow projections is 10.46%
t0 12.39% (2019: 11.93% to 12.03%). Management believes that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause
the carrying amount of each of the CGUs to exceed their respective
recoverable amount.

On 19 June 2020, Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Co., Ltd., one of a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Vendor”) and Zhejiang
Haining Warp Knitting Industrial Zone Development Co., Ltd. (the
“Purchaser”) entered into the project land transfer agreement, pursuant
to which the Vendor agreed to sell, and the Purchaser agreed to acquire,
leasehold land under right-of-use assets (note 14) and the construction in
progress (note 13), were amounted to approximately RMB26,813,000
and RMB81,579,000 respectively, for the aggregate consideration of
approximately RMB95,736,000. Further detail of disposal of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets was set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 21 June 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE
14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 14. FREEE
Leasehold Leased
land  properties Total
HELH HEWmE HMEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARETRT ARBTET
As at 1 January 2019 20191411 8,254 163,892 172,146
Additions NE 27,360 84,715 112,075
Depreciation charge during FRNFEEHR
the year (note 7) (Ff¥3E7) (713) (49,506) (50,219)
Impairment loss B 1R - (6,773) (6,773)
Exchange realignment PE 3 38 B 99 644 743
As at 31 December 2019 and HZE2019F12A31H X
1 January 2020 20201 81H 35,000 192,972 227,972
Additions NE - 30,596 30,596
Depreciation charge during FAFERZ (M5E7)
the year (note 7) (363) (31,299) (31,662)
Remeasurement of leases (note) ~ E st 8 E (1) - (53,914) (53,914)
Disposal during the year (note 13(b)) 4 3 it & (H$5E13(b)) (26,813) - (26,813)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 29) &M B A & (M3:529) - (105,603) (105,603)
Impairment loss (note 7) EEE (MFE7) - (18,084) (18,084)
Exchange realignment PE X 3% (508) 1,465 957
As at 31 December 2020 M2020%F12H31H 7,316 16,133 23,449
Lease liabilities of approximately RMB38,893,000 (2019: M2020F12A318 - EEBBEHA
approximately RMB223,213,000) are recognised with related R # 38,893,000t (20194 : #J A
right-of-use assets of approximately RMB38,893,000 (2019: R#223,213,0007T) iR A BT
approximately RMB192,972,000) as at 31 December 2020. The HEEEH AR 38,893,0007T
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the (20194 : ©HH AR % 192,972,000
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. 7o) e REMAFFHEEENRE
Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing ‘b - HE W aE I M AN A K
pUrposes. Ko HMEEBETHSREGBHRNER
B e
Details of total cash outflow of leases is set out in the HENBeTHAEFBERRES
consolidated cash flow statements. HEMRERK °
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#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

14.

15.

162

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (conTinuED)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group leased
properties for own use. Lease contracts are entered into for
fixed term of one to ten years. Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the
length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which
the contract is enforceable.

Details of impairment assessment on right-of-use assets please
refer to note 13(a).

Note: Remeasurement of leases was mainly due to termination of leased

properties agreements under Jennifer Convertibles Inc. and its subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLES

The amount represents the fair value of receivables if the
audited net profits of Jennifer Convertibles Inc. and its
subsidiaries cannot achieve the respective base profit target for
years ending 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The fair value of contingent consideration receivables as at 31
December 2019 was determined based on the valuation
performed by an independent professional valuer not

connected with the Group.

Pursuant to the discloseable and connected transaction circular
of the Company dated 3 July 2020, the Company has exercised
the put option to require the seller to repurchase all the issued
common stock of Jennifer Convertibles Inc. at the exit price of
US$35 million (approximately RMB243,161,000), but not
demand the profit guarantee payment as detailed in note 29

below.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

16. INVENTORIES

17.

16. 7

Raw materials
Work in progress

Finished goods

R #
ERm
BUpK m

TRADE RECEIVABLES

17.

Trade receivables from third parties
Less: allowance for expected credit losses

REFE=TTNE B EKFIR
B TREEEEEREE

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on

credit. The credit period for customers of the manufacturing

segment is generally one to two months, extending up to three

to six months for major customers, the credit period for

customers of the retail segment is within one month. The

Group does not hold any collateral over its trade receivables

balances. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing.

2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AREFIT
41,121 18,441
30,128 69,632
99,980 81,436
171,229 169,509
5 5 FE K18

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
147,401 234,847
(7,021) (17,829)
140,380 217,018

AEBERARZPNEZRAUNEER
BE -EENMEPNEER R
R—EMEAR TEXFNEEH
EREEZ=ZZ2X ER MTEES
BEFHEEHRNR—MEAR - K
S E WL BB 5 YRR A R
BEMERR - BHRUFERT

e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BmRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020

#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE
17. TRADE RECEIVABLES (conminueD) 17. ESZRWRIEE)
An ageing analysis of trade receivables as at the end of the RARERR - R E QMR
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of BE2INEFHRIKRIENRE D
provision, is as follows: T -
2020 2019
20204 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%T T AREFT
Within 3 months 3MAARN 134,551 205,807
4 to 6 months 4Z61E A 5,628 2,925
7 to 12 months 7&212{8 R 201 8,286
140,380 217,018
Details of the ECL assessment was set out in Note 38. EREHEZEEETEHBEEHNM
FE38 °
18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 18. FANFUE ~ IRE N EMEW
RECEIVABLES B =]
2020 2019
2020F 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%T AREEF T
Advances to suppliers TEf e FRIA 60,969 139,598
Other prepayments HAb R FRIAE 5,551 7,407
Deposits and other receivables B RH MR EIE 39,764 65,212
106,284 212,217
Details of the ECL assessment was set out in Note 38. BREBHEEE RGBSR M

38
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 9. BERBEEB/BYUREE

PLEDGED DEPOSITS

SEEER N

2020 2019

20204 2019%F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®T T AREFT

Cash and bank balances Be NLIR1TES 106,207 203,323
Less: Pledged deposits for bills payment W ENERAEEIRFER

(note 20) (M45¥20) (70,238) (131,221)

Less: Pledged deposits for letter of credit 3 : {EFAEMHEEMER = (1,056)

Total pledged deposits BRI F B (132,277)

Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEED 71,046
Cash and bank balances denominated in:  IR& RIBTTERIZA T E

FHE :

RMB AR 76,159 183,917

Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") Br((#x]) 6,046 3,794

uss$ EH 8,812 15,262

British Pound R 15,190 350

106,207 203,323

As at the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash
equivalents denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
RMB76,159,000 (2019: approximately RMB183,917,000). RMB
is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct

foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with

creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

RIBEEBR - MARBHENRS
MRITHE K B ART6,159,0007T
(20194 : 895 AR™ 183,917,000
) c ARBTRIERRLBAEM
B R RIEBERBEAINEE
BIER RAEE - SERMESER
EASEEEEABRRERRIN
EEBHNRITHEARBLBRABHM

RITEFERRESARITERM XZ

FBMERFR - RITBHRFRNIED
MR O R EERIFHRIT -
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e BmRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

20. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

20, EZENRERENRE

Trade payables to third parties

Bills payables
—arising from intra-group purchases
— arising from third party purchases

2020 2019

20205 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREFIT

JERNE=FHESE 113,039 158,737
ERRE

— REEBRIRFEE 54,098 90,865

— REE=FEE 98,100 139,732

265,237 389,334

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

RBEHR REZRAHP2INE
ZEMNRIAR BN RIEARE DN

Within 1 month
1 to 3 months
4 to 6 months
Over 6 months

NN
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFIT
1MEAA 100,252 108,207
1&318 A 44,978 72,450
4% 6{E A 48,014 130,034
HBiE61E A 71,993 78,643
265,237 389,334

The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing. Trade
payables are normally settled on terms of 30 to 180 days while
bills payables are settled on a term of 90 to 180 days.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

20. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continuep) 20. ESRNRIERENRE

Certain bills payables were secured by pledged deposits with

aggregate carrying amounts as listed below:

ETENRERACDERERELR

- ReREEHImT

2020
20205
RMB’000

AR¥®TR

Pledged deposits of the Group (note 19)

AEE MR R (HIEE19) 70,238

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, certain bills payables were

secured by corporate guarantees provided by independent third

2019
20194
RMB’000

ARETIT
131,221

M20204 K% 201912 A31H &
TRNZELRBIE=ZFREEHA

parties. AIEREEIF
21. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS/ 21. BEtENFERETER

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

BHNEAE

2020
20204
RMB’000
ARBFR

Other payables
Accruals

E b ERIE 38,532
EETE A 11,234

49,766

Contract liabilities (Note)

SRR EME) 13,239

SRERAER AT 2020 F£3R

2019
20194
RMB’000

ARETT
42,936
20,304

63,240

24,844
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BmRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020

#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

21. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS/ 21. HthENFREREFER
CONTRACT LIABILITIES (conTiNuED) eREaEE)
Contract liabilities represent contract amounts received in ERNEEEINEYMKIINEG LD
advance of delivery of goods. SR o
There were no significant changes in the contract liabilities ERNEEEARNBERRNT BEE
balances during the reporting period. Bt o
The following table shows how much of the revenue TRIRARE A EERO WA R
recognised in the current reporting period relates to brought RESANBENHEBEREE - A&E
forward contract liabilities. There was no revenue recognised in HEMERREBEFEEXNNE
the current reporting period that related to performance HETHBEHWE -

obligations that were satisfied in a prior year.

The Group’s revenue recognised that was included in the AEERBYFAGHNEGEEARD
contract liabilities balance at the beginning of the period: BRI -

2020 2019
202045 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREFTT

Amounts received in advance of R E @ RTER B IR

delivery of goods 17,967
Note: MisE -
Contract liabilities in relation to sales of finished goods are expected to be settled HEMEEERNENaBERER —FARE
within one year. The entire amount of contract liabilities as at 1 January 2020 & 0 720201 A1H(2019%F - 2H)HEH
(2019: all) is all recognised as revenue during current year. BNBEGRAFERD YA -

HihENRELESERARER
BEARERER -

Other payables and accruals are non-interest-bearing and are
normally repayable on demand.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020

B FE2020F 1231 HILFE
22. LEASE LIABILITIES 22. HE&G®E
As at 31 December 2020 As at 31 December 2019
202051248318 2019128318
Present Present
value of Total value of Total
the minimum minimum the minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
BEHE BEHE REEE REEE
NREE g6 X HHARE HHBE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETT ARET T AREF T AREF T
Within 1 year 1R 17,259 18,680 46,504 58,423
After 1 year but within 2 years 12 2F R 11,121 11,905 39,220 48,712
After 2 years but within 5 years  2Z&5F 8,304 8,848 67,870 86,525
After 5 years HBBSF 2,209 2,388 69,619 77,742
21,634 23,141 176,709 212,979
38,893 41,821 223,213 271,402
Less: total future interest AR
expenses k] (2,928) (48,189)
Present value of lease obligations 18 & &IEHR & 38,893 223,213
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BWMEAN ST
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET ARETIT
Current liabilities A 17,259 46,504
Non-current liabilities SEMENBE 21,634 176,709

38,893 223,213
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A M WA M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

B E20209F12A31HIFFE
23. AMOUNT(S) DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER/ 23. EBRER BBEATRIE
RELATED COMPANIES
The related parties are companies controlled by the controlling Ml ARERBEERESNNQA -
shareholders. The amount(s) due to a shareholder and related ERRERBERBRELSEIR
companies are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on B NBREKRER -
demand.
24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 24. FTEERITHER
2019
20195
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate Maturity RMB'000 rate Maturity RIMB'000
ERAI% U8 ARETn GRS HE AREBTR
Current - secured Pl —FER
Bank loans BIER 45%-65%  Ondemand LR 42%-65%  Ondemand 54,668
BEX BEX
Bank loans G 3.1%-5.2% 2021 e 5.1%-5.7% 2020 115,000
Factoring loans with recourse WEZRNREER N/A N/A - 32% 2020 51,147
TER TER
220815
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARETTT
Analysed into: DITR/ATEIA -
Bank borrowings repayable within R—FRFIZEREEN
one year or on demand RITER 220,815
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

Certain of the Group's secured bank loans are secured by:

U]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

pledges of certain parcels of land and buildings which were
provided by Morris PRC as at 31 December 2020 and 2019;

personal guarantees provided by the Controlling Shareholders as
at 31 December 2020 and 2019;

corporate guarantees provided by Morris PRC as at 31 December
2020 and 2019;

corporate guarantees provided by Morris Real Estate, a company
controlled by the Controlling Shareholders as at 31 December
2020 and 2019;

corporate guarantees provided by independent third parties as at
31 December 2020 and 2019; and

pledges of certain properties which were provided by Morris Real
Estate, a company controlled by the Controlling Shareholders as at
31 December 2020 and 2019.

The Group’s bank borrowings were denominated in the following

24.

STRBTERE)

(a) AEENETEEMARTERUATIE
AR -

)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

R20209 20194612 A318 -
URBRERMHNE TIE LR
BEYEER

RS B 20204F 220194 12
A31 AR HEEREAER

BEAPER2020F £2019F 12
A31HIRHE A RER

2 A AR B2 ) 1 B R A M E
20204 }20194 12 A31 A2
A RER

B8 = M 20204F 20194
12A31BRENARIER &

A2 AR AR BR 428 ) B 1 B3R A b EE
H2020F K2019F 12 A31HR
HEEE T EIEEA -

(b)  AEEMRITERRTIEREE

currencies:
RMB AR
us$ E

SRERAER AT 2020 F£3R

2020 2019
20204 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBFIT
61,000 160,000
33,734 60,815
94,734 220,815
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

me

Bt RS AR MY RE (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

25.

172

WARRANTY PROVISION

25 fR1E B R

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARBTT

4,689 4,943
3,268 4,649
(4,644) (4,962)

(189) 59

At beginning of year F4

Additional provision (note 7) FOME A (FH5E7)
Amount utilised during the year FANEEBAFIE
Exchange realignment e 5 FE B

At end of year FR

3,124 4,689

The Group provides one-year warranties to certain customers
on its products, under which faulty products are repaired or
replaced. The amount of the provision for the warranties is
estimated based on sales volumes and past experience of the
level of repairs and returns. The estimation basis is reviewed on

an ongoing basis and revised where appropriate.

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

AEBRETESEE—FHESR
RERE - BUERBHERS
BEHERER - RIERES B
BIR S E ROBE e RR KT
Gl AEEBHERTHEL
A 3R R B ET o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ReMBRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

26. DEFERRED TAX

26. EIERIIE

Deferred tax assets BEBEEE
Unrealised  Impairment
profit losses on
arising from inventories
intra-group and
transactions receivables Total
SBRE FER
REEEN e R IE
REBEF REEE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETTT ARBTTT ARBTFT
At 1 January 2019 201941818 1,671 5,195 6,866
(Charged)/credited to FR(EE=NR)
profit or loss during the year FABE (1) 2,155 2,154
At 31 December 2019 and M2019F12A31H K
1 January 2020 2020F1 A1H 1,670 7,350 9,020
Charged to profit or loss FABERHER
during the year B (25) (4,853) (4,878)

At 31 December 2020

7202012 A31H

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
approximately RMB112,770,000 (2019: approximately
RMB42,260,000) that will expire in one to five years for
offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets
have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they
have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some
time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will

be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

ANEER B B A A T I8 B 18 4
BAR®E112,770,0007C (20194 -
“ B NREA2,260,0000) R — &
FERNEE - AT AREEARRER
Baf e AREEAREERIEEEDN
MEBAREBE —BREM - MER

Bk R R B T T B2 FA DA 6 T B

AREEE

RELCHBEE °

B L % e 1R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BmRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

26. DEFERRED TAX (conTINUED) 26. IEIERLIE (&)

Deferred tax liabilities

EEBEEE

2020 2019

20205 2019%F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®T T AREF T

At beginning of year FH) 5,845
Credited to profit or loss during the year FRFFABZR (2,957)
Exchange realignment P H R -
At end of year FR 2,888

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
the PRC. The requirements is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, during the year ended 31 December 2020 the
applicable rate is 5% (2019: 5%). The Group is therefore liable
for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ARE B R AR M (M)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

27. CONVERTIBLE LOAN/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

27. AIBRRER TTEERMIE

(a) Convertible loan (a) ARBKRER

2020 2019
2020 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFT
Liability component of the Convertible — AJ# iR &) & E30
loan 109,588
Analysed for reporting purpose as: HERBEHDFTOT :
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T AREFT
Liabilities component of the AR ESRMEER D ¢
Convertible loan:
Current liabilities mEBBE 99,986
Non-current liabilities JEMBBE 9,602
109,588

On 5 January 2018, the Company entered into a
convertible loan (the “Convertible Loan") agreement
(the "Convertible Loan Agreement”) with International
Finance Corporation (“IFC"), pursuant to which IFC
agreed to lend, and the Company agreed to borrow, the
Convertible Loan in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$200,000,000. IFC has the right to convert all or any
part of the outstanding principal amount of the
Convertible Loan into shares of the Company at an initial
conversion price of HK$2.22 per conversion share (subject
to adjustments as set out in the Convertible Loan
Agreement). The outstanding principal of the Convertible
Loan bears interest at a rate of 1.25% per annum above
6 months HIBOR. Interest period of the Convertible Loan
shall be a period of six months in each case beginning on
an interest payment date and ending on the day
immediately before the next following interest payment
date.

BR2018F 1 A5H » AR & HERE
cAR([BBREMAT )T
— A BRBRER(TTRRER])
mE(IATRRERBR]) - 1B
BuzthE BEEepRARRED
BRARAAEBEEALNSBEAR
200,000,000 L/ ] ]I B 3K -
BEREm A rfRREREERERN
2228 THI IR AR E I 2 F 2 3
DABRBRERREERNSBERK
RATRG (T IRBEAIIRBRER B E
FREEL %) - TMREFKRER
REERFFEI.25% (BRI EA
BEBRITRAEFREIFE - REES
T ATBRBREROF BB ASE
A rBNERBEEEET —EH
B HHA—AL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Re R BERRWME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

27. CONVERTIBLE LOAN/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL  27. a[#aRER TEE€mIT A
INSTRUMENTS (contivueD) (%)

(a) Convertible loan (continued) (a) AIRBRER(E)

Unless previously converted, the Company shall repay
50% of the non-converted portion of the Convertible
Loan outstanding as at fourth anniversary of the date of
the Convertible Loan (the “First Repayment Instalment
Date”).

Subject to any repayment to be made on the First
Repayment Instalment Date as set out above, the
outstanding amount of the non-converted portion of the
Convertible Loan shall be repaid on the fifth anniversary
of the date of the Convertible Loan (the “Maturity
Date”) together with a redemption premium (the
“Redemption Premium”) which is an amount equal to
3.25% per annum of such portion of the principal
amount of the Convertible Loan to be repaid of repaid in
respect of the period beginning on the date of the
disbursement and ending on the day immediately before
the date of repayment or prepayment. Any amount of
the Convertible Loan which is redeemed by the Company
will forthwith be cancelled.

On 29 May 2020, the Company was granted a temporary
waiver by IFC to postpone the instalments from 28
January 2020 to 28 April 2020. At the same time, the
repayment schedule was renewed with an extended
payment period. The Company recorded gain on
modification of the Convertible Loan of approximately
RMB11,503,000. A new Convertible Loan was recognised
with effective interest rate with 6.99%, where fair value

of derivative financial instruments were Nil.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ReMBRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

27. CONVERTIBLE LOAN/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

27. AIBRRER TTEERMIE

INSTRUMENTS (conTinuED) (%)
(@) Convertible loan (Continued) (a) AIRBRER(E)
The Convertible Loan recognised in the consolidated RAEEFETBARRKER
statement of financial position of the Group is bifurcated WA MR E R D AR EEET S
into two components for accounting purpose, namely S BBaESSMITEHRD -
the liability component and the derivative component, R ERENZERD EBHW
and the movements of these components during the ™~
reporting period are as follows:
Derivative
Liability financial
component instrument Total
&My TEEMIA et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARBTT ARBTFT
As at 1 January 2019 201951418 181,372 2,521 183,893
Repayment of Convertible Loan {&iEA[#AAEE R (81,037) - (81,037)
Amortisation of liability AR B X

component of the BE D H#

Convertible Loan 7,931 - 7,931
Accrual interest JEFTHE (4,717) - 4,717)
Loss on modification of &R ATHARR B 5k H)

Convertible Loan* EEt 3,915 - 3,915
Fair value change RNAEES) - (2,530) (2,530)
Exchange difference PE X =58 2,124 9 2,133
As at 31 December 2019 and  #®2019%F12A31B &

1 January 2020 202061 A1H 109,588 - 109,588
Repayment of Convertible Loan {BiE [ E R (8,310) - (8,310)
Amortisation of liability AIRIRE K

component of the BEIDH

Convertible Loan iy 2,278 - 2,278
Accrual interest FERTFIE (2,343) - (2,343)
Gain on modification of CHEEE S EEY

Convertible Loan* W25t (11,503) - (11,503)
Exchange difference PE N =% (5,354) - (5,354)
As at 31 December 2020 720204 12431 H 84,356 - 84,356

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company re-negotiate
with the holder of the Convertible Loan to renew the repayment
schedule. As the modification of the Convertible Loan does not result in
derecognition, the Company record gain on modification of the
Convertible Loan of approximately RMB11,503,000 (2019: loss of
approximately RMB3,915,000).

i HZE2020F12A831BIEFE » AQA
HARBRERBEE AT EEUEEER
FERER - BREFTTRRERTEE
BURIEHER - ARRERBETTRRE
Rl sE 4 AR #11,503,0005C(2019
FBEHARE3,915,0005T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Re R BERRWME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

27. CONVERTIBLE LOAN/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

(b) Forward exchange contracts

27. AIBRRER TTEERMIE

(%)

(b) EHIESLH

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTFT

Forward exchange contracts REAINE S 4T

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
entered into forward exchange contracts, the notional
amount of forward exchange contracts were US$800,000
and US$500,000 with exchange rate of US$1.3011 per
GBP and US$1.2903 per GBP, respectively.

The forward exchange contracts was non-hedging
derivative and was classified as current liabilities, with
length of up to 12 months and a maximum total volume
of GBP4,000,000 with an initial margin requirement of
3% of the total traded volume and maximum credit limit
of GBP80,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

28. SHARE CAPITAL

28. R

2020 2019
20205 20195
US$'000 RMB'000 US$'000 RMB'000
TEn ARBTT TEL ARETTL
Equivalent Equivalent
%@ @
Authorised: HIE
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 10,000,000,0008: &R EE
US$0.001 each 0.001 XL AL R
(2019: 10,000,000,000 ordinary shares (2019% : 10,000,000,000f%
of US$0.001 each) FREBE001ETHLRR) 10,000
Issued and fully paid: BEIRER -
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 1,000,000,000 SR EE
US$0.001 each 0.001E TR E @R
(2019: 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares (20194 + 1,000,000,0008%
0f US$0.001 each) BRAEF0.001ETHLER) 1,000 6,914 1,000 6,914

ARARRAFEANE BITRAE

The movements in the Company'’s issued share capital during

the year are as follows: o
Number of
ordinary
shares Issued
in issue capital
28T 2817
ZERHE =N
RMB’000
AREFTT
As at 1 January 2019, 31 December 201951818 -
2019, 1 January 2020 and 2019124318 »
31 December 2020 2020F1A1B &
2020512 A31H 1,000,000,000 6,914
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Re R BERRWME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

29. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 29. HEMWEB R HE

Under the the sale and purchase agreement dated 4 July 2018
entered into among the Company, Morris PRC and Mr. Zou
Gebing, the Company has the right to require Morris PRC to
repurchase all the issued and outstanding common stock of
Jennifer Convertibles Inc. at the Exit Price of US$35 million
when Jennifer Convertibles Inc. and its subsidiaries records an
audited net loss after tax (excluding profits and losses not
arising from the ordinary and usual course of business) for any
of the two years ended 31 December 2019 or 2020 (“Put
Option”). On 31 March 2020, the Company served the Option
Notice on Morris PRC and Mr. Zou stating its decision to
exercise the Put Option to require Morris PRC to repurchase
Jennifer Convertibles at the Exit Price of US$35 million. The
Option Notice was accepted by Morris PRC and the Warrantor
on the same date. The exercise of the Put Option and the
Receivables Disposal constitute discloseable and connected
transactions for the Company. The transaction was completed
on 14 August 2020. The net liabilities of Jennifer Convertibles
Inc. and its subsidiaries at the date of disposal were as follows:

BERRF - RAFRBEREETE
RV HEAB2018F7A4EMEE
#% % ° & Jennifer Convertible Inc.
R EH B AR R B ZE20199F 32020
F12A31 B IEMEFE ] —F 8%
BREZRBEEBEBIFRE(CIEE
WIERBER—REBBERESE
HmF REE)  ARrlBREEXK
RAFBIZEISEEE LN TERER
[@ Jennifer Convertibles Inc. ) & %8
EETRETENT AR ([RNE
B - R2020F3A31 A7
MEAFBEEBEEERERER
M- RARETEREERREK
RAFBIZISEEETLHNFEED
8% Jennifer Convertibles » & #2
BANRRBEESFERREAZE
o TERABERERERKRIEL
EEHEBKARAIREAET I E &H
ER G ZRXHER2020F8H 14
HSERK ° Jennifer Convertibles Inc.
REMEARNEHERHNEEF
BT :

2020
20205

RMB’000
ARMT T

Consideration received:
Cash received

Amount due from a related company

EHRARE :
WEIHER S
FEd — IR = A R RIA

Less: contingent consideration receivables (note 37) & : FEUEK A RE (FH3E37)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#FE20209F 1231 HILFE

29. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (conTivueD)

29. HEMWB AT (#&)

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which & EE4IENEEREBEDS -
control was lost:

Property, plant and equipment M - B KR

Right-of-use assets EREEE

Other receivables HAb e RIE

Prepayments TERTFIE

Pledged deposits [REZEEIES

Cash and cash equivalents ReRBSEEY

Trade payables B S ENRIE

Contract liabilities anaE

Other payables and accruals Hib eI sRIE R ESE R

Amounts due to shareholders JE A AR SR K IR

Lease liabilities HEAE

Net liabilities disposed of BEHESETRE

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HEMB AR

Fair value of the consideration RENARE

Net liabilities disposed of EHEAETE

Exchange fluctuation reserve B W R Eh i

Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEENRERAFE !

Analysis of net cash flow in respect of the BRALENBRTIH

disposal of subsidiaries is as follows:
Cash received
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of

REeREFEIMLT
PUER &

B EMERE MRS EFEY

3 July
2020
20204
7A3H
RMB’000
AR¥T T

2,341

105,603

11,826

5

1,072

1,386
(20,021)
(11,656)
(1,126)
(10,602)
(124,704)

(45,876)

104,212
(1,386)

102,826
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Re R BERRWME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

30. RESERVES

182

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements

therein for the current and prior years are presented in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(i)

(ii)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the
Cayman Islands, share premium of the Company is
available for paying distributions and dividends to
shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum
and Articles of Association and provided that immediately
following the distributions or dividend payments, the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the

ordinary course of business.

Treasury shares

As at 31 December 2020, 75,812,000 (2019:
14,800,000) ordinary shares acquired under the
Restricted Share Award Scheme were deem to be held in
treasury, representing 7.58% of the shares in issue as at
31 December 2020. The nominal value of shares held in
treasury was approximately RMB8,992,000 (2019:
approximately RMB2,269,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ReMBRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

30. RESERVES (continuED)

(iii) Exchange fluctuation reserve

(iv)

(v)

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all relevant
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of the Company and subsidiaries

with functional currencies other than RMB.

Reserve funds

The transfers from retained profits to the reserve funds
were made in accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations and the articles of association of the
Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC.

Other reserve

Other reserve represents the merge effect for acquisition
of additional equity interest in subsidiaries without the
overall change in the control in that subsidiaries and

surplus of investment in subsidiaries before the merging.

30. f#fE(#)

(i) B R KBS

(iv)

(v)

EXNBHEEERRREAQT
&M’JE"TEM’@&%W}\E%
SN EE E B EE WA
FAE L Z8 -

HEES

ARRRER BRI KR
A RS B A AR B SZ Y B
BARMAMERARGRE
HHNERERREEES -

Hitb
Ho A {36 R 46 M BB Y BB 2 BRSO
BRENAHEE MALBHZ

BB % ) 4 4 R 8 4 B
G PNCEoEE o 2]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A M WA M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

#FE20209F 1231 HILFE

31. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 31. MEREBAMEENAEBEHKR
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Change in liabilities arising from financing activities: BEESMELENABEEE
2020 20205

Amounts

Asat 1 January 2020

New bank borrowings made during the year EMEHERTE

Financing cash inflows
Covic-19-related rent concessions
Interest charged

Remeasurement of leases
Disposal of subsidiaries

Gain on modification of Convertible Loan

Repayment during the year
Interest paid and payable
New lease entered
Non-cash changes

Exchange realignment

COvD-19iEER 22

BiImARET G

As at 31 December 2020

Amount

due to

a shareholder
B
—#RRHE
RMB'000
ARET T

10,107

due to
related
companies
Jeft
BEARNE
RMB'000
ARBTT

80,310

331,633

(104212)

(359,595)

92,995
5,444

46,575

Lease

liabilities

HEAR
RME000

ARRTR
w213

(501)
6,403
(58,746)
(124,704)

(38,613)

30,59

1,245

38,893

Convertible

Loan

TRRER
RMB000
ABRTR

109,588

(11,503)
(8,310)
(2383)

(5,354)

84,356

Interest-
bearing bank

borrowings

TERTRK
RMB000
ARBTR

220,815
335,212

(459433)
(1.517)

(1,860)

94,734

Total

it
RMB'000
AERTR

644,033
335,212
331,633
(501)
16,258
(58,746)
(239,518)
(11,503)
(865,951)
(9.920)
30,596
93,319
(354)

264,558

e
i -

o = Y
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REPBmRWE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

31. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

32.

33.

METHMEENAGHR

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (conminueD) (%)
2019 2019%F
Amounts
Amount dueto Interest-
dueto related lease  Convertble  bearing bank
a shareholder companies liabilities loan  borrowings Total
Efy [Eft

—ERENE  BELRNE BERR  THRER HSEAEX et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETT  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR
Asat 1 January 2019 R2019F1 718 9978 81,959 181,077 181,372 142,197 596,583
New bank borrowings made during the year  ERATEIRTER - - - - 437,608 437,608
Financing cash inflows BERETEA 4 46,243 - - - 46,247
Interest charged flex - - 13,527 7,931 6,041 27,499
Loss on modification of Convertible Loan &3]l ARESIME B - - - 3915 - 3915
Repayment during the year FRER - (49,509) (57,864) (81,037) (359,778) (548,188)
Interest paid and payable ERRERFIE - - - @717 (6,041) (10.758)
New lease entered HEiir - - 84,715 - - 84,715
Exchange realignment 5% 125 1617 1,758 2124 788 6,412
As at 31 December 2019 20191273318 10,107 80,310 23,13 109,588 220,815 644,033

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as

at the end of the reporting period.

COMMITMENTS

The Group did not have any capital commitment as at 31

December 2020 and 2019.

. RAREE

AEBRAREBRLBEMEAKN

HREIE -

. TRIE

AEBER2020%F &2 2019F 12 A31
B\ AT (] B A EHE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BmRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020

EE2020F12A31HILFZ
34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34. BEE
(@) Transaction with related parties (a)

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in the

financial statements, the Group had the following

significant transactions with related parties during the

year:

Morris PRC RAH

Purchases of electricity BESE

Rental expenses (note (a)) RHESMT (HEa)

Compensation on factory relocation 5B W B E (M 5ES)
(note 5)

Consideration on disposal of HEMBARTNRE
subsidiaries

The above related parties are companies controlled by
the Controlling Shareholders. The transactions were
conducted on terms and conditions mutually agreed
between the relevant parties.

Note:
(a) These related party transactions also constitute non-exempt

continuing connected transactions as defined under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

186 MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

BR5
HEBELTNRS

B R A 2 B A0 %
F9h - KEBAAEERME
FRITUTEAZS :

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T AREEF T

= 50
11,670 13,218

18,683 -

243,161 -

Ll B U7 5 S B 4R AR SR
BB A7R] - ZEFER S HIREAM
BA T #0718 B 1 7E A 6R 3R % 16
FHETT -

e -

() HEMES RS IR LTHRA

BUABERNTER R ER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continueD)

(b) Amount due from a shareholder

(c)

An analysis of the balances with shareholder is as follows:

34. BERR S (£)
(b) FEW—EREHRE
AR BRI
2020 2019

20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Mr. Zou e

324 -

Amounts due from related parties

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had the
following material balance with its related parties:

() EBWEELKEA

BERESHR - AEEREBAE
HRZEFENTEXRER

2020
20204
RMB’000
AR¥T R

Morris PRC* R * 92,833
Haining Morris Trading Co., Ltd. BEEAEHERAA 162

92,995

Less: allowance for expected credit loss (Note 38) i : TEHIE & BB R (M4 538) (474)

92,521

* The balance was mainly due to prepayment of rental expenses,
details please refer to note 34(a).

The above related parties are companies controlled by
the Controlling Shareholders. Amounts due from the
related parties are unsecured, interest-free and
recoverable on demand.

* #HHEIBAEMESIL - F#E
B R FE34(a) ©

bl B B U5 A AR AR R A Il &Y

AR - AR T BOR S &K
Rl RRERKE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BmRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continueD) 34. FAERR S (#)

(d) Compensation of key management (d) AEEFEEIE A SN E N
personnel of the Group

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETIT
Fees e 1,346 4,138
Salaries, allowances and benefits e EAMK
in kind EYEF 3,371 3,735
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 1,643 2,332
Pension scheme contributions RKETEIH 140 372
Total compensation paid to key YNFETEEEAEN
management personnel Frisaza 10,577
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in E=MemE—THFIBERE
note 8 to the financial statements. MR MIFES o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020

B E20209F12A31HIFFE
35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY  RERNESHNEMIE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial EHeRmIANMERRNEEEAE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as ;AT
follows:
2020 2020%F
Financial assets eREE
Financial assets
at amortised cost
REBHEA AT ENSREE
2020 2019
20205 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREF T
Trade receivables 2 5 EE 140,380 217,018
Financial assets included in prepayments, st ATERZIE - K& &
deposits and other receivables HMERFIEN SR EE 39,764 65,212
Amount due from a shareholder &Y — 2 IR R R IE 324 -
Amounts due from related parties & Yo A B 7 8 92,521 -
Pledged deposits [REEEEMER N 70,238 132,277
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEEY 35,969 71,046
379,196 485,553
Financial assets
at fair value
through profit or loss
BRAOAEFABENEMEE
2020 2019
20204 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREBTTT
Contingent consideration receivables SRR E - 234,425
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e BmRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities

Trade and bills payables

Financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals

Amounts due to related parties

Amount due to a shareholder

Lease liabilities

Convertible Loan

Interest-bearing bank borrowings

B 5 RN FRIARENRE
AR A A A K
EFFERNERBE
FEff B8 & B3R

JEA — 2 R KR
HER®E

AT R B R
SEERITER

Derivative financial instruments
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EREE

35. REFIEINEMT A (#2)

Financial liabilities

at amortised cost
REBERATTENEREAE
2020
2020F
RMB’000
ARBTFR

265,237

49,766
46,575
38,893
84,356
94,734

579,561

2019
20194
RMB’000
ARETTT

389,334

63,240
80,310
10,107
223,213
109,588
220,815

1,096,607

Derivative financial

instruments

fTESMIA
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AREFT

313




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

36. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Transferred financial assets that are not
derecognised in their entirety

(a)

At 31 December 2020, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by banks in Mainland China to
certain of its suppliers in order to settle the trade payables
due to such suppliers. In the opinion of the directors, the
Group has retained the substantial risks and rewards,
which include default risks of certain issuing banks after
the endorsement, and accordingly, the Group continued
to recognise the full carrying amounts of the endorsed
bills receivable from such issuing banks (the “Endorsed
Bills”) and the associated trade payables settled.
Subsequent to the endorsement, the Group did not
retain any rights on the use of the Endorsed Bills,
including the sale, transfer or pledge of the Endorsed Bills
to any other third parties. As at 31 December 2020, the
aggregate carrying amounts of the Endorsed Bills were
approximately RMB27,765,000 (2019: approximately
RMB24,861,000).

As part of its normal business, the Group entered into
trade receivables factoring arrangements (the “Factoring
Arrangements”) with recourse and transferred certain
trade receivables to banks. Under the Factoring
Arrangements, the Group was exposed to the
default risk of the trade debtors after the transfer. The
aggregate carrying amount of the trade receivables
transferred under the Factoring Arrangements that has
not been settled and continued to be recognised by the
Group as at 31 December 2020 is Nil (2019:
approximately RMB54,420,000).

36. BELSAMEE
AEERULEIANEERLWE

B
(a)

BRERER AT 2020 F3R

M2020F12H31H - A% H
15 M R B A SR 1T R B T
EREEEEZTE THER -
NEEENZEHERINES
ENHRIE - EFRA - A5H
ERBBAID AR KER
HEPRREEEEATETRG
WEAORR  MAEEFER
REZESEBRTRITNEREEZE
B(EERE]) RMEEADE
EMBEZRENFRENEZEER
B -REEE AEETER
BAMNEASEZENERN
BIEREMEME=ZFHE
HESEAEERE - 12020
F12A31H BEEENET
BRELH AR ARME27,765,000
L (2019F « WA AR
24,861,0007%) °

EREEREBH—HH - K
SEBEIYMERENES
ERFERELZHE([RER
) BETEZEKRKRE
BETIRT - RIBREBLH
REEBASZREZRESE
BAREDNER - R202045F
128318 AEBEHEERER
RIBRIB LB E M AR5 E
MEBESEKRFENEEER
AT (2019F : HAARK
54,420,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Re R BERRWME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

36.

192

TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (conTinuED)

Transferred financial assets that are not
derecognised in their entirety (Continued)

At 31 December 2020, the Group discounted and endorsed
certain bills receivable accepted by banks in Mainland China
(the “Derecognised Bills") to certain banks in order to obtain
additional financing or certain of its suppliers in order to settle
the trade payables due to such suppliers with carrying amount
in aggregate of approximately RMB27,765,000 (2019:
approximately RMB24,861,000). The Derecognised Bills had a
maturity of one to six months (2019: one to six months) at 31
December 2020. In accordance with the Law of Negotiable
Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Bills
have a right of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks
default (the “Continuing Involvement”). The Derecognised
Bills were honoured by reputable banks in the PRC, such as
China Merchants Bank, Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China and other reputable banks rating at AAA by national
credit rating agencies. In the opinion of the directors, these
banks have good reputation and credit quality, and the risk of
default of these bills receivable on maturity is remote, and
therefore, the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards relating to the Derecognised Bills since after the
transfer the Group’s exposure to the variability in the amounts
of the net cash flows of the transferred asset is not significant.
Accordingly, it has derecognised the full carrying amounts of
the Derecognised Bills and the associated liabilities. The
maximum exposure to loss from the Group’s Continuing
Involvement in the Derecognised Bills and the undiscounted
cash flows to repurchase these Derecognised Bills is equal to
their carrying amounts. In the opinion of the directors, the fair
values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the

Derecognised Bills are not significant.
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36. HESRERE(£)

REEH
E(#E)

M2020F 128318 REERAE
FRITHEETHRENMBRESE
PEANMEITEANSE THRAEEL
g0 Bl 4 A AR 27,765,000 7T
(20194 : N/ ANE® 24,861,000
TLMEREER([RIEERAERE]) -
LESHEIIMEREERNZSEH
EREHESENRIE - KIEBERE
BEH2020F 12 A31 BT —Z= /5@

LHEANCEZESHE

AH2019%F : —Z=R@A)BH - R
BEhEARAMBE®RE T
HiR{TEY  RUIEBREEFEA

BREAASEER([#ES2H]) -
BRIEREBR AR ENMAERT
O MBERIT > PR IERT
REREEFTREE LS TAAATR
MEMMEBIRT - EE2RE - ZE
RITBEREFEEEZRETX BZF
EWEENIBEORBEN - &
AEECEBRRILERRIEAEBN
BRBLo R KRB MBELER
% AEERAXEEEZEEFR
TREBEHREPNARIT TAEKX
WELHERRIEEREELBAS
BENEHENE AEEEE2HR
I S N =N E N Y
AR BB % E R IEERRIEAAREL
Eﬁfﬁi/mi*a—rﬁx/wﬁﬁﬁﬁ =
RE FNEEBEED2ERK TERE
BOARBELTENRK -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ReMBRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial

instruments reasonably approximate to fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and bills receivables,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, trade and bills payables, financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals, the current portion of interest-
bearing bank borrowings and amounts due from/to related
parties approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to
the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group's corporate finance team headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The corporate finance team reports directly to the
chief financial officer. At each reporting date, the corporate
finance team analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief

financial officer.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a

forced or liquidation sale.

37.

TRTAENARERQIAE
J=EN

AEEERTANKEEERAARE
HARBEEEHEE -

EEECHERELACETED
BEEMRER  EZREFARER
REFARNRE R REAM
FBRFANEREE - BHEAR
BNEMNEE - G AEMEN KA
LREAERONESRARE  FFERT
fER R Y AT B T RIER A
AEEEREEES °

AEBEBETHMBEEEFTENDE
MEEFAERERTANAAE
AERIEREEIER - bEREER
FERRNEFEVBEER - REH,
SAM CEREBBEONMERMT
AEEEHRECERANMGENE
BHARE - RECHERMBEE
BB LA o

TREERBENAABABRER
577 (BHFREEERIN) A
REZPZITANARZEBRARE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Re R BERRWME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 37. ERTENARERQAAE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conminueD) B &)

During the year, there was no transfer of fair value FRNeRMEERESRABERIRRE
measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfer into 2MAnEFECHALEER - TE
or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial liabilities EALEEEIRAIBER (20195 -
(2019: Nil). &) -

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments TEREHBEBEVREREEAAEA
that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair AEYREBEAAENAEREED
value, grouped into Level 1 to 3 based on the degree to which HAFIEIRNESBMTAED -

the fair value is observable.

— FIRAAEFEERBERE

- Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical EXABERERMSEHRE
assets or liabilities. CRERB)EHL -

—  Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from — FE2HRARnBEFHEEREE (A

inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 BER)EE(NBEERTES
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly B ASB(FE1RMBESR
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). HEEXBENAHEZRER
HNTSH ©
- Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from — B3IZ/AnBEFENEMER
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or MetEBE  HhREEHEE
liability that are not based on observable market data EXBBEWIFERATHERTS
(unobservable inputs). R (A B R AR
ANEIE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
RE MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTinuED)

37. M TANARERRARE
=)

Financial asset and liabilities measured at fair BARBHENEREERERE

value
2020
20204
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1 E2i 34 et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T T AR%T T AR%T AR%T
Liabilities =L
Derivative financial instruments $74 ¢ E T & 313 313
2019
20194
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E E28 E3R st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT
Assets BE
Contingent consideration JE WSk AR E
receivables - - 234,425 234,425

Fair value of financial liabilities that are not measured at fair
value (but fair value disclosure are required):

WIRARBEHE(EAELRIAE
BREI)NEREEAAE:

2020
20204
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1K H28R H38R @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T R AR¥T R AR¥T AR¥T
Convertible Loan AR E - - 91,119 91,119
2019
2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EE B2 B3 FCE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Convertible Loan AR S = - - 96,696 96,696
RAERARAR 2020 F£3k 195



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BmRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 37.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuED)

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements

The fair value of the contingent consideration receivables
relating to the acquisition of Jennifer Convertibles Inc. is
determined based on the expected payment, discounted to

present value using a risk-adjusted discount rate of 2.52%.

The fair value of contingent consideration receivables is
determined by an independent external valuer based on the
latest financial forecast of the acquired subsidiaries and other
relevant information.

The movement during the year in the balance of Level 3 fair

value measurement is as follows:

TRTENAARERQIAE
=)

BRAEIMAREFENESR

A 8 U 8% Jennifer Convertibles Inc.
MEKSAREBRARBETERRR
FEERLIR K2 .52% 15 FE H 1+ SR AL IR
ZHEET -

FEM S R RAB A 72 BT i B S 51 8P

1 B B AR 3% P U B Y B8 8 B O S 3
MBERREMBERAENET

FRAFIRAREFELHNESHN

2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

Continent consideration receivables: RS AR AE

As at 1 January HZEZW1A1H 226,318
Fair value change on contingent RS AREBRAREE

consideration receivables (note 5) (MF5E5) 5,257
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 29) HENE AT (MEE29) -
Exchange realignment bE 3 & 2,850
As at 31 December #H=12A31H 234,425

For the movement of derivative financial instruments, please

refer to note 27.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ARE B R AR M (M)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuED)

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements (Continued)

The fair value change on contingent consideration receivables is
included in “Other income and gains” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for

asset held at the end of reporting period.

The fair value of derivative and liability component of
Convertible Loan was valued by an independent valuer. It was
calculated by discounting the future cash-flow at market rate
and including some unobservable inputs. See note 27 for the
detailed information and the movement of the fair value of

derivative financial instruments.

Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the

37. TR T ANARERARE

Bk (#)
BRAEIMARETENERE)

RRBEMRAFKEEMS - B
IRRELAREREDFTARE RS
R Bty 2 T U o 5% A [ B A A R IR
@A

MR ERITERABIEINAR
ERBLGEMGE TEBRm
SHERETABY TR BREE AR
BMIRARREREFTE - BB
TeMTANFAERRAAEER
8 - F2MME27 -

AT ESR T AGEMAR

key inputs to the valuation of derivative financial instruments: EETPSER TN ¢
Significant
Fair value Valuation unobservable
hierarchy technique inputs 2019
MABEER HERE EXTIERBANE 20196
Convertible Loan Level 3 Binomial pricing Risk-free rate 1.77%
model
THRER H= BERSREE m AR
Volatility 48.36%
K8
Discount rate 13.33%
BE%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Re R BERRWME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  38. Bt EEE B ERBUR
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise trade AEENITECHTIABEESE
receivables, deposits and other receivables, amount due from a WK - e R E B FE -
shareholder, amounts due from related parties, trade and bills FE U — % AR B FRIA - JE WA B U7 R
payables, other payables and accruals, amounts due to related B -EZENABERENER - H
parties, amount due to a shareholder, Convertible Loan, lease o FETFRIB N FEET B A - FEAT BB
liabilities, interest-bearing bank borrowings, cash and cash FRIE - BN —RBREKIE - A
equivalents and pledged deposits. The main purpose of these KaEx MEAE FLERTE
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s HoBRekBA2EEVREERT
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and HoZESMIANTEZENRA
liabilities such as trade and bills receivables and trade and bills AEENEEERER - A5EHA
payables, which arise directly from its operations. ZREFBAEXBEEESENAM

TREENBE  WMEHEWNIA
K FEM 4% DA K2 & 5 FE A R IR I R
DES: &

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments AEEzRIEEENEERRA

are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and FER - SNERRE - EERRE R

liquidity risk. The directors review and agree policies for NBESER EERIRZTEE

managing each of these risks and they are summarised below. BRERROBER  ABBREM
AT e

Interest rate risk R =@ b

The cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to variable-rate ReREMNERAKREZHT SMER

borrowings. It is the Company’s policy to keep its borrowings B - ARAZHREAEREEE

at fixed rates of interests so as to minimise the fair value REEMEFTE - KA ENEX

interest rate risk. [ B2 & 2= (K o

The Company has no significant interest-bearing liabilities R BRITERERBEEBE (B

except for interest-bearing bank borrowing and lease liabilities, PRI 5E22 R 24 F&) 4N - AR F

details of which have been disclosed in notes 22 and 24 WEEARGTEEE -

respectively.

The Company has no significant interest rate risk during the RATRREAIL EEXF|EREE o

year.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  38. BiisEEE B ERBER#)

AND POLICIES (conminueD)
Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk means the risk on the fluctuation of fair
value or future cash flows of financial instruments which arose
from changes in exchange rates.

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating units in
currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in the exchange rates of currencies other than
the functional currencies of the relevant operating units, with
all other variables held constant, of the Group's profit before
tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities). There is no material impact on other components of
the Group's equity.

The Group currently does not have a foreign exchange hedging
policy. However, the management of the Group monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exchange exposure should the need arises.
Under the forward exchange contract, the financial impact
arising from changes in exchange rates between GBP and US$
is not expected to be significant and therefore, the
corresponding sensitivity analysis is not prepared.

SMNE [ B

SMNERBESBIANAABERK
KEeREREXZEH KB R

B -

AEEARRZEBRR - ZFRE
AR EBMIAEMNINGEEE
OB ETEEMES -

TREBERMEEMBESRTTE
MEBERT BB (HBEKEEMNY
EEEBRIMNEXTNGEAEEZSHY
AEEBHMEN(EREREER
BENAREZER) ERENT
AEERDWEMBBO L EZINE

2. 48
&

R B AR SMNE H P BR o R
i ALEEIEEERIMNERR
WA FEREZ R PEKRIME
Rk - REBEEBPINES K - BHIK
BREFEXTEREHELTOWH
FEYAEXR AT ERFEARE
HBRRE DA ©

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease)

in exchange in profit

rates before tax

ExtH " BRBAER

(&) i CE2)

% RMB’000

ARET T
2020 20205

If RMB weakens against US$ M AR HZTRE 6,679

If RMB strengthens against US$ WARERETIHE (X4)]
2019 20194

If RMB weakens against US$ MAREHETEE 5 5,584

If RMB strengthens against US$ MARBHETHE (5) (5,584)
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38.

200

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (conTinuED)

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from bank balances
and deposits, trade receivables, deposit and other receivables.
The carrying amounts of these balances represent the Group's

maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

In respect of cash deposited at banks, the credit risk is
considered to be low as the counterparties are reputable banks.
The existing counterparties do not have defaults in the past.
Therefore, expected credit loss rate of cash at bank is assessed
to be close to zero and no provision was made as of 31
December 2020 and 2019.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime expected credit loss for all trade
receivables and general model provision for all deposits and
other receivables. To measure the expected credit losses by
applied simplified approach, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics. The Group
has performed historical analysis and identified the key
economic variables impacting credit risk and expected credit
loss. For the deposits and other receivables, the Group assessed
the expected loss rate by applying general model. The expected
credit loss rate under general model was determined by
referencing of the market credit rating data and the probability
of default rate. It considers available reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, trade receivables that are
individually significant have been separately assessed for
impairment. The Group makes periodic assessments on the
recoverability of the receivables based on the background and
reputation of the customers, historical settlement records and
past experience.
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (conTinuED)

Credit risk (continued)

Majority of the Group’s revenue is received from individual
customers in relation to manufacture and sales of sofa, sofa
covers and other furniture products and are transacted in cash
or credit. The Group's trade receivables arise from manufacture
and sales of sofa, sofa covers. As at the end of the year, the
top five debtors and the largest debtor accounted for
approximately of 76.5% and 27.9% (2019: 75.8% and 45.2%)
of the Group’s trade receivables balance. In view of the history
of business dealings with the debtors and the sound collection
history of the receivables due from them, management believes
that there is no material credit risk inherent in the Group’s
outstanding receivable balance due from these debtors saved
for the debtor related to the impaired trade receivables
disclosed in the below. Management makes periodic
assessment on the recoverability of the trade and other
receivables based on historical payment records, the length of
overdue period, the financial strength of the debtors and
whether there are any disputes with the debtors.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments when due
and current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade receivables

are due within 30 to 120 days from the date of billing.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between the Group's
different customer bases.

38. EREMEEBEERBE£)

EERREE)

REBRBH WK G HEAEE KIH
EVBEFHENENER - PBE
FEMRAEAERURSREEET
G - AEEMNE HEWREEE
BEXERBEDERDEE - RF
R AREBAREREBL AL
TEBEZFREWRELL® D A4
76.5% % 27.9% (20194 : 75.8%
&452%) o R BEEBEARNBAE
FHERX S REWRESEHFIBHER
WELs  EEEHEEANEEERK
ZEBBANKREZERRHIEBLE S
TRERMREEERR - MHEETX
B REESERFEBEEEDY
BEFEARI - EEEREBEESEAD
BEMRLEE  OHRR - UBKE
DRBEEEAZEEEFEESMAY
oo BB S REMEWFRIEBR K
B #E 17 7 BRRT A -

AEEEMBEFEZBEB - TLEN
FEMNEPETENEETME - %
ST FEERBEFPIHANRNBA
HHERBEROINED  TEREE
BEPREPKEMELBRES
BAOSEER - EHEBRENE
ZEHHET302 1200 AE|H -

AEBZBAERN2HMEREEER
MEEtEE S RURIANEIRR
B ARTEEARERENE -
AR AEENBEEEBELRIL
BRI RAEPAMOEEENA
EXEER  BREBEAHBRE S W
BEREEETEZARETRAEFE
RIEE—TFTERD -
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (conminuep)

Credit risk (Continued)

Provision of ECL on trade receivables
On that basis, the provision of trade receivables as at 31
December 2020 and 2019 was determined as follows:

31 December 2020

No past due

1.48%

2020%12A31H

BHEEBREX

Expected credit loss rate

Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) Bk [ 42 &

1 day but less

38. EREMEEBEERBE£)

FERRE)

o ENGIBIENEEREBEE
R EE - A20205F R 2019412
A3IBMESERFEREE TN
T~

More than
More than
than 1 year 1 year
past due
B
BB1F

100%

past due
BHEBE1A
BHR1E

4.73%

(AR®F)
~ Trade receivables -2 5 kWA 124,848 18,239 147,401
Provision for ECL BEEERBERE (1,844) (863) (7,021)
More than
1 day but less More than
than 1 year 1 year
31 December 2019 No past due past due past due Total
B HAEE1 A ikt
2019124318 RNEH BIRIEF HiB1F st
Expected credit loss rate BHEEEEX 0.26% 4.10% 100%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) & [E 42 &
(AR®F)
~ Trade receivables - B HRNFR 94,286 128,163 12,398 234,847
Provision for ECL BEEERERE (236) (5,195) (12,398) (17,829)
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. BiEREEBEZEREE (&)
AND POLICIES (conminuep)

Credit risk (Continued) FERME (&)
Provision of ECL on trade receivables (Continued) B RWGBETEREEBERE(Z)
The provision of ECL for trade receivables as at 31 December R2020F R 2019F 12 A31HME
2020 and 2019 was as follows: SRWHRIBIEREEEERBNOT
RMB’'000
ARMT
As at 1 January 2019 20191 81H 2,253
Provision for the year FEBE 15,576
As at 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 2019512 A31H KX2020%F181H 17,829
Reversal of provision for the year F B ERE R (10,808)
As at 31 December 2020 #2020F12HA31H 7,021
Provision of ECL on deposits and other receivables e REAMEMGRTAE S EIRE G
The provision for deposits and other receivables as at 31 20204 %2019 12 A31 AWML
December 2020 and 2019 was as follows: e REMEBUGRIEREDT -
RMB’'000
AR¥T T
As at 31 December 2019 201941 H1H 78
Provision for the year FEBE E
As at 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 201912 A31H K&2020F1A1H 81
Provision for the year FEHEE
As at 31 December 2020 #2020F12HA31H
Deposit and other receivables B K H A e W R IE
Other receivables relating to accounts that are long overdue HERBASHMNENRIE S AET
with significant amounts, known insolvencies or nonresponse BEEIERRITEHTERERERP
to collection activities, they are assessed individually for BEMEMmEKRE - BERIFEE
impairment allowance. The Group recognised the provision for WEREE  AEEBBTEHEBHA
expected credit losses by assessing the credit risk characteristics WEERRER  BMBEXRKEH
of debtor, discount rate and the likelihood of recovery and Al RE M Z B & BRI -
considering the prevailing economic conditions. RIEHEEEERE -
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. iR EEBERBEK (&)
AND POLICIES (conTinuED)

Credit risk (continued) EERE ()
Provision of ECL on amounts due from related parties FE M BB SR M TR (R B SR A
The provision for amounts due from related parties as at 31 7202012 331 H 8 FEUBREE 75 3%
December 2020 was as follows: HEERT
RMB’'000

ARBTF T
As at 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 7201912 H31H K&2020F 14 1H
Provision for the year FNBEE
As at 31 December 2020 2020412 H31H
Amounts due from related parties JRE L A B 5 IR
Amounts due from related parties relating to accounts that are HEHEPASEERN CHAED
long overdue with significant amounts, known insolvencies or BEEIERRITHTERERNERP
non-response to collection activities, are assessed individually BRAMEWEE S8 - BERFE
for impairment allowance. The Group recognised the provision HRERE ANEBEBFHER
for expected credit losses by assessing the credit risk AREERRSE - BB E RO
characteristics of debtor, discount rate and the likelihood of BRI RE M 2 BB R R OB AR
recovery and considering the prevailing economic conditions. HREHEEEERE -
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. BiEREEBEZEREE (&)
AND POLICIES (conminuep)

Liquidity risk REE SRR

The Group's objectives are to maintain a prudent financial AEENBBRER/RFFENMBR
policy, to monitor liquidity ratios against risk limits and to R URBEARREEZERPER
maintain a contingency plan for funding to ensure that the EERERFES RS - (emE
Group maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity RAKERRERAEINH R E
requirements. BEX -

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities TRFAIRHE B RS BEERDT
for its financial liabilities and derivative financial instruments at EERMTENBRTANIMBR -
the end of the reporting period of the Group's financial WRBEOARBRRERE (BT
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash ERE R R R ARRH S R F
flows (including interest payments computed using contractual KA EOF B E) RASRE KR
rates and based on rates at the end of the reporting period) AR ZRREERMEL

and the earliest date that the Group could be required to

repay:

Within 1 year or on demand

RMIFERFRER
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%T AREF T
Trade and bills payables B HRNFIERENEE 265,237 389,334

Financial liabilities included in other A E A B FRIE

payable and accruals EETEANTRARE 49,766 63,240
Amounts due to related companies FEREE N R A 46,575 80,310
Amount due to a shareholder e —RREFRIE = 10,107
Derivative financial instruments MEEFBIA 313 -
Lease liabilities HEEE 18,680 58,423
Convertible Loan AR ER 84,356 103,798
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERITIER 94,734 220,815

559,661 926,027
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. iR EEBERBEK (&)
AND POLICIES (conminuep)

Liquidity risk (Continued) REBEE R ()

After 1 year

but within 2 years

18226 R
2020 2019
20205 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R AREBFIT
Lease liabilities HEAR 11,905 48,712
Convertible Loan AR E R = 9,975

58,687

After 2 years
but within 5 years
2E5F R
2020 2019

20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ET T ARETIT
Lease liabilities HESE 8,848 86,525

After 5 years
BIB5EF
2020 2019

20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETR ARETIT
Lease liabilities HEEBE 2,388 77,742
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES ~ 38. BifEMEE B ERBK (#)

AND POLICIES (conTinueD)
Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is the
total debts (comprised of amount due to a shareholder,
amounts due to related companies, lease liabilities, Convertible
Loan and interest-bearing bank borrowings) divided by the
total equity. Total equity refers to equity attributable to owners
of the Company. The gearing ratios as at the end of the
reporting periods were as follows:

ExER

AEEESEENTIZARARE
AEBNFBELEZRD AR
RENESHE - AFFHER -

REERBEERENELIRE R
RERE  AEBETREERETRR
FRBIFL AR MBREREER
REITHIAR o BlZ=2020F 2019
F12A31BILEE - EBEANE
2 BRIBFREECMEE -

AEBERERBELX(BMERKE
B(BREN—RBRFE - ENHE
HBABNE - HERE  AJRKRE
ARG ERITEF) R ARRARE)
EEER RBRAEBBREARAER
ABIEH#ED NEREHARNEE
BELLERMT

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%¥T ARET T

Total debts BB 644,033
Equity attributable to owners of RARHER AR

the Company 197,229

Gearing ratio BEAFELE 326.5%
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39.

40.

208

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the period, the Group recognised non-cash reallocation
of current accounts in the amount of approximately
RMB92,995,000, involving increases of same amounts in both
the amounts due to related companies and the amounts due
from related companies.

During the period, the Group recognised non-cash reallocation
of current accounts in the amount of approximately
RMB324,000, involving increases of same amounts in both the
amount due to a shareholder and the amount due from a
shareholder.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@) Major and connected transaction in
relation to the disposal of the entire share
capital of a subsidiary

On 8 January 2021, Morris International Group Limited
(the “Vendor”) and Morris Capital Limited (the
“Purchaser”), a connected person of the Company,
entered into the share purchase agreement, pursuant to
which the Vendor agreed to sell, and the Purchaser
agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital of Masia
Investment Limited (the “Disposal Company”), for the
aggregate consideration of US$5.513 million
(approximately RMB36 million). Further, it is agreed
between the Vendor and the Purchaser that the
Purchaser shall take the Disposal Company with the
current liabilities of the Disposal Group. Further details of
the disposal of the entire share capital of a subsidiary
were set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 8 January 2021 and 9 March 2021 and the circular
of the Company dated 18 February 2021.
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EE2020F12A31HILFZ
40. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 40. REWMEEE(H)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Proposed change of company name (b) BMEHAREM

RRARRKGARR] 2RI AT

The Company proposes to change the English name of

the Company from “Morris Holdings Limited” to “Morris
Home Holdings Limited” and to adopt the Chinese name
"BRREZRABR AT as the dual foreign name of
the Company to replace the existing Chinese name "%t
YRR AR AT (the “Change of Company Name"),
subject to the obtaining of shareholders’ approval at an
extraordinary meeting of the Company (the “EGM").
Further details of Change of Company Name were set

out in the announcements of the Company dated 24

i [ Morris Holdings Limited |
E 2 Al Morris Home Holdings
Limited ] » Y £R 4 A X & 18
[(RAEREBEERERRE MER
RRRIZEEINXER - AR
REEPXERBIEZRTERE
RARI(ERARER])
MEFRARARRENARSE
(TBRRBFHKRE]) FRERE

February 2021 and the circular of the Company dated 10 R FAEE - BREN

March 2021. NEIEBZE—THFBFHNA
RAAEIR20216F2H248 2
NERKRAAER20214F3
H10H Z @K o
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE ~ 41. ZRA BB #ARR &R

COMPANY

ABARARBE BRI R
EHERMT -

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARETIT
Non-current asset kREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RRNIEE 240,860
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H b e U 3R I8 110 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NGIE ] 173,285 77,203
Amounts due from related companies J7E Ui B 28 N m) 3R IE 6,528 -
Cash and cash equivalents RehBEeEEY 23 1,044
Total current assets REEERE 179,946 78,247
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals HiMh N RIERESER 6,327
Amounts due to related companies FEHRAE A R FUA 97,534
Convertible loan R E = 99,986
Total current liabilities MBI B ERRE 203,847
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE(BE6)F8 (125,600)
Total assets less current liabilities EEBERABAERS 115,260
Non-current liability FREBEE
Convertible loan AT E R 9,602
Net assets BEFE 105,658
Equity s
Share capital % A 6,914
Reserves (note) s () 98,744
Total equity iR 105,658
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  41. RRA BB AR TR (2)
COMPANY (conTINUED)

Note: B aE
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RARMRERRAT
Exchange
Share Treasury  fluctuation Accumulated
premium shares reserve losses Total
ERRD
BRADESE EFRA A& E-5y i st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARETT ARBTT AREFT ARETT
As at 1 January 2019 20195 1A1H 164,413 - (6,141) (20,249) 138,023
Loss for the year FABRE - - - (25,086) (25,086)
Other comprehensive income FRHM B
for the year:
Exchange differences on BREBREN
translation of financial FE 3, =%
statements - - (582) - (582)
Total comprehensive loss FAEEEIBRRE

for the year - (582) (25,086) (25,668)
Share repurchased B E &RHD - (2,269) - - (2,269)
Divided paid BARE (11,342) - - - (11,342)
As at 31 December 2019 and M2019F12A318 &

1 January 2020 20201 A1H 153,071 (2,269) (6,723) (45,335) 98,744
Loss for the year FREE - - - (994) (994)
Other comprehensive loss FAHAMZEER :

for the year:

Exchange differences on translation 12 8f # ¥ % 19

of financial statements fEHZERE - - (3,752) - (3,752)
Total comprehensive loss FANEEEBERE

for the year - - (3,752) (994) (4,746)
Share repurchased B E &HD - (6,723) - - (6,723)
At as 31 December 2020 #2020 12A318 153,071 (8,992) (10,475) (46,329) 87,275

42. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 42, Bif 3Rk /&

The financial statements were approved and authorised for B AR O A2021E3A30 & E
issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2021. EEZEWERETIE -
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
TEMBHRE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#E20209F 12 F31 HIFFE

The consolidated results of Morris Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the last four
financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial
statements.

The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for each of the
years ended 31 December 2016 and of the consolidated assets and
liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2016 has been extracted
from the prospectus issued on 30 December 2016 in connection with
the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 12 January 2017.

The summary below does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

REEBRERAR([RQF ) REMEA
Al (I AR )EENEMBRFE 2
REXEDNRIKAET® 2 EELM R
% o

AREEBE2016F12A31BILEERFE
MR EERANEBK2016F12731H
MNGEEENAEBENREAMAR A
2017 F1A12BEETBBMAL SN
BRAB TR EHMMR2016%12H830H
TR ERER -

PATT 40 22 30 18 P AR B A B %5 T 2 O — 6
e

Year ended 31 December

BZNANALEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
20205 20194 20184 20174 20165
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
INGLETN ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
(Restated)
(&E7))
RESULTS -
Revenue A 980,298 1,610,043 1,416,395 941,617
Cost of sales HERA (877.211)  (1,181,999) (937,864) (671,050)
Gross profit E£F 103,087 428,044 478,531 270,567
(Loss)/profit before tax BEiAT(EE),/HH (178,943) 100,286 184,043 112,045
Income tax (expenses)/credit MEREY) /E2 38,253 (13,881) (38,348) (31,369)
(Loss)/profit for the year ER(ER)/EH (140,690) 86,405 145,695 80,676
As at 31 December
W12A318
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
20205 20194 20184 20174 2016F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
INFLEN ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
(Restated)
(&E7))
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Total assets BEE 1,344,964 1,432,152 1,142,847 1,102,005
Total liabilities MEfE (1,147,997)  (1,064,831) (802,688) (943,241)
196,967 367,321 340,159 158,764
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